
                CIVIL SERVICE BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

  

 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

Date:  February 20, 2020   

OPEN SESSION 5:30 p.m.  

 City Hall, One Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Hearing Room 1 

 

BOARD MEMBERS:   Chair, Andrea Gourdine; Vice Chair, Christopher Johnson; Lauren 

Baranco; Yvonne Hudson-Harmon; Brooke Levin; Carmen Martinez; 

Beverly A. Williams 

   

STAFF TO THE BOARD: Ian Appleyard, HRM Director/Secretary to the Board 

                                                    Greg Preece, HR Manager/Staff to the Board 

Vadim Sidelnikov, Deputy City Attorney 

 

 

 

OPEN SESSION AGENDA 

 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

1) OPEN FORUM 

 

 

2) APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 20, 2020 CIVIL SERVICE BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA  

ACTION 

 

3) UPDATES, SECRETARY TO THE BOARD INFORMATION 

 

 

4) CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 

a) Approval of Provisional Appointment 

 

 Finance Department (1) 

 Human Services Department (1) 

 

b) Approval of Employee Requests for Leave of Absence 

 

 Library Department (1) 

 Police Department (1) 

 

c) Approval of Revised Classification Specifications 

 

 Head Start – Early Head Start Assistant Instructor, PT 

ACTION 

 

 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management


Civil Service Board Meeting Agenda  February 20, 2020 Page 2 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

5)  OLD BUSINESS: 

 

a) Approval of January 16, 2020 Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes ACTION 

 

 

b) Approval of December 19, 2019 Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes ACTION 

c) Approval of the July 18, 2019 Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes ACTION 

d) Determination of Schedule of Outstanding Board Items INFORMATION 

e) Informational Report on the Status of Temporary Assignments for 

Temporary Contract Service Employees (TCSEs) and Exempt Limited 

Duration Employees (ELDEs) Including a Report of the Names, Hire 

Dates, and Departments of all ELDE’s and TCSEs in Accordance with 

the Memorandum of Understanding Between the City and Local 21 

 

INFORMATION 

f) Update on Common Class Study - Draft Koff & Associates Report 

Regarding Information Technology Occupational Grouping  

 

INFORMATION 

 

6)  NEW BUSINESS: 

 

a) 6.06 – Appeal of Probationary Release PORT-2020-001 (J. Wilson) ACTION 

 

 

 

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA  

 

ROLL CALL 
 

The Civil Service Board will Convene in Closed Session and will Report Out any Final Decisions in Open 

Session Before Adjourning the Meeting pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.6: 

 

1) Personnel Matter for Public Employee: 6.06 – Appeal of Probationary Release: 

OPL-2019-001 (T. Dowell)  
 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957 – Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release An appellant must notify the Civil Service Board in writing if she/he 

wishes to have a personnel matter heard in open session. 

 

 

OPEN SESSION AGENDA 

 

2) REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management


Civil Service Board Meeting Agenda  February 20, 2020 Page 3 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

3) ADJOURNMENT 

 
NOTE: The Civil Service Board meets on the 3rd Thursday of each month. The next meeting is scheduled to be held 

on Thursday, March 19, 2020. All materials related to agenda items must be submitted by Thursday, March 5, 2020. 

For any materials over 100 pages, please also submit an electronic copy of all materials.  

 

 

Submit items via email or U.S. Mail to: 

 

City of Oakland - Civil Service Board   

150 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 2nd floor 

Oakland, CA 94612 

civilservice@oaklandca.gov   

 

 
Do you need an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or Spanish interpreter or other assistance to participate? 

Please email civilservice@oaklandca.gov  or call (510) 238-3112 or (510) 238-3254 for TDD/TTY 

five days in advance.  

¿Necesita un intérprete en español, cantonés o mandarín, u otra ayuda para participar? Por favor envíe un correo 

electrónico civilservice@oaklandca.gov  o llame al (510) 238-3112 o al (510) 238-3254 Para TDD/TTY por lo 

menos cinco días antes de la reunión. Gracias. 

你需要手語, 西班牙語, 粵語或國語翻譯服務嗎？請在會議前五個工作天電郵 civilservice@oaklandca.gov   

 或致電 (510) 238-3112 或 (510) 238-3254 TDD/TTY 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov


 

 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
     CITY OF OAKLAND 

 
DATE:                   February 20, 2020 
 
TO:             The Honorable Civil Service Board   FROM:   Christine Doan 

Human Resource Analyst 
 
THROUGH:    Ian Appleyard, Human Resources Director 
     Secretary to the Board 
 
THROUGH:     Greg Preece, Human Resources Manager, Recruitment, Classification & Benefits 
 
SUBJECT:     Request for Provisional Appointment in Classification of Administrative Assistant II to be 

ratified at the Civil Service Board Meeting of February 20, 2020 
 
 
Attached is a request from the Finance Department to make a provisional appointment to an Administrative 
Assistant II vacancy. The basis for this request is detailed in the attached Provisional Appointment Form as 
supporting documentation. 
 
The Administrative Assistant II position performs responsible clerical and administrative support to division 
managers and other management staff; supervises assigned clerical staff; and performs related duties as 
assigned. 
 
The minimum qualifications for Administrative Assistant II are: Education equivalent to the completion of 
the twelfth grade and two years of experience comparable to Administrative Assistant I in the City of 
Oakland.  
 
The selected candidate meets the minimum qualifications of the Administrative Assistant II position with a 
GED from Oakland Adult Education and over 6 years of administrative assistant experience. Recruitment, 
Classification & Benefits is in the process of administering a Civil Service Examination to permanently fill this 
vacancy within 120 days. The job announcement is anticipated to post on February 18, 2020.   
  
The Human Resources Management Department recommends that the Civil Service Board ratify the 
provisional appointment for this Administrative Assistant II position in the Finance Department beginning 
on February 15, 2020 and ending on or before June 13, 2020.  



OAKLAND CIVIL SERVICE BOARD 

PROVISIONAL APPOINTMENT REQUEST 
 

SCHEDULED MEETING DATE FOR CONSIDERATION: February 20, 2020  

 

AREA REQUESTED 

 

POSITION: Administrative Assistant II                                            

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department                                         

APPOINTMENT DURATION:120 days maximum                                                               

                                                                 

 

STATUS OF RECRUITMENT AND EXAMINATION PROCESS 

 

DATE ELIGIBLE LIST EXPIRED OR WAS EXHAUSTED: N/A                   

DATE PERSONNEL REQUISITION RECEIVED: November 1, 2019 

CURRENT STATUS OF EXAMINATION: The job announcement is anticipated to post on February 

18, 2020. 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION: 

 

Reason Needed: 

 

This provisional appointment is needed to fill one (1) current vacancy.  The requisition requesting the 

provisional appointment was approved.  A provisional appointment will allow the incumbent to be trained 

and perform the Administrative Assistant II duties while an eligibility list is being developed.      

 

 

Other Alternatives Explored and Eliminated:  

None._________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IMPACT IF REQUESTS ARE NOT APPROVED (i.e., services, fiscal, other): 

 

The negative impacts of not having this vacancy filled while an eligibility list is established would affect 

the Treasury Bureau operations as this a position monitors supplies, screens visitors, maintains records, 

researches budget and funds availability and other administrative duties as needed.  

  

 

Attachments:  

 - Employment Application: Yes 

 - Personnel Requisition: Yes 

 - Resume: Yes 

 

Recruitment, Classification & Benefits Staff Recommendation, including following pertinent information: 

- Summary of Application Qualifications    

- Current Residency Status:    Non - Oakland Resident   

- Current Employment Status   A current, TCSE Cashier of City of Oakland Employee



 

 

MEMORANDUM CITY OF OAKLAND 
 
DATE: February 20, 2020 
 
TO: The Honorable Civil Service Board FROM: Alan Aguirre 
 Human Resource Analyst 
THROUGH: Ian Appleyard, HRM Director 
 Secretary to the Board 
 
THROUGH: Greg Preece 
 Human Resources Manager - Recruitment, Classification and Benefits 

SUBJECT: 
Request for Provisional Appointment in Classification of Head Start Health & Nutrition 
Coordinator to be ratified at the Civil Service Board Meeting of February 20th, 2020 

 
Attached is a request from the Human Services Department to make a provisional appointment to a Head Start 
Health & Nutrition Coordinator vacancy. The basis for this request is detailed in the attached Provisional 
Appointment Form as supporting documentation. 
 
The Head Start Health & Nutrition Coordinator position plans, develops procedures, oversees implementation, 
and coordinates health, oral health, and nutrition services for the Early Head Start/Head Start (EHS/HS) program 
including on-site and home-based services; facilitates agreements with local health and nutrition providers to 
maximize services to enrolled children and families;  provides support and direction to all staff related to 
monitoring and overseeing services to ensure consistent implementation of adopted agency policy; supervises 
assigned staff; and performs related duties as assigned. 
 
The minimum qualifications for Head Start Health & Nutrition Coordinator are: a Bachelor's degree from an 
accredited college or university in public health, food and nutrition, dietetics or closely related field is required 
and two (2) years of progressively responsible work experience in nutrition or public health delivering and/or 
coordinating services to children 0-6 years of age. Relevant work experience in a clinic, hospital or school setting 
or a public health department is highly desirable.  
 
The selected candidate meets the minimum qualifications of the Head Start Health & Nutrition Coordinator 
position with a Master's Degree in Nursing and five (5) years of experience as a School Nurse/Health Educator 
with the San Ramon Valley Unified School District and Vallejo City Unified School District. Recruitment and 
Classification is in the process of administering a Civil Service Examination to permanently fill this vacancy within 
120 days. The job announcement opened as a continuous recruitment and was posted on December 9, 2019. 
 
The Human Resources Management Department recommends that the Civil Service Board ratify the 
provisional appointment for this Head Start Health & Nutrition Coordinator position in the Human Services 
Department Department beginning on February 22, 2020 and ending on or before 6/22/2020. 



OAKLAND CIVIL SERVICE BOARD 

PROVISIONAL APPOINTMENT REQUEST 
 

SCHEDULED MEETING DATE FOR CONSIDERATION: February 20, 2020  

 

AREA REQUESTED 

 

POSITION: Head Start Health & Nutrition Coordinator (continuous)                                            

DEPARTMENT: Human Services Department                                         

APPOINTMENT DURATION:     120 days maximum_______                                                                

                                                                 

 

STATUS OF RECRUITMENT AND EXAMINATION PROCESS 

 

DATE ELIGIBLE LIST EXPIRED OR WAS EXHAUSTED: October 22nd, 2019                   

DATE PERSONNEL REQUISITION RECEIVED: January 24, 2020 

CURRENT STATUS OF EXAMINATION: The job announcement posted on December 9th, 2019. 

 

 

JUSTIFICATION: 

 

Reason Needed: 

 

This provisional appointment is needed to fill one (1) current vacancy.  The requisition requesting the provisional 

appointment was approved.  A provisional appointment will allow the work to be performed while an eligibility 

list is being developed. The Head Start Health & Nutrition Coordinator is needed to plan, develop procedures, 

oversee implementation, and coordinate health, oral health, and nutrition services for the Early Head Start/Head 

Start (EHS/HS) program, including on-site and home-based services; facilitate agreements with local health and 

nutrition providers to maximize services to enrolled children and families; and provide support and direction to 

all staff related to monitoring and overseeing services to ensure consistent implementation of adopted agency 

policy.  

 

 

Other Alternatives Explored and Eliminated:  

None._____________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IMPACT IF REQUESTS ARE NOT APPROVED (i.e., services, fiscal, other): 

 

The negative impacts of not having this vacancy filled while an eligibility list is established would severely impact 

the Department’s ability to implement the programs and services in the Early Head Start/Head Start (EHS/HS) 

program. 

  

 

Attachments:  

Recruitment and Classification Staff Recommendation, including following pertinent information: 

- Summary of Application Qualifications    

- Current Residency Status:    Non - Oakland Resident   

- Current Employment Status   Non-City Employee

 













 

 

  

MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE: February 20, 2020 

 

TO: The Honorable Civil Service Board FROM:  Jaime Pritchett 

  Principal Human Resource Analyst 

 

THROUGH: Greg Preece, Human Resources Manager, Recruitment & Classification 

 

THROUGH: Ian Appleyard, Director of Human Resources Management 

 Secretary to the Board 

 

SUBJECT: Approval of Revised Classification Specification for Head Start/Early Head Start 

Assistant Instructor 

Based upon a classification review at the request of the Human Services Department (HSD), 

staff has proposed revision of the Head Start/Early Head Start Assistant Instructor 

classification. The new classification went to the Civil Service Board for approval in September 2018 

and was established by City Council approval following two readings of the salary ordinance 

amendment on November 27, 2018.  

The City of Oakland’s Head Start and Early Head Start Programs are still suffering from the 

nationwide shortage of teachers. We have been unable to reach full staffing levels, continue to 

experience an increase in staff turnover, and must resort to closing classrooms on days in which 

sufficient staffing ratios cannot be attained. This is a critical, on-going issue for the City.  

There are no current incumbents in this classification. To create a larger pool of eligible workers 

that is still compliant with state regulations, the City is proposing to change the type of permit 

and timing in which candidates must obtain his/her State of California Child Development 

Assistant Teacher Permit. Rather than possessing it upon application, we are proposing that it 

can be obtained within six (6) months of hire. However, failure to obtain the necessary permit 

within the first six (6) months will be grounds for removal.  

The revised classification specification will be used to screen a pending pool of part-time 

candidates. Many of them will be eligible for hire under the revised qualifications, which will 

enable the City to get more teachers in classrooms in the immediate future. 

The Service Employees International Union (SEIU, Local 1021) was notified of the proposal to 

revise this classification. City and union representatives discussed the revisions at a meeting on 

January 8, 2020. The union conveyed that there are no objections to the proposed revisions in an 

email dated February 7, 2020.  

Additionally, the Port does not operate human services programs. Therefore, classifications 

specifically designed in support of human services programs have no corresponding 

classifications at the Port.  

Staff recommends that the Civil Service Board approve the revised classification specification of 

Head Start/Early Head Start Assistant Instructor as proposed. 

Attachment:  Proposed revised Head Start/Early Head Start Assistant Instructor classification specification.   

 



HEAD START/EARLY HEAD START 

ASSISTANT INSTRUCTOR 
 

Class Code: PPXXX PT                                     Exempt 
 

 

DEFINITION 

Under direction in the Human Services Department, assists with instructing children enrolled in 

Head Start/State Preschool/Early Head Start Programs; assists with introducing parents to early 

childhood development concepts; observes during developmental assessments and may document 

observations; assists in organizing and setting up educational and play materials for classrooms; 

and performs related duties as assigned.   

 

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS 

This is an entry-level classification in the Head Start/Early Head Start Instructor series.  The 

incumbent is responsible for assisting assigned teacher(s) with conducting developmentally 

appropriate activities for children in the Head Start/State Preschool/Early Head Start Programs.  

This classification can be distinguished from the Head Start/Early Head Start Instructor, which is 

a fully functional journey-level teacher position. It is further distinguished from the Head 

Start/Early Head Start Substitute Associate Instructor position, which is also an entry-level 

position that provides oversight and instruction in the classroom. 

The incumbent receives general supervision from the Early Childhood Center Director and may 

receive lead direction from Head Start/Early Head Start Instructors.  

 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES - Duties may include, but are not limited to the following: 

Assist with instructing children in basic infant/toddler/preschool education concepts. 

Assist with organizing and setting up developmentally appropriate educational and play materials 

for the classroom. 

Assist with conducting fire, disaster and safety drills in the classroom; inspect facility for safety 

standards and maintenance needs. 

Assist with organizing and scheduling daily activities at the center classroom. 

Prepare snacks and serve meals. 

Assist with conducting outreach and recruiting children and families for enrollment in the Head 

Start/State Preschool/Early Head Start Program. 

Observe, visually supervise and monitor children, and take action as needed during activities to 

ensure their health and safety at all times. 

Observe children for unusual behavior or illness and notify Head Start/Early Head Start Instructor 

or Early Childhood Center Director. 

Provide support during parent conferences. 

 

 



PPXXX – HS/EHS ASSISTANT INSTRUCTOR Page 2 

 

Maintain a clean and organized indoor and outdoor environment, including the food service area. 

Assist with maintaining routine records for daily attendance and progress of children in the 

classroom. 

Partner with parents to adhere to individualized educational programs (IEPs) for their children. 

Support the parent education, planning, and goal setting for parents. 

Promote parent/child bonding and nurturing parent/child relationships through modeling 

developmentally and culturally appropriate interactions and communications. 

Administer Pediatric First Aid and Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR), as needed. 

 

KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES 

Knowledge of: 

 Basic concepts of infant, toddler, preschool, and early childhood development, growth and 

behavior. 

 Motor skills and development fundamentals. 

 Principles and practices of teaching in an early childhood setting. 

 Classroom safety related to care and oversight of infant/toddler/preschool children. 

 Safe work practices. 

 Modern office equipment. 

 Personal computer and software applications.  

Ability to: 

 Assist with leading learning activities for children and parents. 

 Assist with maintaining records. 

 Support the screening and assessment of children.  

 Assist with implementing developmentally appropriate activities for children. 

 Learn and follow Head Start/Early Head Start and California State Licensing rules and 

regulations.  

 Communicate effectively with children and parents. 

 Follow oral and written directions. 

 Work as part of a team in a culturally diverse environment. 

 Carry out routine tasks in conjunction with assigned staff to meet established deadlines 

pursuant to performance standards and departmental policies and procedures. 

 Stand, walk, squat, kneel, bend, twist, reach above shoulder level and below waist level, push 

and pull, and lift up to 50 lbs. while monitoring children. 

 Grasp and manipulate items such as writing utensils. 

 Sit on the floor while working with infants, toddlers and children. 

 Carry and bottle feed infants/toddlers. 

 Walk from a parked car to a home site and climb up flights of stairs as necessary. 

 Administer CPR and Pediatric First Aid. 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the 

performance of required duties. 

  



PPXXX – HS/EHS ASSISTANT INSTRUCTOR Page 3 

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

Any combination of education and experience that is equivalent to the following minimum 

qualifications is acceptable. 

Education:  

Six (6) units of Early Childhood Education (ECE) or Child Development (CD) from an 

accredited college or university.  

 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENT FOR EARLY HEAD START PROGRAM ASSISTANT 

INSTRUCTORS: Education must include three (3) units of Infant/Toddler coursework.  

Experience: 

None required. Experience in a licensed child care center or comparable group child care 

program is highly desirable. 

 

LICENSE OR CERTIFICATE  
Individuals who are appointed to this position will be required to maintain a valid California 

Driver's License throughout the tenure of employment OR demonstrate the ability to travel to 

various locations in a timely manner as required in the performance of duties. 

Must possess a State of California Child Development Associate Teacher Permit at time of 

appointment. Failure to obtain relevant teaching permit upon receipt of conditional job offer will 

be grounds for removal. 

Must obtain a State of California Child Development Assistant Teacher Permit within six (6) 

months of employment.  Must demonstrate proof of application for Assistant Teacher Permit from 

the State of California upon hire.  Failure to obtain relevant teaching permit within six (6) months 

will be grounds for removal. 

Must obtain Pediatric First Aid and CPR certifications within one year of employment and 

maintain throughout tenure of employment. 

 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS 

Depending on nature of assignment, candidates who receive offers of employment will be 

required to submit fingerprints, undergo a criminal record clearance, and have a physical 

examination including a TB screening. 

Proficiency in a foreign language may be required. 

 

 

 

DEPT. OF HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT USE ONLY 

      

Established:  CSB Resolution #:  Salary Ordinance #:  

Exempted: Y  N    Exemption Resolution #:         

      

Revision Date:    /   /       CSB Resolution #:         

Re-titled Date: n/a CSB Resolution #:       Salary Ordinance #:       

      

(Previous title(s):  n/a ) 

 



                CIVIL SERVICE BOARD MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT) 

  

 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa  Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

Date:  January 16, 2020   

OPEN SESSION 5:30 p.m.  

 City Hall, One Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Hearing Room 1 

 

BOARD MEMBERS:   Chair, Andrea Gourdine; Vice Chair, Christopher Johnson; Lauren 

Baranco (absent); Yvonne Hudson-Harmon; Brooke Levin; Carmen 

Martinez (absent); Beverly A. Williams 

   

STAFF TO THE BOARD: Ian Appleyard, HRM Director/Secretary to the Board 

                                                    Greg Preece, HR Manager/Staff to the Board 

Vadim Sidelnikov, Deputy City Attorney 

 

OPEN SESSION AGENDA 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

1) OPEN FORUM 

 

 

2) APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 16, 2020 CIVIL SERVICE BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA  

ACTION 

 

44965 A motion was made by Vice Chair Johnson and seconded by Board Member 

Williams to approve the January 16, 2020 Civil Service Board Meeting Agenda. The 

motion passed unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 5 –  Gourdine, Johnson, Hudson-Harmon, Levin, Williams 

                                                  

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Baranco, Martinez 

 

3) UPDATES, SECRETARY TO THE BOARD INFORMATION 

 

 

4) CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 

a) Approval of Provisional Appointment 

 

 Oakland Public Library Department (1) 

 

b) Approval of Employee Requests for Leave of Absence 

 

ACTION 

 

 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management


Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes (DRAFT) January 16, 2020 Page 2 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

 City Attorney’s Office (1) 

 Human Resources Management (1) 

 

c) Approval of Revised Classification Specifications 

 

 Registered Veterinary Technician (formerly Veterinary 

Technician) 

 Complaint Investigator III 

 Transportation Engineer, Supervising 

 

44966 A motion was made by Board Member Levin and seconded by Board 

Member Hudson-Harmon to approve the Consent Calendar: 

Provisional Appointments, Employee Requests for Leave of Absence, 

and Approval of Revised Classification Specifications. The motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 5 –  Gourdine, Johnson, Hudson-Harmon, 

Levin, Williams 

                                                  

            Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Baranco, Martinez 

 

5)  OLD BUSINESS: 

 

a) Approval of December 19, 2019 Civil Service Board Meeting 

Minutes 

 

Due to lack of quorum of members present at the December 2019 

meeting, approval of the December 19, 2019 Civil Service Board 

Meeting Minutes will carry over to the February 2020 meeting. 

 

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Baranco, Martinez 

 

ACTION 

 

 

b) Approval of the July 18, 2019 Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Due to lack of quorum of members present at the July 2019 

meeting, approval of the July 18, 2019 Civil Service Board 

Meeting Minutes will carry over to the February 2020 meeting. 

 

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Baranco, Martinez 

 

 

ACTION 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management


Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes (DRAFT) January 16, 2020 Page 3 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

c) Determination of Schedule of Outstanding Board Items INFORMATION 

Report received and filed. 

 

 

d) Informational Report on the Status of Temporary Assignments for 

Temporary Contract Service Employees (TCSEs) and Exempt 

Limited Duration Employees (ELDEs) Including a Report of the 

Names, Hire Dates, and Departments of all ELDE’s and TCSEs in 

Accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding Between the 

City and Local 21 

 

Report received and filed. 

 

INFORMATION 

e) Update on Common Class Study  INFORMATION 

There was no update at this meeting. The Board requested a schedule 

of the remaining groups. 

 

 

 

6) NEW BUSINESS:  

 

a) Approval of New Classification Specification for Veterinary Assistant ACTION 

  

44967 A motion was made by Vice Chair Johnson and seconded by Board 

Member Williams to approve the New Classification for Veterinary 

Assistant. The motion passed unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 5 –  Gourdine, Johnson, Hudson-Harmon, 

Levin, Williams 

                                                  

            Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Baranco, Martinez 

 

 

b) Census 2020 Presentation  INFORMATION  

Presentation received. 

 

 

c) Approval of Revised Classification Specifications for Human 

Resource Clerk and Human Resource Technician 

 

44968 A motion was made by Board Member Hudson-Harmon and 

seconded by Vice Chair Johnson to approve the revised classifications 

for Human Resource Clerk and Human Resource Technician. The 

motion passed unanimously.  

 

 

ACTION 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management


Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes (DRAFT) January 16, 2020 Page 4 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 5 –  Gourdine, Johnson, Hudson-Harmon, 

Levin, Williams 

                                                  

            Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Baranco, Martinez 

 

 

d) Quarterly Report per Section 3.04 of the Personnel Manual of the 

Civil Service Board (“Civil Service Rules”) Providing Status of all 

Classification Specifications Revisions Currently Under Review 

 

Report received and filed. 

INFORMATION 

 

7) ADJOURNMENT 

 

              The meeting was adjourned at 6:28 p.m.  

 
NOTE: The Civil Service Board meets on the 3rd Thursday of each month. The next meeting is scheduled to be held 

on Thursday, February 20, 2020. All materials related to agenda items must be submitted by Thursday, February 6, 

2020. For any materials over 100 pages, please also submit an electronic copy of all materials.  

 

 

Submit items via email or U.S. Mail to: 

 

City of Oakland - Civil Service Board   

150 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 2nd floor 

Oakland, CA 94612 

civilservice@oaklandca.gov   

 

 
Do you need an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or Spanish interpreter or other assistance to participate? 

Please email civilservice@oaklandca.gov  or call (510) 238-3112 or (510) 238-3254 for TDD/TTY 

five days in advance.  

¿Necesita un intérprete en español, cantonés o mandarín, u otra ayuda para participar? Por favor envíe un correo 

electrónico civilservice@oaklandca.gov  o llame al (510) 238-3112 o al (510) 238-3254 Para TDD/TTY por lo 

menos cinco días antes de la reunión. Gracias. 

你需要手語, 西班牙語, 粵語或國語翻譯服務嗎？請在會議前五個工作天電郵 civilservice@oaklandca.gov   

 或致電 (510) 238-3112 或 (510) 238-3254 TDD/TTY 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov


                CIVIL SERVICE BOARD MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT) 

  

 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa  Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

Date:  December 19, 2019   

OPEN SESSION 5:30 p.m.  

 City Hall, One Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Hearing Room 1 

 

BOARD MEMBERS:   Chair, Andrea Gourdine; Vice Chair, Christopher Johnson (absent); 

Lauren Baranco; Yvonne Hudson-Harmon (absent); Brooke Levin 

(absent); Carmen Martinez; Beverly A. Williams 

   

STAFF TO THE BOARD: Ian Appleyard, HRM Director/Secretary to the Board 

                                                    Greg Preece, HR Manager/Staff to the Board 

Vadim Sidelnikov, Deputy City Attorney 

 

 

 

OPEN SESSION AGENDA 

 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

1) OPEN FORUM 

 

 

2) APPROVAL OF THE DECEMBER 19, 2019 CIVIL SERVICE BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA  

 

44958 A motion was made by Board Member Williams and seconded by 

Board Member Martinez to approve the December 19, 2019 Civil 

Service Board Meeting Agenda. The motion passed unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 4 –  Gourdine, Williams, Baranco, Martinez 

                                                  

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Johnson, Levin, Hudson-Harmon 

 

ACTION 

 

3) UPDATES, SECRETARY TO THE BOARD 

 

Director Appleyard presented to the Board the most recent staffing report 

presented to City Council in November, 2019. 

 

 

 

 

INFORMATION 

 

 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management


Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes (DRAFT)         December 19, 2019 Page 2 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa  Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

4) CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 

 

a) Approval of Provisional Appointment 

 

 Oakland Fire Department (1) 

 

b) Approval of Employee Requests for Leave of Absence 

 

 Oakland Public Library 

 

c) Approval of Revised Classification Specification 

 

 Planner III, Historic Preservation 

 

44959 A motion was made by Board Member Williams and seconded by 

Board Member Martinez to approve the Consent Calendar: 

Provisional Appointments, Employee Requests for Leave of Absence, 

and Approval of Revised Classification Specifications. The motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 4 –  Gourdine, Williams, Baranco, Martinez 

                                                  

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Johnson, Levin, Hudson-Harmon 

 

 

ACTION 

 

 

5)  OLD BUSINESS: 

 

a) Approval of November 14, 2019 Civil Service Board Meeting 

Minutes 

 

Due to lack of quorum of members present at the November 2019 

meeting, approval of the November 14, 2019 Civil Service Board 

Meeting Minutes will carry over to the January 2020 meeting. 

 

            Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Johnson, Levin, Hudson-Harmon 

 

 

ACTION 

 

 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management


Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes (DRAFT)         December 19, 2019 Page 3 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa  Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

b) Approval of the July 18, 2019 Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Due to lack of quorum of members present at the July 2019 

meeting, approval of the July 18, 2019 Civil Service Board 

Meeting Minutes will carry over to the January 2020 meeting. 

 

            Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Johnson, Levin, Hudson-Harmon 

 

 

ACTION 

c) Determination of Schedule of Outstanding Board Items 

 

Denise Eaton-May, Esq. and Deputy City Attorney Caryl Casden 

spoke regarding Appeal OFD-2019-AP02.  The parties have agreed to 

delay the appeal scheduled for this meeting and to request the Board 

allow the appeal to be heard by a mutually agreed upon Hearing 

Officer.  The parties have secured dates for the Hearing Officer in 

February, 2020. 

 

44960 A motion was made by Board Member Martinez and seconded by 

Board Member Williams to receive the Schedule of Outstanding 

Items, accept the request to postpone Appeal OFD-2019-AP02, and to 

assign Appeal OFD-2019-AP02 to a hearing officer. The motion 

passed unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 4 –  Gourdine, Williams, Baranco, Martinez 

                                                  

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Johnson, Levin, Hudson-Harmon 

 

ACTION 

d) Informational Report on the Status of Temporary Assignments for 

Temporary Contract Service Employees (TCSEs) and Exempt 

Limited Duration Employees (ELDEs) Including a Report of the 

Names, Hire Dates, and Departments of all ELDE’s and TCSEs in 

Accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding Between the 

City and Local 21 

 

Report received and filed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INFORMATION 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management


Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes (DRAFT)         December 19, 2019 Page 4 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa  Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

e) Update on Common Class Study – Draft Koff & Associates Report 

Regarding General, Administrative, Clerical, and Office Occupational 

Grouping 

 

There was one speaker on this item.  Local 21 Chapter Vice President 

Jennifer Foster.  

 

 

Report received and filed. 

INFORMATION 

 

 

6) NEW BUSINESS:  

 

 

a) Approval of New Classification Specification for Fire Inspection 

Supervisor 

 

44961 A motion was made by Board Member Williams and seconded by 

Board Member Baranco to approve the new Classification 

Specification for Fire Inspection Supervisor. The motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 4 –  Gourdine, Williams, Baranco, Martinez 

                                                  

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Johnson, Levin, Hudson-Harmon 

 

 

ACTION 

 

 

b) Approval of New Classification Specification for Chief of Fire, 

Assistant 

 

44962 A motion was made by Board Member Williams and seconded by 

Board Member Martinez to approve the new Classification 

Specification for Chief of Fire, Assistant. The motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 4 –  Gourdine, Williams, Baranco, Martinez 

                                                  

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Johnson, Levin, Hudson-Harmon 

 

 

 

 

ACTION 

c) Approval of New Classification Specification for Capital 

Improvement Coordinator, Assistant 

 

ACTION 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management


Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes (DRAFT)         December 19, 2019 Page 5 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa  Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management  

44963 A motion was made by Board Member Martinez and seconded by 

Board Member Williams to approve the new Classification 

Specification for Capital Improvement Coordinator, Assistant. The 

motion passed unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 4 –  Gourdine, Williams, Baranco, Martinez 

                                                  

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Johnson, Levin, Hudson-Harmon 

 

 

d) Approval of New Classification Specification for Ethics Analyst III 

 

44964 A motion was made by Board Member Williams and seconded by 

Board Member Baranco to approve the new Classification 

Specification for Ethics Analyst III. The motion passed unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 4 –  Gourdine, Williams, Baranco, Martinez 

                                                  

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Johnson, Levin, Hudson-Harmon 

 

ACTION 

 

7) ADJOURNMENT 

 
NOTE: The Civil Service Board meets on the 3rd Thursday of each month. The next meeting is scheduled to be held 

on Thursday, January 16, 2020. All materials related to agenda items must be submitted by Thursday, January 2, 

2020. For any materials over 100 pages, please also submit an electronic copy of all materials.  

 

 

Submit items via email or U.S. Mail to: 

 

City of Oakland - Civil Service Board   

150 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 2nd floor 

Oakland, CA 94612 

civilservice@oaklandca.gov   

 

 
Do you need an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or Spanish interpreter or other assistance to participate? 

Please email civilservice@oaklandca.gov  or call (510) 238-3112 or (510) 238-3254 for TDD/TTY 

five days in advance.  

¿Necesita un intérprete en español, cantonés o mandarín, u otra ayuda para participar? Por favor envíe un correo 

electrónico civilservice@oaklandca.gov  o llame al (510) 238-3112 o al (510) 238-3254 Para TDD/TTY por lo 

menos cinco días antes de la reunión. Gracias. 

你需要手語, 西班牙語, 粵語或國語翻譯服務嗎？請在會議前五個工作天電郵 civilservice@oaklandca.gov   

 或致電 (510) 238-3112 或 (510) 238-3254 TDD/TTY 

https://www.oaklandca.gov/departments/department-of-human-resources-management
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov


                       CIVIL SERVICE BOARD MEETING MINUTES - DRAFT 

  

 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at:  https://www.oaklandca.gov/boards-and-commissions/civil-service-board. 

Date:  July 18, 2019 

OPEN SESSION 5:30 p.m. 

 

 City Hall, One Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Hearing Room 1 

 

BOARD MEMBERS:   Chair, Andrea Gourdine; Vice Chair, Christopher Johnson (arrived 5:38); 

Lauren Baranco (Absent); Yvonne Hudson-Harmon (Absent);            

Brooke Levin; Carmen Martinez; Beverly A. Williams (Absent) 

   

STAFF TO THE BOARD: Ian Appleyard, HRM Director/Secretary to the Board (Absent) 

                                                    Greg Preece, HRM Manager/Staff to the Board  
Tabitha Pulliam, HRM Technician/Staff to the Board 

Michelle Meyers, Senior Deputy City Attorney 

      

 

OPEN SESSION AGENDA 

 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

1) OPEN FORUM:   

 

No speakers 

 

2) UPDATES, SECRETARY TO THE BOARD: 

General Recruitment and Classification Updates presented by Greg Preece, HRM Manager.              

3) APPROVAL OF THE JULY 18 2019 CIVIL SERVICE BOARD MEETING AGENDA: 

 

44940 A motion was made by Vice Chair Johnson and seconded by Board Member 

Martinez to approve the July 18, 2019 Civil Service Board Meeting Agenda. The 

motion passed unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 4 –  Gourdine, Johnson, Levin, Martinez   

                                                  

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Baranco, Hudson-Harmon, Williams 

 

1 of 4 05a - July Meeting Minutes

https://www.oaklandca.gov/boards-and-commissions/civil-service-board


Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes  July 18, 2019 Page 2 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa  Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at: https://www.oaklandca.gov/boards-and-commissions/civil-service-board.  

4) CONSENT CALENDAR:  

 

a) Approval of Employee Requests for Leave of Absence 

 

 Library  

 Oakland Police Department 

 

 

44941 A motion was made by Vice Chair Johnson and seconded by Board Member 

Martinez to approve the Consent Calendar: Employee Requests for Leave of 

Absence. The motion passed unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 4 –  Gourdine, Johnson, Levin, Martinez 

 

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Baranco, Hudson-Harmon, Williams 

5)  OLD BUSINESS: 

a) Approval of June 20, 2019 Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes 

 

44942 A motion was made by Chair Gourdine and seconded by Vice Chair Johnson to 

approve the June 20, 2019 Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes. With two ayes 

and two abstentions, the motion did not pass and will carry over to the August 

meeting. 

 

 

 Votes: Board Member Ayes: 2 –  Gourdine, Johnson 

 

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: Levin, Martinez 

             Board Members Absent: Baranco, Hudson-Harmon, Williams 

 

b) Determination of Schedule of Outstanding Board Items 

 

Report received and filed 

 

c) Informational Report on the Status of Temporary Assignments for Temporary 

Contract Service Employees (TCSEs) and Exempt Limited Duration Employees 

(ELDEs) Including a Report of the Names, Hire Dates, and Departments of all 

ELDEs and TCSEs in Accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding 

Between the City and Local 21 

 

                 Report received and filed  

 

 

 

2 of 4 05a - July Meeting Minutes

https://www.oaklandca.gov/boards-and-commissions/civil-service-board


Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes  July 18, 2019 Page 3 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa  Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at: https://www.oaklandca.gov/boards-and-commissions/civil-service-board.  

d) Update on Common Classification Study  

 

Oral report, presented by Greg Preece, received 

 

 

6) NEW BUSINESS: 

 

a) Approval of New Classification Specification for Buyer, Senior 

 

44943 A motion was made by Board Member Levin and seconded by Vice Chair 

Johnson to approve the New Classification Specification for Buyer, Senior. The 

motion passed unanimously.  

 

Votes: Board Member Ayes: 4 –  Gourdine, Johnson, Levin, Martinez 

 

 Board Member Noes: None 

 Board Member Abstentions: None 

            Board Members Absent: Baranco, Hudson-Harmon, Williams 

 

b) Quarterly Report per Section 3.04 of the Personnel Manual of the Civil Service 

Board (“Civil Service Rules”) Providing Status of all Classification Specifications 

Revisions Currently Under Review 

 

Report received and filed 

 

 

(7 ADJOURNMENT   6:20 p.m.  

 

NOTE: The Civil Service Board meets on the 3rd Thursday of each month. The next meeting is scheduled to be held 

on Thursday, August 15, 2019. All materials related to agenda items must be submitted by Thursday, August 1, 

2019. For any materials over 100 pages, please also submit an electronic copy of all materials.  

 

 

Submit items via email or U.S. Mail to: 

 

 

City of Oakland - Civil Service Board   

150 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 2nd floor 

Oakland, CA 94612 

civilservice@oaklandca.gov  

 

 
Do you need an ASL, Cantonese, Mandarin or Spanish interpreter or other assistance to participate? 

Please email civilservice@oaklandca.gov  or call (510) 238-3112 or (510) 238-3254 for TDD/TTY 

five days in advance.  

¿Necesita un intérprete en español, cantonés o mandarín, u otra ayuda para participar? Por favor envíe un correo 

electrónico civilservice@oaklandca.gov  o llame al (510) 238-3112 o al (510) 238-3254 Para TDD/TTY por lo 

menos cinco días antes de la reunión. Gracias. 

3 of 4 05a - July Meeting Minutes

https://www.oaklandca.gov/boards-and-commissions/civil-service-board
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov


Civil Service Board Meeting Minutes  July 18, 2019 Page 4 

 

Agendas are available 72 hours in advance of the next meeting and may be viewed at the City Clerk’s Office, #1 Frank H. Ogawa  Plaza, 1st Floor. Materials are also 

available on the City’s website at: https://www.oaklandca.gov/boards-and-commissions/civil-service-board.  

你需要手語, 西班牙語, 粵語或國語翻譯服務嗎？請在會議前五個工作天電郵 civilservice@oaklandca.gov   或

致電 (510) 238-3112 或 (510) 238-3254 TDD/TTY 

4 of 4 05a - July Meeting Minutes

https://www.oaklandca.gov/boards-and-commissions/civil-service-board
mailto:civilservice@oaklandca.gov


  
CIVIL SERVICE BOARD 

  2/14/2020 

 

APPEALS & HEARINGS CALENDAR 

PENDING LIST – FEBRUARY 20, 2020 
 

1. OPEN 

Case Number  Classification Dept. Action Pending Hearing Date 
  Notes/Next 

Steps 

OFD-2019-AP02 
Firefighter/ 

Paramedic 

Oakland Fire 

Department 

6.06 – Appeal of 

Probationary 

Release 

December 19, 

2019* 

*Matter has 

been referred to 

outside hearing 

officer. 

OPL-2019-001 
Library Aide, 

PPT 

Oakland Public 

Library 

6.06 – Appeal of 

Probationary 

Release 

February 20, 

2020 
 

PORT-2020-001 
Port Maintenance 

Leader 
Port of Oakland 

6.06 – Appeal of 

Probationary 

Release 

February 20, 

2020 
 

2. OTHER PENDING ITEMS 

 

Date Requested 
 

                         Subject 
Report 

From 

 

Date Due 

    
 

 

3. CLOSED 

Case Number Classification Dept. Action Pending 
Date 

Received 
Notes 

      

 

4. UNDER REVIEW 

Case Number Classification Dept. Action Pending Action Date Notes 

      

 

 



 

 

 

                  STAFF REPORT 
    

 

 

 DATE: February 20, 2020 

 TO: THE HONORABLE CIVIL SERVICE BOARD 

 FROM: Greg Preece, Human Resources Manager & Staff to the Board 

 THROUGH: Ian Appleyard, Human Resources Director & Secretary to the Board 

 SUBJECT: TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES – Informational Report on the Status of 

Temporary Assignments for Temporary Contract Service Employees 

(TCSEs) and Exempt Limited Duration Employees (ELDEs) Including a 

Report of the Names, Hire Dates, and Departments of All ELDEs and 

TCSEs in Accordance with the Memorandum of Understanding Between the 

City and Local 21 

 

 

SUMMARY  

Staff has prepared this report to provide the Civil Service Board with an update on 

compliance with the Civil Service Rules related to temporary employees since the last report 

at the January 16, 2020 meeting. This report focuses on temporary employees in the 

categories of Exempt Limited Duration Employees (ELDEs) and Temporary Contract 

Service Employees (TCSEs), who are currently employed in the City of Oakland.  

There is a total of eighty-nine (89) employees in the TCSE (24), TCSE/Annuitant (35), and 

ELDE (30) categories. Six (6) assignments were closed, and four (4) new assignments were 

added. Of the total, there are zero (0) assignments reported as non-compliant with Rule 5.06. 

Reports showing all the temporary assignments discussed in this report are included in a list 

(Attachment A) and a chart of trends (Attachment B) attached to this narrative report to 

provide a snapshot of the overall changes month to month. 

BACKGROUND  

The use of temporary employees is allowed under Civil Service Rule 5 (Certification and 

Appointment) in recognition that standard Civil Service employment practices can be 

cumbersome when a time-sensitive assignment arises or existing resources do not fit a 

specific need. Pursuant to the Civil Service Rules, Section 5.06 governing temporary 

assignments, ELDE assignments may not exceed one year and TCSE assignments may not be 

“ongoing or repetitive.” 

 

 

 

 



HONORABLE CIVIL SERVICE BOARD 

Subject: Temporary Employees 

Date: February 20, 2020  Page 2  

   

    

STATUS OF NONCOMPLIANT ASSIGNMENTS 

Of the eighty-nine (89) temporary assignments, we are reporting zero (0) in this period as out 

of compliance with Rule 5.06.  

RECOMMENDATION   

Staff recommends that the Civil Service Board accept the monthly report on temporary 

assignments for Temporary Contract Service Employees (TCSEs) and Exempt Limited 

Duration Employees (ELDEs).  

 

For questions regarding this report, please contact Human Resources Manager Greg Preece at 

(510) 238-7334. 

 

Attachments: 

A. TCSE/ELDE Report: For Payroll Reporting January 24, 2020. 

B. TCSE/ELDE Compliance Trend Chart.  



CIVIL SERVICE BOARD

FEBRUARY 2020 MONTHLY REPORT OF TCSE/ELDE ASSIGNMENTS

DEPT LAST_NAME FIRST_NAME ORG JOB_DATE TYPE HOURS NOTES STATUS

CLOSED THIS PERIOD (6)

DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION Saephan Andrew 35223 - Great Streets Maintenance Asphalt 11/16/2019 TCSE 147.5
Temporary Assistance in Road Pavement 

Program COMPLIANT

FINANCE Agaba Rogers 08411 - Revenue Administration Unit 8/10/2019 TCSE 840

Temporary support to assist with multiple 

complex departmental projects COMPLIANT

FINANCE Austin Shawnita 08441 - Revenue Collections Unit 4/20/2019 TCSE 597.75

Temporary assistance to maintain operations 

in the Liens unit during contract negotiations COMPLIANT

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Geary Theodore 46111 - Administrative Services 8/3/2019 TCSE 359.5

Temporary project to analyze, design, 

develop and test software enhancements to 

the Oracle Advanced Benefits System. 
COMPLIANT

POLICE Long Jacqueline 108630 - Ceasefire 12/31/2018 ELDE
Temporary assistance to complete the OPD 

Ceasefire Unit Project
COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Rodgers Bobbie 30112 - Public Works Administration 5/18/2019 TCSE

Temporary special projects to support the 

expansion of the Oakland 311 Call Center

COMPLIANT

NEW THIS PERIOD (4)

DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION Mount Doug 35247 - Mobility Management 2/5/2020 TCSE 0
Temporary Assistance in the Off-Street 

Parking Program COMPLIANT

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEV. Durades Arlecia 89929 - Housing Development 1/11/2020 ELDE
Assistance with projects in the Housing 

Development Division. COMPLIANT

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEV. Kennedy Vanessa 89929 - Housing Development 1/25/2020 ELDE
Assistance with projects in the Housing 

Development Division. COMPLIANT

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEV. Perez-Pacheco Guadalupe 89939 - Municipal Lending 1/11/2020 ELDE Assistance in the Housing Resource Center COMPLIANT

COMPLIANT (85)

CITY ADMINISTRATOR Han Delphina 02491 - Oakland Animal Services 3/9/2019 TCSE 675

Temporary assistance to support the 

volunteer program in Oakland Animal 

services COMPLIANT

CITY ADMINISTRATOR Kennedy Christopher 02112 - Communications and Media 3/25/2019 ELDE

Temporary assistance in the development 

and improvement of the City Website, 

external communications and community 

outreach COMPLIANT

CITY ADMINISTRATOR King-Bailey Colin 65111 - Public Ethics Commission 6/17/2019 TCSE 0

Temporary project to assist with creating 

digital campaign finance, ethics, and lobbyist 

data tools for Public Ethics Commission COMPLIANT

CITY ADMINISTRATOR Furr Christina 02491- Oakland Animal Services 12/28/2019 TCSE 146

Temporary Assistance in AOS Shelter 

Operations.

COMPLIANT

CITY ADMINISTRATOR Gibson Mercedes 02112 - Communications & Media 5/4/2019 TCSE 8

Temporary project to assist in the 

development of the City's website and 

community outreach, etc. COMPLIANT

CITY ADMINISTRATOR Mufarreh Chris 02491- Oakland Animal Services 4/23/2018

TCSE/       

Annuitant 315

Temporary on-call Manager 

COMPLIANT

CITY ADMINISTRATOR Ruelas Brenda 2113 - Communications & Media 4/20/2019 TCSE 844.25

Temporary project to assist in the 

development of the City's website and 

community outreach, etc. COMPLIANT

CITY ADMINISTRATOR Silverman Eva 02112 - Communications and Media 3/18/2019 TCSE 315

Temporary assistance in the development 

and improvement of the City Website, 

external communications and community 

outreach COMPLIANT

CITY ADMINISTRATOR Woodall-Johnson Marissa 02491 - Oakland Animal Services 4/6/2019 TCSE 233.5
Temporary relief veterinarian support at the 

Oakland animal shelter. COMPLIANT

CITY ADMINISTRATOR Umapathy Kiran 02112 - Communications & Media 6/26/2019 TCSE 11

Temporary project to assist in the 

development of the City's website and 

community outreach, etc. COMPLIANT



CIVIL SERVICE BOARD

FEBRUARY 2020 MONTHLY REPORT OF TCSE/ELDE ASSIGNMENTS

DEPT LAST_NAME FIRST_NAME ORG JOB_DATE TYPE HOURS NOTES STATUS

CITY ATTORNEY Ericsson Kristin 04111 - City Attorney Administration 1/14/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 524

Temporary Support for Legal Administrative 

Assistant out on leave COMPLIANT

CITY AUDITOR Edmonds Michael 07111 - City Auditor Unit 1/12/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 651

Assistant City Auditor; temporary assistance 

in peer review preparation and training staff

COMPLIANT

CITY COUNCIL Lopes Joyce 00011  - Council Administration Unit 10/4/2016

TCSE/       

Annuitant 88.5
Filling in for Council staff out on leave

COMPLIANT

DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION Aghamir Shahram 35219 - Dept of Transportation 10/5/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 396

Temporary project to manage the Highway 

Bridge Program Projects, Railroad Safety 

Improvement Project, and Stairs and Paths 

Program. 
COMPLIANT

DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION Calabrese Christine 35232 - Street Lighting Engineer 2/9/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 495.5

Temporary assistance to complete AC 

Transit Bus Rapid Transit project. 

COMPLIANT

DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION Corona Jr. Manuel 35214 - Complete Clean Streets 1/26/2019 ELDE

Spec under development for Transportation 

Planner series; duties not yet fully defined.

COMPLIANT

DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION Kattchee Susan 35241 - Safe Streets Administration 12/15/2018
TCSE/       

Annuitant 510.25

Temporary assignment to support and train 

section leaders, assist with budget planning 

and implementation for 2019-2021 COMPLIANT

DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION Neary Michael 35211 - Department of Transportation 5/21/2018

TCSE/       

Annuitant 287.5

Temporary assistance to develop, manage 

and implement the GoPort Program 

(transportation improvement) COMPLIANT

ECONOMIC & WORKFORCE 

DEVELOPMENT Duhon-Kelley Coco 85511- Cultural Arts & Marketing 7/13/2019 TCSE 703

Temporary assistance to help establish more 

efficient systems in the grant contracting 

process. COMPLIANT

ECONOMIC & WORKFORCE 

DEVELOPMENT Kidder Sarah 85511 - Cultural Arts & Marketing 6/17/2017 TCSE 65.75

Temporary project support in the Film Office. 

COMPLIANT

ECONOMIC & WORKFORCE 

DEVELOPMENT Lane Patrick 85221 - Project Implementation: Staffing 11/2/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 94.5 Assist with EWD Project Implementation COMPLIANT

FINANCE Bhatnagar Amit 08211 - Accounting Administration Unit 1/8/2018 TCSE 638

Temporary project to develop Oracle 

Business Intelligence Enterprise Edition and 

Oracle Business Intelligence Applications. COMPLIANT

FINANCE Duperval Shela 08421 - Revenue Audit Unit 2/13/2019 TCSE   615
Temporary receptionist assistance during 

high volume tax renewal season COMPLIANT

FINANCE Gomez Jimena 08741- Treasury Payroll 3/11/2019 ELDE

Temporary assistance with special projects 

and essential functions in the Payroll unit

COMPLIANT

FINANCE Gonzales Christopher 08921 - Parking Citation Assistance Center 9/7/2019 ELDE

Temporary assignment to assist with 

Receptionist duties in the Parking Citations 

Assistance Center. Recruitment is underway. COMPLIANT

FINANCE Hatcher, Jr. Lucius 08222  - General Ledger 12/14/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 87.5

Temporary assistance with special projects 

and essential functions in Finance 

Department. COMPLIANT

FINANCE Roberts Jackson Tanisha 08921 - Parking Citation Assistance Center 7/13/2019 TCSE 585

Urgent temporary assistance processing 

backlog in the parking citation assistance 

center

COMPLIANT

FINANCE Shahzada Irfan 08411 - Revenue Administration 9/19/2019 ELDE

Temporary critical assistance to maintain 

operations in the Accounting dept. 

COMPLIANT

FINANCE Smith Starr 103242 - Parking Citation Assistance Center 1/18/2019 ELDE

Urgent temporary assignment on special 

projects in support of Public Service Reps

COMPLIANT

FINANCE Stoker Barbara 08431 - Business Tax Unit 8/10/2019 TCSE 825.25

Temporary project to assist with new and on 

going back logged division work load

COMPLIANT

FINANCE Teshome Theodeross 08441 - Revenue Collections Unit 5/20/2019 ELDE

Temporary assistance to help create a 

database of leases in preparation for GASB 

87 implementation. 
COMPLIANT



CIVIL SERVICE BOARD

FEBRUARY 2020 MONTHLY REPORT OF TCSE/ELDE ASSIGNMENTS

DEPT LAST_NAME FIRST_NAME ORG JOB_DATE TYPE HOURS NOTES STATUS

FINANCE Treglown Donna 08111 - Finance/Controller 6/18/2018

TCSE/       

Annuitant 391.25

Temporary assistance to complete Capital 

projects and end of year fiscal 

reconciliations. COMPLIANT

FINANCE Woodard Phyllis 08741 - Treasury/Payroll Unit 9/6/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 454

Temporary project to help train new Senior 

HR Operations Technicians and assist with 

advanced level projects

COMPLIANT

FIRE Hellige Scott 20813 - Fire Boat 8/12/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 176

Temporary project to train current staff and 

possible expand the limited use of the Sea 

Wolf fire vessel to respond to emergency 
COMPLIANT

FIRE Hunt Michael 20110 - Fire Chief Unit 3/23/2019 ELDE

Temporary assignment to support the 

department on numerous special projects, 

including coordination of projects between 

various departments.
COMPLIANT

FIRE Kozak Rebecca 20110 - Fire Chief Unit 5/21/2018

TCSE/       

Annuitant 262

Temporary assistance developing staff and 

functions of the Office of the Chief of Fire 

manual and train Executive Assistant

COMPLIANT

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEV. Brady Ellen 89969 - Residential Rent Arbitration 6/15/2019 ELDE

Critical assistance with the City's Rent 

Arbitration program. COMPLIANT

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEV. Fa-Kaji Marguerita 89969 - Residential Rent Arbitration 12/14/2019 ELDE

Temporary Assistance as a Hearing Officer in 

the Rent Control Board COMPLIANT

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEV. Lothlen Brittni 89969 - Housing & Community Development 9/10/2019 ELDE

Temporary critical assistance to maintain 

operations in the Rent Adjustment Program

COMPLIANT

HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEV. Thompson Norma 89929 - Housing Development 4/17/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 252.5

Temporary 6 month assignment to help train 

staff as Housing Development Services 

Manager
COMPLIANT

HUMAN RESOURCES MGMT. Li Wei 05211 - Employment and Classification 8/26/2019 ELDE

Temporary project to integrate the Oracle 

benefits system. 

COMPLIANT

HUMAN RESOURCES MGMT. Look Daryl 05211 - Human Resources Management 9/24/2018

TCSE/       

Annuitant 453

Temporary staffing to support classification 

and recruitment needs for city operations

COMPLIANT

HUMAN SERVICES Breedlove Jaqueline 75231 - Multipurpose Senior Service Program 2/24/2018

TCSE/       

Annuitant 97.5

Provide training to new Case managers and 

complete procedural manual for future 

reference per funder's mandate. COMPLIANT

HUMAN SERVICES Bouey Martina 78235 - HS Central Office Administration 7/27/2019 ELDE

Critical support to the Assistant Human 

Services Director during transitional period COMPLIANT

HUMAN SERVICES Decuir Roslynn 78241  - Year Round Lunch Program Unit 5/23/2016 TCSE 0

PT Food Program Coordinator; intermittent, 

pending creation of PT class; HRM staff 

preparing salary ordinance amendment to 
COMPLIANT

HUMAN SERVICES Ho Kathy 78231 - HS Classroom & Seasonal 1/13/2018

TCSE/

Annuitant 501.5

Temporary Assistance as Head Start 

Substitute Teacher
COMPLIANT

HUMAN SERVICES Jew Jeanne 78199  - DHS Fiscal Unit 8/10/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 315.5

Temporary assistance to help train new hires

COMPLIANT

HUMAN SERVICES Shelton Susan 78411 - Community Housing Services 9/11/2017

TCSE/       

Annuitant 175
Temporary project: plan, facilitate and update 

Oakland Homeless Strategy COMPLIANT

HUMAN SERVICES Trist Sarah 78232 - Head Start - Central Office Program 12/7/2019 ELDE
Temporary Assistance in Head Start 

Administration COMPLIANT

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Williams Mheret 46121 - Reprographic Services 7/8/2019 ELDE

Temporary assignment to assist with critical 

reprographic projects 

COMPLIANT

LIBRARY Lopez Jane 61132 - Children's Services/Youth Room 5/4/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 110
Temporary assignment to help fill staffing 

gaps at Main Library. COMPLIANT

LIBRARY Willhalm Laurie 61132 - Children Services/Youth Room 4/7/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 597.5

Temporary assignment to help fill staffing 

gaps during Library expanded hours 

(Children's Librarian)

COMPLIANT

PLANNING & BUILDING Borjon Agustin 84229 - Zoning 2/27/2017

TCSE/       

Annuitant 608

Time-limited project; temp assistance with 

backlog of permits

COMPLIANT



CIVIL SERVICE BOARD

FEBRUARY 2020 MONTHLY REPORT OF TCSE/ELDE ASSIGNMENTS

DEPT LAST_NAME FIRST_NAME ORG JOB_DATE TYPE HOURS NOTES STATUS

PLANNING & BUILDING Lehmer-Chang Aaron 84111 - Admin: Planning & Building 6/1/2019 ELDE

Temporary project to support the planning, 

coordinating, implementation and evaluation 

of external web publications. 

COMPLIANT

PLANNING & BUILDING Mason Melvin 84412 - Admin: Building Inspection 4/6/2019 ELDE

Temporary assistance to process building 

permit inspections, extensions, and other 

high priority projects COMPLIANT

PLANNING & BUILDING Moriarty William 84454 - Inspections: Neighborhood Preservation 12/28/2019 ELDE

Temporary assistance in the Inspection 

Division

COMPLIANT

PLANNING & BUILDING Neri  Kevin 84412 - Admin: Building Inspection 4/6/2019 ELDE

Temporary assistance to process building 

permit inspections, extensions, and other 

high priority projects COMPLIANT

PLANNING & BUILDING Palmer Ken 84451 - Inspections: Commercial Building 3/23/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 392

Temporary assistance  with back-log of 

inspections. COMPLIANT

PLANNING & BUILDING Stanley Brandon 84412 - Admin: Building Inspection 4/7/2019 ELDE

Temporary assistance to process building 

permit inspections, extensions, and other 

high priority projects COMPLIANT

POLICE Bazile Luc 106210 - Police Personnel 1/12/2019 ELDE

Temporary, urgent support as departmental 

Mail Courier; duties not yet fully defined

COMPLIANT

POLICE Chambers Paul 101110 - Office of Chief - Administration 11/30/2019 ELDE
Temporary Project Assistance in Chief/Admin 

Division COMPLIANT

POLICE Covington Donald 106610 - Background & Recruiting 4/23/2018

TCSE/       

Annuitant 193

Per MOU Agreement; TCSE/  Annuitant 

supporting OPD backgrounding.

COMPLIANT

POLICE Gray Steve 106610 - Background & Recruiting 7/17/2017

TCSE/       

Annuitant 60

Per MOU Agreement; TCSE/  Annuitant 

supporting OPD backgrounding.
COMPLIANT

POLICE Hicks Mark 106610 - Background & Recruiting 9/23/2013

TCSE/       

Annuitant 86

Per MOU Agreement; TCSE/  Annuitant 

supporting OPD backgrounding.

COMPLIANT

POLICE Johnson Carmen 106610 - Background & Recruiting 1/18/2014

TCSE/       

Annuitant 690

Per MOU Agreement; TCSE/  Annuitant 

supporting OPD backgrounding.
COMPLIANT

POLICE Lighten Ronald 106610 - Background & Recruiting 9/23/2013

TCSE/       

Annuitant 693

Per MOU Agreement; TCSE/  Annuitant 

supporting OPD backgrounding. COMPLIANT

POLICE Mestas Alfred 100610 - Background & Recruiting 1/27/2018

TCSE/       

Annuitant 0

Per MOU Agreement; TCSE/  Annuitant 

supporting OPD backgrounding.

COMPLIANT

POLICE Pressnell Edward 100610 - Background & Recruiting 9/23/2013

TCSE/       

Annuitant 502.5

Per MOU Agreement; TCSE/  Annuitant 

supporting OPD backgrounding.

COMPLIANT

POLICE Quintero Joseph 106610 - Background & Recruiting 10/12/2013

TCSE/       

Annuitant 0

Per MOU Agreement; TCSE/  Annuitant 

supporting OPD backgrounding.

COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Casilang Chris 30541 - Equipment Services Administration 4/20/2019 TCSE 930

Temporary assistance with excess work load 

in the Heavy Equipment shop. COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Chambers Jason 30541 - Equipment Services 9/21/2019 TCSE 671.5

Temporary assistance to repair essential 

vehicles utilized for emergency services by 

the Police, Fire and Public Works depts. COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Chavez Humberto 30542 - Equipment Services 9/10/2019 TCSE 114.5

Temporary assistance to repair essential 

vehicles utilized for emergency services by 

the Police, Fire and Public Works depts. COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Clark Brazile 30683 - Environmental Services - Environment Remediation 3/9/2019 ELDE

Temporary assignment to the "Environmental 

Stewardship Team" to help administer Earth 

Day, Creek To Bay and MLD Days of COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Hernandez Raul 30244 - Sanitary Sewer Design 3/25/2019 ELDE

Temporary assignment to assist with the 

City's Private Sewer Lateral (PSL) program. 
COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Jones Sabrina 30131 - Public Works Administration 5/18/2019 ELDE

Temporary project to manage Oakland 

311Call center  transition to a shared-service 

model and manage requests from outside 

agencies COMPLIANT



CIVIL SERVICE BOARD

FEBRUARY 2020 MONTHLY REPORT OF TCSE/ELDE ASSIGNMENTS

DEPT LAST_NAME FIRST_NAME ORG JOB_DATE TYPE HOURS NOTES STATUS

PUBLIC WORKS Kelly Kara 30241 - Engineering Design 9/7/2019 TCSE 483.5

Temporary assistance to help administer  the 

Watershed and Stormwater Management 

programs COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Kuvetakis Joseph 30541 - Equipment Services Division 1/2/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 796

Temporary assistance with maintenance and 

repairs of specialized vehicles in the Heavy 

Equipment Shop COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Lai Jimmy 30541 - Equipment Services 9/21/2019 TCSE 672

Temporary assistance to repair essential 

vehicles utilized for emergency services by 

the Police, Fire and Public Works depts. 

COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Lew Mi Kyung 30234 - Facilities Planning & Development 2/23/2019 ELDE

Temporary support with delay or services and 

assist with back-log of important projects  

COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Nguyen Hoang 30542 - Equipment Services 9/22/2019 TCSE 692

Temporary assistance to repair essential 

vehicles utilized for emergency services by 

the Police, Fire and Public Works depts. 

COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Pierce Brittany 30551 - Facilities Administration 10/5/2019 TCSE 545

Temporary appointment to assist with 

backlogged, complex clerical and admin 

support duties COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Pschirrer Kelly 30533 - Sewer System Maintenance 3/9/2019 ELDE

Special project in the planning and execution 

of the "Public Works University" - duties  not 

yet fully defined. COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Smith Ayana 30541 - Equipment Services Administration 3/23/2019 TCSE 910

Temporary assignment to assist in the 

specialized Equipment Services Unit
COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Vargas Abel 30542 - Equipment Services 7/1/2019

TCSE/       

Annuitant 728

Temporary assistance to repair essential 

vehicles utilized for emergency services by 

the Police, Fire and Public Works depts. 

COMPLIANT

PUBLIC WORKS Weed Jonelyn 30111 - Director & Human Resources Unit 12/16/2017

TCSE/       

Annuitant 137
Temporary support to help develop and 

facilitate Department Strategic Action Plan COMPLIANT

Non-Compliant (0)



TCSE-ELDE Report

February 20, 2020 Civil Service Board Meeting
ATTACHMENT B

9 9 9
11 11 11 11 11 11 11

8 8 8

71

75

82

86 87
89

87 86

90 91

86

92
89

0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Feb'19 Mar'19 Apr'19 May'19 Jun'19 Jul'19 Aug'19 Sep'19 Oct'19 Nov'19 Dec'19 Jan'20 Feb'20

TCSE/ELDE Rules Compliance

OPD Annuitants TOTAL Non-Compliant

Data as of January 24, 2020



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KOFF & ASSOCIATES 
 
GEORG S. KRAMMER 
Chief Executive Officer 
 
2835 Seventh Street 
Berkeley, CA 94710 
www.KoffAssociates.com 
 
gkrammer@koffassociates.com 
Tel:  510.658.5633 
Fax:  510.652.5633 

January 24, 2020 

Point Factor Analysis –

Classification Comparison – 

Information Technology 

Occupational Grouping 
 

Draft Report 

 
Port of Oakland/City of Oakland 

http://www.koffassociates.com/
mailto:gkrammer@koffassociates.com


 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Occupational Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 

 
 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................. 1 

Background ............................................................................................................................................... 1 

Classification Comparison Study Process ......................................................................................... 1 

Occupational Groupings ........................................................................................................................... 1 

Point Factor Analysis ................................................................................................................................ 2 

FINDINGS .................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Comparison Classifications: Information Technology Occupational Group ............................................ 3 

Comparability Scoring: Information Technology Group .......................................................................... 6 

Next Steps ................................................................................................................................................. 9 

CONCLUSION .......................................................................................................................................... 10 

 

  



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

 
 

 

LIST OF TABLES 

Table 1. Occupational Groupings .............................................................................................................. 2 
Table 2. Port Classifications – Information Technology Grouping ....................................................... 4 
Table 3. City Classifications – Information Technology Grouping ........................................................ 4 
Table 4. Analysis Summary ....................................................................................................................... 6 
Table 5. Crosswalk of Similar Classifications .......................................................................................... 8 
Table 6. Potentially Similar Classifications .............................................................................................. 9 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendix I: Factor Evaluation System Description 

Appendix II: Classification Comparability Analysis 

 

 
 
 
 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

1 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Background 

In January 2016, the Port of Oakland (“Port”) contracted with Koff & Associates (“K&A”) to 
conduct a comparative classification study to compare approximately three hundred (300) of the 
Port’s classifications to approximately three hundred (300) classifications in the City of Oakland’s 
(“City”) classification system.  This classification review process was precipitated by the interest 
of the Civil Service Board in determining if the list of common classes found in Appendix B of the 
Personnel Manual of the Civil Service Board (also referred to as Civil Service Rules) has the 
potential of being expanded to include additional common classifications between the two 
classification systems.  

The goal of the comparison classification study is: 

 To analyze the Port of Oakland’s approximately three hundred (300) existing classifications 
through a comprehensive review of existing classification descriptions;  

 To analyze the City of Oakland’s approximately three hundred (300) corresponding 
classifications through a comprehensive review of existing classification descriptions; 

 To compare the Port’s and City’s classifications to determine if there are classifications within 
the respective agencies’ classification systems that are sufficiently similar in the nature and 
complexity of the duties performed, scope of responsibility, and qualifications required to be 
identified as common classifications in Appendix B of the Civil Service Rules. 

K&A proposed a rating system by which to assign scores to each classification in order to facilitate 
an objective numerical comparison of each of the Port’s classifications to the corresponding City 
classification.  The system utilizes six factors (identified and defined in the section of this report 
entitled “Point Factor Analysis”) on which to rate classifications and derive a numerical score for 
each.  At the direction of the Port and City, monthly salary and salary differential information has 
been included in this report for informational purposes, but were not used as a factor by which 
commonality was rated.   Following the Port, City, and Civil Service Board’s review of K&A’s 
proposed rating system, analysis commenced in January 2018. 

CLASSIFICATION COMPARISON STUDY PROCESS 

Occupational Groupings 

K&A employed the use of occupational groupings whereby classifications were grouped into 
categories based on bodies of work in order to identify which classifications may be performing 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

2 
 

the same or substantively similar work.  The occupational groupings and the approximate 
number of Port and City classes within each grouping can be found in Table 1. 

Table 1. Occupational Groupings 

Occupational Grouping Approximate 
Number of 

Port 
Classifications 

Approximate 
Number of 

City 
Classifications 

Human Resources Management 9 26 

General Administrative, Clerical and 
Office (including graphics and 
production) 

28 36 

Accounting and Budget 17 28 

Engineering, Architecture, Planning and 
Permitting 

45 33 

Information Technology 17 27 

Business and industry (including 
purchasing, contracts, marketing, 
workers’ compensation, property 
management and public affairs) 

20 14 

Inspection, Investigation, Enforcement, 
Compliance 

6 9 

Trades 37 52 

 

K&A was directed to analyze and report findings on the Accounting and Budget occupational 
grouping first, followed by periodic analysis and reporting on each of the remaining occupational 
groupings. 

Point Factor Analysis 

In order to develop a numerical score for each classification, K&A utilized the Factor Evaluation 
System (FES) to assign ratings to each classification based on the following six (6) factors: 

 Comparability – Based on the broad comparability of the first ten (10) duty statements in 
each classification specification. 

 Knowledge required – Measures the nature and extent of information or facts that an 
employee must understand to do acceptable work (e.g., steps, procedures, practices, 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

3 
 

rules, policies, theories, principles, and concepts) and the nature and extent of the skills 
needed to apply this knowledge.   

 Supervisory controls – The nature and extent of direct or indirect controls exercised by 
the supervisor, the employee’s responsibility, and the review of completed work.  
Controls are exercised by the supervisor in the way assignments are made, instructions 
are given to the employee, priorities and deadlines are set, and objectives and boundaries 
are defined. 

 Guidelines – The nature of guidelines and the judgment needed to apply them.  Guides 
used in occupations may include desk manuals, established procedures and policies, 
traditional practices, and refence materials.   

 Complexity – The nature, number, variety, and intricacy of tasks, steps, processes or 
methods in the work performed; the difficulty in identifying what needs to be done, and 
the difficulty and originality involved in performing the work. 

 Scope and Effect – The relationship between the nature of the work (i.e., the purpose, 
breadth, and depth of the assignment) and the effect of the work products or services 
both within and outside of the organization. 

Within each factor, there are several levels with defined criteria for each level and a 
corresponding point value.  A complete description of each factor along with the levels, criteria, 
and points are provided in Appendix I. 

Each classification was rated and assigned a score for each factor based on the information 
provided in the class specifications, and the individual factor scores were totaled to reach a final 
score for each classification.  Final scores for classifications with the same or similar titles in the 
Port and the City were compared to determine the likeness of the classifications.  Generally, 
classifications with scores within ten percent (10%) of each other are considered to have 
significant overlap in function, roles, and responsibilities and are sufficiently similar to be 
identified as common classifications. 

FINDINGS 

Comparison Classifications: Information Technology 

Occupational Grouping 

Tables 2 and 3 display the Port and City classifications, respectively, that are categorized in the 
Information Technology occupational grouping.  Each of the Port’s classifications was evaluated 
to determine whether there is a potential comparison classification at the City, and the findings 
of this evaluation are included in the following tables. 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

4 
 

Table 2. Port Classifications – Information Technology Grouping 

 

Table 3. City Classifications – Information Technology Grouping 

City Classification Title Potential Comparable Class – Port 

Computer Operations Supervisor MIS Customer Services Supervisor 

Computer Operator Port Technical Support Specialist II 

Senior Computer Operator No Comparable Classification 

Database Administrator No Comparable Classification 

Port Classification Title Potential Comparable Class – City 

Information Technology Business Analyst I No Comparable Classification 

Information Technology Business Analyst II Systems Analyst II 

Business Systems Analyst Systems Analyst II 

Land Records Programmer Spatial Analyst III 

Maintenance Management Systems 
Coordinator 

No Comparable Classification 

MIS Customer Services Supervisor -Computer Operations Supervisor 
-Information Systems Administrator 

Port Principal Programmer/Analyst Information Systems Administrator 

Port Programmer/Analyst No Comparable Classification 

Port Senior Programmer/Analyst Systems Analyst III 

Port Systems Planning Analyst Systems Analyst II 

Port Technical Support Analyst I No comparable classification 

Port Technical Support Analyst II No Comparable Classification 
 

Port Technical Support Analyst III No Comparable Classification 
 

Port Technical Support Analyst IV No Comparable Classification 

Port Technical Support Specialist I Help Desk Specialist 

Port Technical Support Specialist II -Help Desk Specialist 
-Computer Operator 

Port Technical Support Specialist III No Comparable Classification 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

5 
 

City Classification Title Potential Comparable Class – Port 

Database Analyst II No Comparable Classification 

Database Analyst III No Comparable Classification 

Electronics Supervisor No Comparable Classification 

Help Desk Specialist -Port Technical Support Specialist I 
-Port Technical Support Specialist II 

Information Systems Administrator -Port Principal Programmer/Analyst 
-MIS Customer Services Supervisor 

Information Systems Supervisor* No Comparable Classification 

Microsystems Systems Specialist I* No Comparable Classification 

Microsystems Systems Specialist II* No Comparable Classification 

Operations Shift Supervisor No Comparable Classification 

Spatial Data Analyst III Land Records Programmer 

Spatial Database Analyst III No Comparable Classification 

Systems Analyst I* No Comparable Classification 

Systems Analyst II -Business Systems Analyst 
-IT Business Analyst II 
-Port Systems Planning Analyst 

Systems Analyst III No Comparable Classification 

Systems Programmer II No Comparable Classification 

Systems Programmer III No Comparable Classification 

Telecommunication Systems Engineer No Comparable Classification 

Telecommunications Electrician* No Comparable Classification 

Senior Telecommunications Electrician* No Comparable Classification 

Telecommunications Supervisor No Comparable Classification 

Telecommunications Technician No Comparable Classification 

Telephone Services Specialist No Comparable Classification 

Web Specialist No Comparable Classification 

 
* indicates that the classification title is included on the list of the City’s classifications; however, there is no 
classification description available for evaluation. 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

6 
 

Following the identification of potential comparable classifications, we conducted a 
comprehensive evaluation of the classification specifications and rated each classification using 
the FES criteria and point values.  Once point values were established for each classification, the 
values for each potential comparable class within the Port and City classification systems were 
compared to determine likeness between the classifications. 

In some cases, we identified more than one potential match based on class title, and in those 
instances, we conducted a cursory review to determine if scoring comparison between the 
classifications was appropriate.  In some instances, the cursory review revealed that a deeper 
comparison was not necessary (e.g., one class may be identified as entry level and another as 
journey level and qualification requirements were consistent with the level identified, in which 
case comparison scoring is not necessary).  In other instances, cursory review did not eliminate 
the need for a deeper comparison and therefore a scoring comparison was conducted. 

Comparability Scoring: Information Technology Group 

Detailed scoring information for each classification can be found in Appendix II of this report.  
Table 4 provides a summary of the findings. 

Table 4. Analysis Summary 

City Classification Score Port Classification Score 
Point 
Value 

Differential 

Percentage 
Differential 

Systems Analyst II 1700 Business Systems 
Analyst 

1700 0 0% 

Systems Analyst II 1700 IT Business Analyst II 1850 150 8.8% 

Systems Analyst II 1700 Port Systems Planning 
Analyst 

1850 150 8.8% 

Systems Analyst III 2100 Port Senior 
Programmer/Analyst 

2100 0 0% 

Help Desk 
Specialist 

1150 Port Technical 
Support Specialist I 

850 300 35% 

Help Desk 
Specialist 

1150 Port Technical 
Support Specialist II 

1100 50 4.5% 

Computer 
Operations 
Supervisor 

2000 MIS Customer 
Support Supervisor 

2175 175  8.8% 

Computer 
Operator 

850 Port Technical 
Support Specialist I 

850 0 0% 

Spatial Data 
Analyst III 

1650 Land Records 
Programmer 

1300 350 26.9% 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

7 
 

Information 
Systems 
Administrator 

2175 Port Principal 
Programmer/Analyst 

2175 0 0% 

Information 
Systems 
Administrator 

2175 MIS Customer 
Services Supervisor 

2175 0 0% 

 

While based on title alone it may appear that some classifications ought to be comparable, upon 
initial review, the duty statements did not align sufficiently to consider the classifications 
comparable for scoring purposes.  Using the FES model developed for the study, there were not 
enough duty statements in common to warrant scoring.  Given that the scoring methodology was 
solely based on the job descriptions alone, there may be more information to consider that was 
not available for this study.   

Overall, the City’s information technology classifications list duty statements that are more 
specialized and specific to certain functions, many of which are outdated.  For example, the 
Computer Operator lists duty statements describing changing tapes for backup functions.  Most 
jurisdictions no longer use tapes for backup and have moved towards server-based backup and 
disaster recovery methodologies. While the Port’s classifications appear more up to date, there 
are rapid changes in technology and systems such that elements of the Port’s specifications 
appeared possibly outdated as well. 

In general, finding commonality amongst City and Port classifications that at face value, based on 
the class description alone, appear to have sufficiently similar purpose, scope, and complexity, 
proved to be challenging because the duty statements did not easily align.  Therefore, several 
classifications, which may in fact be sufficiently similar, were deemed to have no comparable 
classification because the duty statements were not similar enough to be considered 
comparable.  Analysis of supplementary documentation (e.g., incumbent questionnaires, 
position control documents, organization charts, etc.) may be warranted to determine if there 
are in fact no additional comparable classifications. 

In general, those classifications with a ten percent (10%) or less differential between scores are 
considered sufficiently similar and may be identified as common classes. 

Table 5 provides a crosswalk of the City and Port classifications which we believe are sufficiently 
similar to be identified as common classes based on the final scores of each. 

 

 

 

 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

8 
 

Table 5. Crosswalk of Similar Classifications 

City 
Classification 

Monthly 
Salary 

Port Classification Maximum 
Monthly 

Salary 

PFA Score 
Differential 

Salary 
Differential 

Systems 
Analyst II 

$8,497 Business Systems 
Analyst 

Not available 0% Not available 

Systems 
Analyst II 

$8,497 Port Systems 
Planning Analyst 

$11,782 8.8% 38.7% 

Systems 
Analyst III 

$10,327 Port Senior 
Programmer/Analyst 

$11,949 0% 15.7% 

Help Desk 
Specialist 

$5,909 Port Technical 
Support Specialist II 

$10,153 4.5% 71.8% 

Computer 
Operator 

$5,321 Port Technical 
Support Specialist I 

Not available 0% Not available 

Computer 
Operations 
Supervisor 

$9,367 MIS Customer 
Services Supervisor 

$14,237 0% 52% 

Information 
Systems 
Administrator 

$12,554 Port Principal 
Programmer/Analyst 

$13,950 0% 11% 

Information 
Systems 
Administrator 

$12,554 MIS Customer 
Services Supervisor 

$14,237 0% 13.4% 

  

It is important to note that the analysis for this study is confined to the content of the 
classification descriptions and did not include obtaining information from classification 
incumbents or the assumption of duties and responsibilities outside of that which is provided in 
the classification description.  To this end, Table 6 provides a list of classifications that we believe 
are likely sufficiently similar to be identified as common classes, but the classification descriptions 
are written such that the scores for the classifications do not reflect this similarity. 

 

 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

9 
 

Table 6. Potentially Similar Classifications 

City 
Classification 

Port Classification Discussion 

Spatial Data 
Analyst III 
($10,736) 

Land Records 
Programmer ($9,865) 

The Land Records Programmer is responsible for 
computerized Geographic Information System 
programs which house spatial data.  Similarly, the 
Spatial Data Analyst is responsible for systems 
requiring spatial data.  Both classifications have 
substantially similar purpose; however, the 
supervisory control and knowledge level may be 
overstated for the City’s position resulting in the 
26.9% difference in scoring. 

Next Steps 

It is our assessment that the Port and the City can implement the addition of those classification 
pairings with a differential of five percent (5%) or less to Appendix B of the Civil Service Rules 
based on information provided in the classification specification.  These classifications can be 
found in Table 7. 

Table 7. Sufficiently Similar Classifications 

City Classification Port Classification 

Systems Analyst II Business Systems Analyst 

Systems Analyst III Port Senior Programmer/Analyst 

Help Desk Specialist Port Technical Support Specialist II 

Computer Operator Port Technical Support Specialist I 

Information Systems Administrator -Port Principal Programmer/Analyst 

-MIS Customer Services Supervisor 

 

We recommend further analysis of the classifications listed in Table 6 to determine the similarity 
between the classifications based on what we believe to be potentially inaccurate information in 
the classification description as it relates to the supervisory controls and duty statements of the 
classes. 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

10 
 

CONCLUSION 
It has been a pleasure working with Port on this critical project.  Once you have had the 
opportunity to review this draft report, please let us know if you have questions or need 
clarification on any of the information contained herein. 

 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
Koff & Associates  
 

 
Georg Krammer 
Chief Executive Officer 
 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix I 
 

Factor Evaluation System Description 
  



1 | P a g e  

 

Port of Oakland Classification Equivalency Study 

 

Study Goal 

 Determine the extent of documented differences between job classifications in the City of 
Oakland and the counterpart classification in the Port of Oakland. 

 Articulate differences in a manner which can be recognized and evaluated by multiple 
stakeholders including unions and the Civil Service Commission. 

o Whole job narrative would be complicated and less likely to be accepted; would be open 
to multiple challenges which would be difficult to respond to. 

o Quantitative analysis may be more acceptable to all stakeholders provided there is a 
validated basis to the analysis. 

 Would still be open to challenge, but factor comparability can be more readily 
communicated than whole job narrative. 

 Port wishes to have an evaluation of direct comparability of duties and statements within the 
classifications specifications weighted heavily in the process. 

 

Study Approach/Broad Based/Factor Based 

 Broad based – measure comparability of duty statements within the classification specifications 
to determine what percentage are sufficiently similar 

o Involves an interpretation of statements and conclusions as their comparability 

 Factor based – use the Federal Government’s Factor Evaluation System (FES) as the basis for 
evaluating specific factors which are key to determining compensability within the Federal 
System, and which can also be used to evaluate the “likeness” of jobs. 

o  Factors will need to be applied to content of the classification specifications; thus the 
evaluation is more limited to classification content which can be used to measure these 
factors 

Study Challenges/Pros and Cons 

 Content of classification specifications may be difficult to work with if they are inaccurately 

written or do not provide strong insights in the nature and level of work assigned to the 

classification. 

 Some factors (e.g. Guidelines) will require consultants to make assumptions on the use of desk 

manuals, SOP’s, professional practices consistent with either industry standard or best practices. 

 Consultants will need to make judgment calls on aspects of the class specs (e.g. when using ten 

duties, and there are two similar duties in the top ten, may increase the level to eleven) 

 Consultants will need to be consistent in factor evaluation, even if it is clear that the 

classification specification is incorrect (e.g. level of supervision received is higher than one 

would expect) 

o Koff and Associates can call out these differences. 



2 | P a g e  

 

 Rater bias/consistency among multiple factors 

o Koff and Associates will use a norming process to mitigate this 

 Quantitative analysis can bring more validity to the process 

 Port and City should consider how/whether this data will be communicated and what overall 

impact it will have on public and employee perception of work and pay equity in the City and 

Port. 

  



3 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Factor Evaluation Framework 

Factors Based upon the Federal Factor Evaluation System (FES) used for General Schedule Occupations 

– Professional, Administrative, Technical and Clerical 

Factors to be Evaluated  

 Comparability of Duties and Responsibilities (Not used in FES) 

 Knowledge Required by the Position 

 Supervisory Controls (RECEIVED NOT EXERCISED) 

 Guidelines 

 Complexity 

 Scope and Effect 

 

FES Factors Not Used 

 Personal Contacts 

 Purpose of Contacts 

 Physical Demands 

 Work Environment 

 Supervisory – this measurement is used in a different scale for supervisory and management 

positions- would require knowledge beyond that which is in the classification specification; 

however, we will identify for each class what type of supervision, if any, is exercised, but will not 

measure it.   Since we are comparing like classes, it is unlikely that lack of a numerical value will 

impact the outcome. 

  



4 | P a g e  

 

City of Oakland/Port of Oakland Comparability of Duties and Responsibilities 

 

Based Upon Broad Comparability First Ten Duty Statements in Class Specification 

 

Level Measure Points Comments 

Comp-1 Two (2) of ten statements are sufficiently 
similar as to be comparable  

50 Same points as Level 1 of 
Knowledge Matrix 

Comp-2 Four (4) of ten statements are sufficiently 
similar as to be comparable 

350 Same points as Level 3 of 
Knowledge Matrix 

Comp-3 Six (6) of ten statements are sufficiently 
similar as to be comparable 

750 Same points as Level 5 of 
Knowledge Matrix 

Comp-4 Eight (8) of ten statements are sufficiently 
similar as to be comparable 

1250 Same points as Level 7of 
Knowledge Matrix 

Comp-5 Ten (10) of ten statements are sufficiently 
similar as to be comparable 

1850 Same points as Level 9 of 
Knowledge Matrix 

 

 Sufficiently similar means that, although the duties may be written differently, a reasonable 

conclusion can be drawn that the statements are comparable, based upon the intent of the 

overall statements. 

 Requires an objective interpretation, but may be perceived as subjective. 



5 | P a g e  

 

FES Factor 1 - Knowledge Required by the Position 

Measures the nature and extent of information or facts that a worker must understand to do acceptable 

work, e.g., steps, procedures, practices, rules, policies, theories, principles and concepts, and the nature 

and extent of the skills needed to apply this knowledge.  To be used as a basis for selecting a level under 

this factor, a knowledge must be required and applied. 

Level Description Points 

1-1 Knowledge of simple, routine or repetitive tasks or operations that typically 
include following step-by-step instructions and require little or no previous 
training or experience; 

OR 
Skill to operate simple equipment or equipment that operates repetitively and 
requires little or no previous training or experience; 

OR 
Equivalent knowledge and skill. 

50 

1-2 Knowledge of basic or commonly used rules, procedures or operations that 
typically require some previous training or experience; 

OR 
Basic skill to operate equipment requiring some previous training or experience, 
such as keyboard equipment; 

OR 
Equivalent knowledge and skill. 

200 

1-3 Knowledge of a body of standardized rules, procedures and operations that 
require considerable training and experience to perform the full range of 
standard clerical assignments and resolve recurring problems; 

OR 
Skill acquired through considerable training and experience, to operate and 
adjust varied equipment for purposes such as performing numerous 
standardized tests or operations; 

OR 
Equivalent knowledge and skill. 

350 
 

1-4 Knowledge of an extensive body of rules, procedures or operations that require 
extended training and experience to perform a wide variety of interrelated or 
non-standard procedural assignments and resolve a wide range of problems;  

OR 
Practical knowledge of standard procedures in a technical field, requiring 
extended training or experience, to perform such work as adapting equipment 
when this requires consideration of the functioning characteristics of equipment; 
interpreting results of tests based on previous experience and observations 
(rather than directly reading instruments or other measures); or extracting 
information from various sources when this requires considering the applicability 
of the information and characteristics and quality of the sources; 

OR 
Equivalent knowledge and skill. 

550 

1-5 Knowledge (such as would be acquired through pertinent education, 
experience, training or independent study), of basic principles, concepts, and 
methodology of a professional or administrative occupation, and skill in  

750 



6 | P a g e  

 

Level Description Points 

applying this knowledge in carrying out elementary assignments, operations, or 
procedures; 

OR 
In addition to the practical knowledge of standards 1-4, practical knowledge of 
technical methods to perform assignments such as carrying out limited projects 
that involve use of specialized complicated techniques; 

OR 
Equivalent knowledge and skill. 

1-6 Knowledge of the principles, concepts and methodology of a professional or 
administrative occupation as described in Level 1-5 that has either been (a) 
supplemented by skill gained through job experience to permit independent 
performance of recurring assignments, or (b) supplemented by expanded 
professional or administrative knowledge gained through relevant education or 
experience, that has provided skill in carrying out assignments, operations and 
procedures that are significantly more difficult and complex than those covered 
by level 1-5; 

OR 
Practical knowledge of a wide range of technical methods, principles and 
practices similar to a narrow area of a professional field; and skill in applying 
this knowledge to such assignments as the design and planning of difficult, but 
well precedented projects; 

OR 
Equivalent knowledge and skill. 

950 

1-7 Knowledge of a wide range of concepts, principles and practices of a 
professional or administrative occupation, such as would be gained through 
extended study or experience, and skill in applying this knowledge to difficult 
and complex work assignments; 

OR 
A comprehensive, intensive, practical knowledge of a technical field, and skill in 
applying this knowledge to the development of new methods, approaches or 
procedures. 

OR 
Equivalent knowledge and skill. 

1,250 

1-8 Mastery of a professional or administrative field to: 

 Apply experimental theories and new developments to problems not 
susceptible to treatment by accepted methods; 

OR 

 Make decisions or recommendations significantly changing, 
interpreting, or developing important public policies or programs; 

OR 
Equivalent knowledge and skill. 

1,550 

1-9 Mastery of a professional field to generate and develop new hypotheses and 
theories; 

OR 
Equivalent knowledge and skill. 

1,850 

 



7 | P a g e  

 

FES Factor 2 - Supervisory Controls 

Supervisory controls cover the nature and extent of direct or indirect controls exercised by the 

supervisor, the employee’s responsibility and the review of completed work.  Controls are exercised by 

the supervisor in the way assignments are made, instructions are given to the employee, priorities and 

deadlines are set, and objectives and boundaries are defined.   

Responsibility of the employee depends on the extent to which the employee is expected to develop the 

sequence and timing of various aspects of the work, to modify or recommend modification of 

instructions, and to participate in establishing the priorities and defining objectives.  The degree of 

review of completed work depends on the nature and extent of the review, e.g., close and detailed 

review of each phase of the assignment, detailed review of the finished assignment, spot-check of 

finished work for accuracy, or review for adherence to policy. 

  

Level Description Points 

2-1 
For both one-of-a-kind and repetitive tasks, the supervisor makes specific 
assignments that are accompanied by clear, detailed and specific instructions. 

The employee works as instructed and consults with the supervisor as needed 
on all matters not specifically covered in the original instructions or guidelines. 

For all positions the work is closely controlled.  For some positions, the control 
is through the structured nature of the work itself; for others, it may be 
controlled by the circumstances in which it is performed.  In some situations, 
the supervisor maintains control through review of the work.  This may include 
checking progress or reviewing completed work for accuracy, adequacy, and 
adherence to instructions and established procedures. 

Recommended type of supervision to match for this level:  

 Immediate Supervision 

25 

2-2 
The supervisor provides continuing or individual assignments by indicating 
generally what is to be done, limitations, quality and quantity expected, 
deadlines and priority of assignments.  The supervisor provides additional, 
specific instructions for new, difficult, or unusual assignments, including 
suggested work methods of advice on source material available. 

The employee uses initiative in carrying out recurring assignments 
independently without specific instructions, but refers deviations, problems and 
unfamiliar situations not covered by instructions to the supervisor for decision 
or help. 

The supervisor assures that finished work and methods used are technically 
accurate and in compliance with instructions or established procedures.  
Review of the work increases with more difficult assignments if the employee 
has not previously performed similar assignments. 

Recommended type of supervision  to match for this level:  

 General Supervision 

125 



8 | P a g e  

 

Level Description Points 

2-3 
The supervisor makes assignments by defining objectives, priorities and 
deadlines and assists the employee with unusual situations that do not have 
clear precedents. 

The employee plans and carries out the successive steps and handles problems 
and deviations in the work assignments in accordance with instructions, 
policies, previous training, or accepted practices in the occupation. 

Completed work is usually evaluated for technical soundness, appropriateness, 
and conformity to policy and requirements.  The methods used in arriving at the 
end results are not usually reviewed in detail. 

Recommended type of supervision to match for this level: 

 Direction 

275 

2-4 
The supervisor sets the overall objectives and resources available.  The 
employee and supervisor in consultation, develop deadlines, projects and work 
to be done. 

The employee, having developed expertise in the line of work, is responsible for 
planning and carrying out the assignment, resolving most of the conflicts that 
arise, coordinating the work with others as necessary, and interpreting policy 
on own initiative in terms of established objectives.  In some assignments, the 
employee also determines the approach to be taken and the methodology to 
be used.  The employee keeps the supervisor informed of progress and 
potentially controversial matters. 

Completed work is reviewed only from an overall standpoint in terms of 
feasibility, compatibility with other work, or effectiveness in meeting 
requirements or expected results. 

Recommended type of supervision to match for this level: 

 General direction 

450 

2-5 
The supervisor provides administrative direction with assignments in terms of 
broadly defined missions or functions. 

The employee has responsibility for independently planning, designing and 
carrying out programs, projects, studies, or other work. 

Results of the work are considered technically authoritative and are normally 
accepted without significant change.  If the work should be reviewed, the 
review concerns such matters as fulfillment of program objectives, effect of 
advice and influence of the overall program, or the contribution to the 
advancement of technology. Recommendations for new projects and 
alterations of objectives usually are elevated for such considerations as 
availability of funds and other resources, broad program goals, or national 
priorities. 

Recommended type of supervision to match for this level: 

 Administrative direction 

650 



9 | P a g e  

 

FES Factor 3 – Guidelines 

This factor covers the nature of guidelines and the judgment needed to apply them.  Guides used in 

occupations include, for example, desk manuals, established procedures and policies, traditional 

practices and reference materials such as dictionaries, style manuals, engineering handbooks, and 

pharmacopoeia. 

Individual jobs in different occupations vary in the specificity, applicability and availability of guidelines 

for performance of assignments.  Consequently, the constraints and judgmental demands placed on 

employees may also vary.  For example, the absence of specific instructions, procedures and policies may 

limit the employee’s opportunity to make or recommend decisions, or actions.  However, in the absence 

of procedures under broadly stated objectives, employees in some occupations may use considerable 

judgment in researching literature and developing new methods. 

Guidelines should not be confused with the knowledge described under Factor 1, Knowledge Required by 

the Position.  Guidelines either provide reference data or impose certain constraints on the use of 

knowledge.  For example, in the field of medical technology, for a particular diagnosis, there may be three 

or four standardized tests set forth in the technical manual.  A medical technologist is expected to know 

these diagnostic tests.  However, in a given laboratory, the policy may be to use only one of the tests, or 

the policy may state specifically under what conditions one or the other of these tests may be used. 

Level Description Points 

3-1 
Specific detailed guidelines covering all important aspects of the assignment are 
provided to the employee. 

The employee works in strict adherence to guidelines; deviations must be 
authorized by the supervisor. 

25 

3-2 
Procedures for doing the work have been established, and a number of specific 
guidelines are available. 

The number and similarity of guidelines and work situations require the 
employee to use judgment in locating and selecting the most appropriate 
guidelines, references and procedures for application and in making minor 
deviations to adapt the guidelines to specific cases.  The employee may also 
determine which of the several established guidelines to use.  Situations to 
which the existing guidelines cannot be applied or significant proposed 
deviations from the guidelines are referred to the supervisor. 

125 

3-3 
Guidelines are available but are not completely applicable to the work or have 
gaps in specificity. 

The employee uses judgment in interpreting and adapting guidelines, such as 
agency policies, regulations, precedents, and work directions for application to 
specific cases or problems.  The employee analyzes results and recommends 
changes. 

275 

3-4 
Administrative policies and precedents are applicable but are stated in general 
terms.  Guidelines for performing the work are scarce or of limited use. 

450 



10 | P a g e  

 

Level Description Points 

The employee uses initiative and resourcefulness in deviating from traditional 
methods or researching trends and patterns to develop new methods, criteria, 
or proposed new policies. 

3-5 
Guidelines are broadly stated and non-specific, e.g., broad policy statements 
and basic legislation that require extensive interpretation. 

The employee must use judgment and ingenuity in interpreting the intent of 
the guides that do exist and in developing applications to specific areas of work.  
Frequently, the employee is recognized as a technical authority in the 
development and interpretation of guidelines. 

650 

 

  



11 | P a g e  

 

FES Factor 4 - Complexity 

This factor covers the nature, number, variety, and intricacy of tasks, steps, processes or methods in the 

work performed; the difficulty in identifying what needs to be done; and the difficulty and originality 

involved in performing the work. 

Level Description Points 

4-1 
The work comprises of tasks that are clear cut and directly related. 

There is little or no choice to be made in deciding what needs to be done. 

Actions to be taken or responses to be made are readily discernible.  The work 
is quickly mastered. 

25 

4-2 
The work consists of duties that involve related steps, processes or methods. 

The decision regarding what needs to be done involves various choices that 
require the employee to recognize the existence of, and differences among, a 
few easily recognizable situations. 

Actions to be taken, or responses to be made, differ in such things as the source 
of information, the kind of transactions or entries, or other differences of a 
factual nature. 

75 

4-3 
The work includes various duties involving different and unrelated processes 
and methods. 

The decision regarding what needs to be done depends upon the analysis of the 
subject, phase or issues involved in each assignment, and the chosen course of 
action may have to be selected from many alternatives. 

The work involves conditions and elements that must be identified and 
analyzed to discern interrelationships. 

150 

4-4 
The work typically involves varied duties that require many different and 
unrelated processes and methods, such as those related to well-established 
aspects of an administrative or professional field. 

Decisions regarding what needs to be done include the assessment of unusual 
circumstances, variations in approach, and incomplete or conflicting data. 

The work requires making many decisions concerning such things as the 
interpretation of considerable data, planning of the work, or refinement of the 
methods and techniques to be used. 

225 

4-5 
The work includes varied duties requiring many different and unrelated 
processes and methods that are applied to a broad range of activities or 
substantial depth of analysis, typically for an administrative or professional 
field. 

Decisions regarding what needs to be done include major areas of uncertainty 
in approach, methodology or interpretation and evaluation processes that 
result from such elements as continuing changes in program, technological 
developments, unknown phenomena, or conflicting requirements. 

325 



12 | P a g e  

 

Level Description Points 

The work requires originating new techniques, establishing criteria or 
developing new information. 

 

4-6 
The work consists of broad functions and processes of an administrative or 
professional field.  Assignments are characterized by breadth and intensity of 
effort and involve several phases pursued concurrently or sequentially with the 
support of others within or outside the organization. 

Decisions regarding what needs to be done include largely undefined issues and 
elements and require extensive probing and analysis to determine the nature 
and scope of the problems. 

The work requires continuing efforts to establish concepts, theories, or 
programs, or to resolve unyielding problems. 

450 

 

  



13 | P a g e  

 

FES Factor 5 – Scope and Effect 

Scope and Effect covers the relationship between the nature of the work, i.e., the purpose, breadth and 

depth of the assignment, and the effect of the work products or services both within and outside the 

organization. 

Effect measures such things as whether the work output facilitates the work of others, provides timely 

services of a personal nature, or impacts on the adequacy of research conclusions.  The concept of effect 

alone does not provide sufficient information to properly understand and evaluate the impact of the 

position.  The scope of the work completes the picture and allows consistent evaluations.   Only the 

effect of properly performed work is to be considered 

Level Description Points 

5-1 
The work involves the performance of specific, routine, operations that include 
a few separate tasks or procedures. 

The work or service is required to facilitate the work of others; however, it has 
little impact beyond the immediate organizational unit or beyond the timely 
provision of limited services to others. 

25 

5-2 
The work involves the execution of specific rules, regulations or procedures and 
typically comprises a segment of an assignment or project of broader scope. 

The work or service product affects the accuracy, reliability, or acceptability of 
further processes or services. 

75 

5-3 
The work involves treating a variety of conventional problems, questions or 
situations in conformance with established criteria. 

The work product or service affects the design or operations of systems, 
programs or equipment; the adequacy of such activities as field investigations, 
testing operations, or research conclusions; or the social, physical and economic 
well being of people. 

150 

5-4 
The work involves establishing criteria; formulating projects; assessing program 
effectiveness or investigating or analyzing a variety of unusual conditions, 
problems, or questions. 

The work product or service affects a wide range of agency activities, major 
activities or industrial concerns, or the operation of other agencies. 

225 

5-5 
The work involves isolating and defining unknown conditions, resolving critical 
problems, or developing new theories. 

The work product or service affects the work of other experts, the development 
of major aspects of administrative or scientific programs or missions, or the 
well-being of substantial numbers of people. 

325 

5-6 
The work involves planning, developing, and carrying out vital administrative or 
scientific programs. 

The programs are essential to the missions of the agency or affect a large 
number of people on a long term or continuing basis.  

450 



 Point Factor Analysis – Classification Comparison –  

Information Technology Grouping – Draft Report 

Port of Oakland 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix II 
 

Classification Comparability Analysis 

Information Technology Occupational Grouping 



Port of Oakland/City of Oakland

January, 2020

CLASSIFICATION COMPARABILITY ANALYSIS

Information Technology Classification Grouping
Confidential

Total 

Points
Comments

Level Points FLSA Sup. Level Points Level Points Level Points Level Points Level Points

City--Systems Analyst II 1 50 N 1-6 950 2-2 125 3-3 275 4-3 150 5-3 150 1700

Port--Business Systems Analyst 1 50 N N 1-6 950 2-2 125 3-3 275 4-3 150 5-3 150 1700
 

City--Systems Analyst II 1-1 50 N 1-6 950 2-2 125 3-3 275 4-3 150 5-3 150 1700

Port--IT Business Analyst II 1-1 50 N N 1-6 950 2-3 275 3-3 275 4-3 150 5-3 150 1850

City--Systems Analyst II 1-1 50 N 1-6 950 2-2 125 3-3 275 4-3 150 5-3 150 1700

Port--Port Systems Planning Analyst 1-1 50 N N 1-6 950 2-2 125 3-3 275 4-3 150 5-4 225 1775

City--Systems Analyst III 1-1 50 L 1-6 950 2-3 275 3-4 450 4-3 150 5-4 225 2100

Port--Port Senior Programmer/Analyst 1-1 50 E L 1-6 950 2-3 275 3-4 450 4-3 150 5-4 225 2100

City--Help Desk Specialist 1-1 50 N 1-4 550 2-2 125 3-2 125 4-3 150 5-3 150 1150

Port--Port Technical Support Specialist I 1-1 50 N N 1-3 350 2-1 25 3-2 125 4-3 150 5-3 150 850

City--Help Desk Specialist 1-1 50 N 1-4 550 2-2 125 3-2 125 4-3 150 5-3 150 1150

Port--Port Technical Support Specialist II 1-1 50 N N 1-3 350 2-2 125 3-3 275 4-3 150 5-3 150 1100

Classes are substantially similar.

Comparability Knowledge Sup. Controls Guidelines Complexity Scope/Effect

Classes are substantially similar despite 

only having overlap in a couple of duty 

statements.

Low score for Comparability 

factor due to variability in duty 

statements between the two 

classes.  The supervisory controls 

differ with the City class receiving 

general supervision and the Port 

class receiving direction.  

Otherwise, the classes are 

comparable.

The job descriptions are very 

outdated; however, it is likely 

that these classes are very close 

in scope and complexity.

Classes are similar; duty 

statements vary but scope, 

complexity, knowledge, 

supervision received are the 

same.

Classes have similarities with respect to 

supervisory controls, guidelines, and 

scope and effect of the work but the 

duty statements vary from one another 

and the Port Technical Support 

Specialist I is identified as the entry 

level in a class series.

Supervision Legend:

N = None

L = Lead

D = Direct 1 of 2



Port of Oakland/City of Oakland

January, 2020

CLASSIFICATION COMPARABILITY ANALYSIS

Information Technology Classification Grouping
Confidential

Total 

Points
Comments

Level Points FLSA Sup. Level Points Level Points Level Points Level Points Level Points

Comparability Knowledge Sup. Controls Guidelines Complexity Scope/Effect

City--Computer Operations Supervisor 1-1 50 D 1-6 950 2-3 275 3-3 275 4-4 225 5-4 225 2000

Port--MIS Customer Services Supervisor 1-1 50 E D 1-6 950 2-3 275 3-4 450 4-4 225 5-4 225 2175

City--Computer Operator 1-1 50 N 1-3 350 2-1 25 3-2 125 4-3 150 5-3 150 850

Port--Technical Support Specialist I 1-1 50 N N 1-3 350 2-1 25 3-2 125 4-3 150 5-3 150 850

City--Spatial Data Analyst III 1-1 50 L 1-5 750 2-3 275 3-3 275 4-3 150 5-3 150 1650

Port--Land Records Programmer 1-1 50 E N 1-4 550 2-2 125 3-3 275 4-3 150 5-3 150 1300

City--Information Systems 

Administrator
1-1 50 D 1-6 950 2-3 275 3-4 450 4-4 225 5-4 225 2175

Port--Port Principal Prog/Analyst 1-1 50 E D 1-6 950 2-3 275 3-4 450 4-4 225 5-4 225 2175

City--Information System Administrator 1-1 50 D 1-6 950 2-3 275 3-4 450 4-4 225 5-4 225 2175

Port--MIS Customer Services Supervisor 1-1 50 E D 1-6 950 2-3 275 3-4 450 4-4 225 5-4 225 2175

These classifications are similar except 

that the guidelines for the work of the 

Port's class are more scarce and 

abstract than those for the City's class.  

Duty statements vary between the 

classes.

The City--Computer Operator job 

description is very outdated and is 

difficult to analyze.  The likelihood that 

the incumbents are using backup tapes 

is low as that is outdated technology.  

The comparability rating would likely be 

higher with up to date specs.

These classes are somewhat similar; it 

appears that the knowledge level and 

supervisory controls may be overstated 

for the City class by comparison to the 

duties the class is performing.  

Additionally, the City's class is identified 

as a lead classification whereas the 

Port's is not.

Substantially similar classes

Substantially similar classes.

Supervision Legend:

N = None

L = Lead

D = Direct 2 of 2



JAHMAL T. DAVIS 
PARTNER 

@ HansonBridgett 
DIRECT DIAL (415) 995-5815 
DIRECT FAX (415) 995-3489 
E-MAIL jdavis@hanson bridgett.com 

February 6, 2020 

VIA EMAIL (GPreece@oaklandca.gov) AND REGULAR U.S. MAIL 

Civil Service Board 
City of Oakland 
150 Frank Ogawa Plaza, 2nd Floor 
Oakland, CA 94612 

Re: Appeal of Probationary Release by Port of Oakland Probationary Employee 
Joshua Wilson 
Port of Oakland Position Statement/Exhibits 

To the Honorable Members of the City of Oakland Civil Service Board: 

Please consider this correspondence and attached exhibits as the position statement submitted 
by the Port of Oakland (the "Port") in response to the appeal filed by Mr. Joshua Wilson (A copy 
of the appeal is attached as Exhibit A.) 

Mr. Wilson was selected for promotion from the position of Semi-Skilled Laborer to Maintenance 
Leader, effective July 27, 2019. Pursuant to the Port Personnel Rules and Procedures 
(hereinafter the "Rules"), Mr. Wilson was required to undergo a six month probationary period. 
The Rules specify that this six-month probationary period is "an essential part of the selection 
process, and shall be utilized for the most effective adjustment of a new employee and for the 
removal or demotion of any probationary employee whose performance does not meet the 
required standard of performance." Rule 6.01. 

On December 20, 2019, just prior to the conclusion of Mr. Wilson's probationary period, the Port 
terminated Mr. Wilson 's probationary status. (See, Exhibit B.) The reason for the Port's 
decision was the Union 's refusal to agree to extend Mr. Wilson's probation to allow time to 
complete ongoing investigations, and to allow time for a complete and accurate evaluation of 
Mr. Wilson's performance. Mr. Wilson has appealed this probationary release on the grounds 
that the Port's decision violated Port Personnel Rules and Procedures sections 6.06 (c) . 
Specifically, Mr. Wilson contends that the Port discriminated against him based on his alleged 
disability. As explained below however, Mr. Wilson 's probationary release had nothing to do 
with his alleged disability and his appeal is unfounded. 

I. APPLICABLE PORT PERSONNEL RULES AND PROCEDURES 

The Port's Personnel Rules and Procedures governing probationary employees are set forth in 
Rule 6 (Probationary Period, Sections 6.01 - 6.07) (relevant portions of the Rules are attached 
as Exhibit C.) 

Hanson Bridgett LLP 
425 Market Street, 26th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94105 hansonbridgett.com 

16242979. 1 

mailto:jdavis@hansonbridgett.com
mailto:GPreece@oaklandca.gov


Civil Service Board 
City of Oakland 
February 6, 2020 
Page 2 

Section 6.01 (Probationary Period) states in relevant part: 

Every person appointed or promoted to a permanent position in the 
competitive civil service [ ... ] shall serve a period of probation while 
occupying such position, which shall be considered a part of the test for 
fitness [ ... ] The probationary period shall be an essential part of the 
selection process, and shall be utilized for the most effective adjustment 
of a new employee and for the removal or demotion of any probationary 
employee whose performance does not meet the required standard of 
performance. (Emphasis added.) 

Section 6.04 (Performance Rating During Probationary Period) states in relevant part: 

The Executive Director or his/her designee shall file an approved report of 
performance at the end of the third and fifth months of employment for 
each employee serving a six-month probationary period. 

* * * 

Upon a favorable report, the appointment of the employee shall be 
· deemed to be permanent at the expiration of the probationary period. In 
the event of an unfavorable report, the Executive Director or his/her 
designee shall notify the Port's Director of Human Resources and the 
employee, at least five (5) working days in advance, that he/she will be 
removed from the position no later than the final date of the probationary 
period. 

Section 6.05 (Removal or Demotion of Employee During Probationary Period) states in relevant 
part: 

At any time during the probationary period [ ... ] an employee may be 
removed from her/his current position [ ... ] (Emphasis added.) 

(a) [ ... ] and he/she shall be considered permanently separated from 
that position without right to appeal to the Civil Service Board except as 
set forth in section 6.06. (Emphasis added.) 

(b) If the employee has served at the Port or the City in another 
position in the competitive civil service, the employee shall be notified in 
writing by the Department of Human Resources within five (5) working 
days of removal that he/she may be reinstated to his/her prior 
classification from which promotion was made. The employee has five (5) 
working days from date of notification to respond in writing, stating her/his 
wish to be so reinstated. 

16242979.1 



Civil Service Board 
City of Oakland 
February 6, 2020 
Page 3 

Section 6.06 (Limited Rights of an Employee During Probationary Period) states in relevant part: 

The right of an employee to appeal to the Civil Service Board because of 
her/his permanent separation from her/his position during his/her 
probationary period shall be limited to the following: 

(a) Failure of the Executive Director or his/her designee to comply 
with section 6.04 of these Rules; 

(b) Failure of the Executive Director or his/her designee to comply 
with section 6.05 of these Rules; 

(c) Discrimination against an employee during such probationary 
period on the basis of race, color, religion/religious creed, marital status, 
national origin/ancestry, sex, gender identify, gender expression, 
pregnancy, sexual orientation, physical or mental disability, medical 
condition, genetic information, AIDS/HIV status, military or veteran status, 
age, citizenship or on any other status protected by federal, state or local 
law. 

Section 6.07 (Procedure to Be Used In Appeals and Hearings Under Section 6.06) states in 
relevant part: 

(a)[ ... ] 

iii. The appeal shall state the sub-section of section 6.06 of these rules 
upon which it is based and a statement of the facts upon which such 
appeal is based. (Emphasis added.) 

11. APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE MOU BETWEEN THE PORT AND THE UNION 

Pursuant to Article 8 (Promotion, Demotion and Transfers) of the Memorandum of 
Understanding ("MOU") between SEIU Local 1021 and the Port of Oakland, "the probationary 
period of any employee filling a position from a promotional examination shall not exceed six (6) 
months in duration." (Relevant portions of the MOU are attached as Exhibit D.) 

Separately, Article 8 of the MOU also provides for periodic performance reviews of the 
probationary employee. The applicable provisions of Article 8 are as follows: 

8.A Probation Period Upon Promotion. The probationary period of 
an employee filling a position from a promotional examination shall not 
exceed six (6) months in duration. 

8. B Service Rating During Probation. An employee in a six (6) 
month probationary period shall receive a Report of Performance for 
Probationary Employee at the end of the third and fifth months of service 
and annually thereafter. 

16242979.1 



Civil Service Board 
City of Oakland 
February 6, 2020 
Page 4 

Ill. STATEMENT OF FACTS 

A. The Port Appointed Mr. Wilson To The Position Of Port Maintenance Leader 
After Providing Mr. Wilson A Disability Accommodation To Assist Him 
During the Examination Process 

The Port hired Claimant Joshua Wilson in March, 2015 to work as a semi-skilled laborer in the 
Port's Harbor Facilities. At the time, and to date, there were two separate organizational units 
or work crews. One work crew consisted of a Port Maintenance Leader ("Lead"), two Semi
Skilled Laborers ("SSLs"), an Equipment Driver, and an Equipment Operator while the other 
crew consisted of a Lead, two Semi-Skilled Laborers, a Gardner, a Painter, a Carpenter, and a 
Custodian. In each work crew, the SSLs separately reported to the Lead, and both the Lead and 
the SSLs were supervised by a Foreman. In 2019, the Leads and the SSLs were supervised by 
two Foremen, Kevin Pittman and Leonard Castenada, who were each assigned a work crew. 
These Foremen, in turn, reported to Harbor Facilities Manager, Bill Morrison. Foreman Leonard 
Castenada supervised Mr. Wilson in 2018 and 2019 prior to his promotion. 

In late 2018, the Port identified an opening for a Maintenance Leader position in the Harbor 
Division. Mr. Wilson applied for the position. During the application process, on December 18, 
2018, Mr. Wilson was invited to participate in a written examination. (See, Exhibit E.) The 
email invitation notified Mr. Wilson of the Port's commitment to providing disability 
accommodations for the examination process, when needed, in compliance with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act. Mr. Wilson responded by requesting that the Port's Human Resources 
Department provide extended time to take the test, and a "distraction-free room environment" as 
accommodations for his alleged learning disability. (See, Exhibit F.) The Port complied with 
this request. 

With full knowledge of Mr. Wilson's identified disability and his asserted need for an 
accommodation during the testing process, the Port selected Mr. Wilson for promotion to the 
position of Port Maintenance Leader, effective July 27, 2019. (See, Exhibit G.) Contrary to Mr. 
Wilson's assertion in the present appeal, the Port did not subject him to any disparate or unfair 
treatment due to this disability. 

B. The Port Was Unable To Adequately Complete The Three-Month 
Probationary Performance Evaluation Because The Semi-Skilled Laborers 
Who Mr. Wilson Supervised Refused To Report to Him 

On July 27, 2019, Mr. Wilson began his role as Port Maintenance Leader reporting to Foreman 
Kevin Pittman. In this new role, Mr. Wilson was in charge of supervising two semi-skilled 
laborers. Pursuant to the Port Personnel Rules and the MOU, he was to serve a six-month 
probationary period that was scheduled to conclude January 27, 2020. During this probationary 
period, Mr. Wilson was to be given interim performance evaluations at the conclusion of the 
third and fifth months. 

Shortly after Mr. Wilson began this new position, the two semi-skilled laborers under his 
supervision began expressing concerns about his behavior. One of these semi-skilled laborers 
transferred to a different work crew in order to avoid the necessity of reporting to Mr. Wilson. 
The other simply refused to take direction from Mr. Wilson, and sought direction from Foreman 

16242979.1 



Civil Service Board 
City of Oakland 
February 6, 2020 
Page 5 

Leonard Castenada instead. As a result, Mr. Wilson came to the conclusion of his third month 
in the new Port Maintenance Leader position having had no full-time employees to supervise. 
As the end of Mr. Wilson's third month approached, Foreman Kevin Pittman prepared the 
interim performance evaluation. Mr. Pittman completed the evaluation rating Mr. Wilson in only 
six out of the ten categories available. (See, Exhibit H.)1 Mr. Pittman was not able to provide 
ratings for the remaining categories because they required an assessment of Mr. Wilson's 
supervisorial skills. Specifically, the remaining categories assessed qualities such as "ability as 
a supervisor," and "application of good management principles." Mr. Pittman did not have an 
opportunity to observe Mr. Wilson's skills in these areas because the semi-skilled laborers Mr. 
Wilson was in charge of supervising, refused to work under his leadership. 

C. In October 2019, The Port Commenced An Investigation After Many of the 
Members of Both Harbor Facilities' Work Crews Accused Mr. Wilson Of 
Threatening And Harassing Behavior, And Expressed Concerns For Their 
Safety 

The two semi-skilled laborers who were originally assigned to Mr. Wilson's supervision were not 
the only members of the work crews who expressed concerns regarding Mr. Wilson's behavior. 
To the contrary, members of both work crews were outspoken about their many concerns about 
Mr. Wilson. Having heard these repeated and ongoing concerns, Foreman Leonard Castenada 
called a meeting of both work crews on October 4, 2019. During the meeting, each crew 
member was allowed to speak. Many of the meeting's attendees expressed concerns and 
complaints about Mr. Wilson. These complaints included allegations of harassment, threatening 
behavior, and concerns of feeling unsafe around Mr. Wilson. 

Because of the nature of these complaints, the Port's Human Resources Department was 
notified and commenced an internal investigation. It was directed by Labor Relations Manager, 
Pamela Trawick. While Ms. Trawick was in the process of investigating the numerous concerns 
and complaints made by the various members of the work crews, she received opposing 
complaints asserted by Mr. Wilson himself. In particular, Mr. Wilson complained that he had 
been subjected to harassment, bullying, and unfair treatment by many of the same individuals 
who asserted the initial complaints against him. He accused them of acting in concert with a 
gang mentality, focused on ousting him as the Maintenance Leader. Because of the numerous 
and conflicting complaints involving most of the members of both work crews, the scope of the 
investigation was broadened and proceeded from late October through December 2019. 

1 It .should be noted the Mr. Pittman mistakenly used the wrong review form for this review. Mr. 
Pittman used Exhibit H, which is a Report of Performance for Permanent Employee (emphasis 
added). However, he was supposed to use the Report of Performance for Probationary 
Employee. (See, Exhibit I.) 

16242979.1 



Civil Service Board 
City of Oakland 
February 6, 2020 
Page 6 

D. In Order To Provide Adequate Time to Complete The Investigations, And To 
Observe And Evaluate Mr. Wilson's Supervisory Skills, The Port Requested 
That The Union Agree To Extend Mr. Wilson's 6-Month Probation, But The 
Union Refused To Do So, Resulting In The Termination of Mr. Wilson's 
Probation 

As of early December 2019, the Port's investigations had not concluded. At that time, the Port 
recognized that Mr. Wilson's five-month evaluation date was approaching and Mr. Wilson still 
did not have any full-time employees who he directly supervised. Thus, the Port would, again, 
be unable to provide a complete evaluation of his performance by the December 27 deadline for 
the five-month review. Moreover, the conclusion of Mr. Wilson's six-month probationary period, 
January 27, 2020, was fast approaching. The Port ultimately wanted to give Mr. Wilson a 
chance to succeed and to have a full and complete evaluation. In order to do so, the Port 
needed time to conclude the investigations and resolve the interpersonal issues among the 
crew members, before it would have an opportunity to fully and adequately assess Mr. Wilson's 
performance. 

To resolve this dilemma, the Port contacted the Union through Field Representative Millie 
Cleveland. The Port requested that the Union agree to a 90-day extension of Mr. Wilson's 
probationary period to allow time for the completion of the investigations and resolution of the 
personnel issues. On December 11, 2019, Ms. Cleveland responded by email and initially 
expressed the Union's agreement to provide for an extension of the probationary period. (See, 
Exhibit J.) Two days later, on December 13, 2019, the Union changed its position and notified 
the Port that it would not approve the extension. The Union made clear that it was rescinding its 
prior approval. (See, Exhibit K.) Without an agreement by the Union to extend the probation, 
the Port did not have sufficient time to complete the investigations, resolve the personnel 
concerns, and obtain a complete assessment of Mr. Wilson in the role as Port Maintenance 
Leader. Accordingly, Facilities Manager Bill Morrison made the decision to release Mr. Wilson 
from his probation, and to return Mr. Wilson to his previous position of Semi-Skilled Laborer. 
This decision was sent to Mr. Wilson by letter, dated December 20, 2019. (See, Exhibit B.) 

E. Mr. Wilson Appealed The Decision To Terminate His Probation 

On December 23, 2019 Mr. Wilson filed the present appeal. (See, Exhibit A.) In his appeal, 
Mr. Wilson accuses the Port of violating Rule, 6.06 (c). In particular, Mr. Wilson asserts that in 
releasing him from his probation, the Port discriminated against him because of his disability. 
The Port denies these allegations and forwarded to Mr. Wilson a letter responding to his appeal 
on January 6, 2020. (See, Exhibit L.) In the letter, the Port again explained that it had sought 
a 90-day extension of his probation, but the Union would not agree to this extension. 2 

2 In the January 6, 2020 letter the Port also asserted that "at no time during your probationary 
period did you advise the Port that you had a disability and that you required an 
accommodation." (Emphasis added) In other words, Mr. Wilson did not request a disability 
accommodation in order to perform the job of Port Maintenance Leader. Instead, Mr. Wilson 
simply requested an accommodation during the testing process. In his appeal papers, Mr. 
Wilson does not appear to recognize this distinction; rather, he seizes upon the language that 
he did "not require[] an accommodation." He takes issue with this statement and provides 

16242979.1 



Civil Service Board 
City of Oakland 
February 6, 2020 
Page 7 

IV. LEGAL ARGUMENT 

A. The Port's Decision To Terminate Mr. Wilson's Probation Did Not Violate 
Port Personnel Rule 6.06 (c) Because Mr. Wilson's Disability Was Not A 
Factor In the Decision To Terminate His Probation 

Mr. Wilson's appeal must be denied because he fails to show that the Port violated Port 
Personnel Rule 6.06 (c). As a preliminary matter, the Rules make clear that Mr. Wilson's appeal 
must specifically identify the sub-section of Rule 6.06 upon which the appeal is based. (See, 
Rule 6.07) Mr. Wilson, for his part, claims that his appeal is based on subsection (c) of Rule 
6.06. Relying on this particular subsection, he claims that the Port discriminated against him 
based on his disability when it made the determination to release him from probation. This 
claim is completely unfounded. 

As explained herein, the decision to terminate Mr. Wilson's probation had nothing to do with his 
disability. Rather, the decision was made because the Union would not agree to a 90-day 
extension of his probation. (See, Exhibit K.) This extension was needed because the semi
skilled laborers who were assigned to report directly to Mr. Wilson refused to do so. Thus, Mr. 
Wilson's supervisor, Kevin Pittman, could not provide a complete evaluation of Mr. Wilson's 
performance as Port Maintenance Leader. Beyond this, there were also numerous coworkers 
who complained of threatening and harassing behavior by Mr. Wilson. And, Mr. Wilson similarly 
lodged complaints of bullying and harassing behavior against these same coworkers. The Port 
therefore needed time to complete its' investigations and to attempt to resolve these personnel 
issues. With the deadline of Mr. Wilson's 6-month probationary period looming, the Port sought 
a 90-day extension of the probationary period to allow more time to resolve the outstanding 
concerns, and to give Mr. Wilson a chance to showcase his skills and succeed in the position. 
Stated differently, the Port was attempting to treat Mr. Wilson favorably to help him succeed, but 
the Union thwarted this effort by denying the request. 

Based on the foregoing, Harbor Facilities Manager Bill Morrison made the decision to release 
Mr. Wilson from his probation. Notably, Mr. Wilson does not mention the existence of any 
perceived discriminatory motive by Mr. Morrison based on Mr. Wilson's alleged disability. In 
fact, Mr. Wilson's own evidence and argument bely any such contention. This is so because, as 
Mr. Wilson himself points out, the Port offered Mr. Wilson a disability accommodation to assist 
him with the examination process. Thus, the Port not only accommodated Mr. Wilson's 
disability, but it selected him for the position with full knowledge of his disability. His claim now 
that the Port discriminated against him because of this same disability is therefore baseless. 
His appeal should be denied for this reason alone. 

evidence that he did request an accommodation during the application process (i.e., before he 
was awarded the position and before his actual probationary period). The Port does not dispute 
that Mr. Wilson requested the reasonable accommodation during the examination process. In 
fact, the Port similarly points to this fact as evidence that Mr. Wilson was not treated unfairly due 
to his disability. To the contrary, he was selected for the appointment with full knowledge of his 
disability. 

16242979.1 



Civil Service Board 
City of Oakland 
February 6, 2020 
Page 8 

8. The Port Did Not Violate The Progressive Discipline Provisions Of The MOU 
As They Are Not Applicable To The Decision To Release Mr. Wilson From 
His Probation 

Section 6.05 of the Rules allows the Port to terminate a probationary employee at any time 
during the probationary period . When this occurs, probationary employees such as Mr. Wilson 
are "without right to appeal to the Civil Service Board except as set forth in section 6.06." In 
other words, the only bases upon which Mr. Wilson may appeal are those bases identified in 
Rule 6.06. There is no right to appeal based on the progressive discipline provisions of the 
MOU . Mr. Wilson's argument fails for this reason alone. 

Further, it must be noted that the removal from probation is not, in and of itself, a form of 
"discipline" that would be subject to a progressive discipline process. As explained in Rule 6.01 , 
the probationary period is merely a "part of the selection process." The probationary employee 
has no rights to the position unless and until the employee satisfactorily completes the 
probation . The removal from this same probationary status therefore does not constitute a form 
of discipline or demotion. 3 Mr. Wilson's claim therefore fails on these additional grounds. 

V. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons described above, the Port respectfully requests that the Civil Service Board 
deny Mr. Wilson 's appeal. 

Enclosures 

cc: Daniel S. Connolly 

3 It should also be noted that if Mr. Wilson did, in fact, have a valid grievance that the Port 
violated the progressive discipline procedures of the MOU, this grievance must be submitted 
through the grievance and arbitration provisions of the MOU. The grievance would not be 
proper before the Civil Service Board. 

16242979.1 



EXHIBIT A 



Joshua D Wilson 
Port Maii1tena11ce T ,eader 

 
 

 
.iFiJson@portoakland.com 
lawless & lawless 
( 4 l 5)906-3108 

December 23, 2019 

Port of Oakland 
530 water St, Oakland, CA 94607 

To whom it may concern including; Port of Oaldancl Appointing authority, Personnel Director and 
Secretary to the board, 

1. I would like to exercise my civil service rights to have an appeal covered by Section 
6.07 of the Civil Service Rules :r.vranuel. Section 6.06 ( c) protects me under the ADA 
for my leaning disability. I would like to use my rights to an appeal to the Board or an 
independent hearing. I Joshua D Wilson was permanently demoted from the Port 
Maintenance leader position during my probationary period to return to my previous 
position. l feel that l have been Discriminated against during my employment due to 
my learning disability by 1nultiple Port of Oakland employees which has in tmn 
affected my promotion opportunity. 

11. I Joshua D Wilson request to have a public hearing. 
iii. The appeal sub-section of section 6.0(> (c) ADA for Learning Disability. 

Sincerely, 
Joshua D Wilson 
Port Maintenance Leader 

 



EXHIBITB 



December 20, 2019 

Joshua Wilson 
 
 

Re: PROBATIONARY RELEASE 

Dem· Mr. Wilson: 

SENT VIA REGULAR U.S. MAIL AND .HAND DELIVERED 

You were hired into the position of Port Maintenance Leader effective July 27, 2019. As set forth in Article 
8.A of your Port/SEIU Memorandum of Understanding (2018-2022; "MOU"}, you were required to serve a 
probationary period not to exceed six (6) months. Pursuant to Port of Oakland Personnel Hules and 
Procedures, Section 6.01, "Every person appointed or promoted to a permanent position In the competitive 
civil service after certification from an eligible list, shall serve a period of probation while occupying such 
posltlon, which shall be considered a part of the test of fitness." 

The Personnel Rules and Procedures, Section 6.05 11Removal or Demotion of Employee during the 
Probationary Period" provides In pertinent part as follows: 

At any time during the probatlonmy period (entrance appointment to a classified position - one (1) 
year; entrance and restricted entrance appointment to a higher or equal classification - one (1) year; 
or a promotional appointment - six (6) months), an employee may be removed from her/his current 
position by the Executive Director or his/her deslgnee. 

Accordingly, effective December 20, 2019. you are hereby removed from your position as a Port Maintenance 
Leader. Pursuant to MOU Article 8.C ("Return Rights"), you will return to your former position as a Semi- . 

Skilled laborer, without loss of seniority or bem,:fits, effective Monday, December 23, 2019. On that date, 
your shift will begin at 0700 - 1530 and you will report to Leonard Castaneda. 

Enclosed for your reference Is Section 6.06 "Limited Right by Employees dut"lng Probationary Period" and 
Section 6.07 "Procedure to be Used In Appeals and Hearing Under Section 6.06." 

~~ ,_-; 
Danny Wan ~ 
Executive Director 

cc: MIiiie Cleveland, Representative, SEIU Local 1021 
BIii Morrison, Harbor Facltltles Manager 
Michael Mitchell, Director of Hum~n Resources 
Pam Trawlck, Labor Relations Manager 
Stacie chestnut, Human Resources Manager 

530 Water Street m Jack London Square II P.O. Box 2064 Ill Oakland, California 94604-2064 
Telephone: (510) 627-1100 11 Facsimile: (510) 627-1826 w: Web Page: www.portofoakland.com 

http://www.portofoakland.com


0 A vacancy exists when either the Port determines to fill a permanent position 
where the employee in a permanent position has resigned, retired, died, 
terminated, reassigned, transferred; or the Port creates a new position within the 
classified system. 

Tho probationary period of an ernployee filling a position from a promotional 
examination shall not exceed six (6) months in duration. 

8.13 Service Ratings During Probatio111 

An C:!rnployee in a six (6) month probationary period shall receive a Report of 
Performance for Probationary Employee at the end of the third and fifth months of 
service and annually thoreafter. 

8.C Return Rights 

An ernployee proving unsatisfactory or electing to decline a promotional position 
during the probationary period shall have ful! return rights to her/his former classification 
without loss of seniority or other benefits. 

BJ) Promotional Examinations 

8.D. 1 ,Job Vacancy Posting. The Pori agrees to post exarnination 
announcements for represented positions on the official Port bulletin board outside of 
the Port Personnel (Personnel and Employee ServicGs) Depa1iment and the designated 
SEIU Union bulletin boards. Announcements for examinations conducted by the Port 
Personnel (Porsonnel and Employee Services) Department will be posted no later than 
ten (10) working days before the application filing date. Announcements for 
examinations conducted, by the City of Oakland Personnc~I (Examination and 
Classification) Department will be posted one ( 1) day after receipt from the City of 
Oakland. In the event an examination announcement is received late from the City of 
Oakland, the Port will support the Union's efforts to extend the application filing date. 

Examination announcements and application · forms· for represented 
positions will be available through the Port Personnel (Personnel and Employee 
Services) Department. The Port will also transmit and post, as soon as possible, copies 

20 

\ 

I 

!, 

'· 



,,, 

Port Personnel Rules and Procedures 

RULE 6 - PROBATIONARY PERIOD 

Section 6.01- Probationary Period Every person appointed or promoted to a 
permanent position in the competitive civil service after certification from an eligible list, 
shall serve a period of probation whlle occupying such position, which shall be 
considered a part of the test of fitness. Former employees who are re-employed under the 
provisions of these rules shall be req11ired to serve a period of probation of six ( 6) months 
from the date of re-employment. 

The probationary period shall be an essential part of the selection process, and shall be 
utilized for the most effective adjustment of a new employee and for the removal or 
demotion of any probationary employee whose perfonnance does not meet the required 
standard of perfo1mance. 

Section 6.02 - Duration of Probationary Period For en1;rance appointments, the 
duration of such probationary period shall be for a period of twelve (12) consecutive 
months of active service. The probationary period for persons appointed on a promotional 
basis shall be six (6) months. 

An employee accepting a regular entrance appointment who has served on a limited 
duration appointment in the same cl~ss immediately prior to her/his regular appointment 
shall have that period of time counted as part of her/his probationary period. Rights and 
privileges shall. accrue from the beginning date of limited duration appointment and shall 
be considered the original appointment elate. · 

Section 6.03- Interruption of Probationary Period If an employee is laid off 
dming the probationary period and subsequently reappointed to the same class, he/she 
shall be given credit for the portion of the probationary period previously completed. 

If an employee is transfenecl during her/his probationary period from a position under the 
jurisdiction of the Executive Director or his/her designee to a position under the 
jurisdiction of another appointing authority, the second appointing authority shall grant 
credit for the portion of the probationary period previously completed. 

Section 6.04 - Petformance Rating During Probationary Period The Executive 
Director or his/her designee shall file an approved report of performance at the end of the 
third and fifth months of employment for each employee serving a six-month 
probationary period. For probationary employees who have been required to· serve a 
twelve-month probationary period, the Executive Director or his/her clesignee shall file 
with the Director of Hurr1an Resources a report of perfom1ance for each employee at the 
end of the thfrd, fifth, eighfu, and eleventh months of employment. This section does not 
preclude the filing of additional reports at any other time dming the employment of any 
individual. 

Upon a favorable report, the appointment of the employee shall be deemed to be 
permanent at the expiration of the probationary period. Jn the eve1Jt of an unfavorable 
report, the Executive Director or hls/her clesignee shall notify the Port's Director of 

27 



Port Personnel Rules and Procedures 

Human Resources and the employee, at least five (5) working days_ in advance, that 
he/she will be removed frmn the position no later than the :frnal date of the probationary 
period. 

Section 6. 05 _, Removal or Demotion of Employee During The Probationary 
Period /\t any time during the probationnry period ( cnlrnnce appointment to a classified 

.f,. position -- one (1) year; entrance and restricted entrance appointment to a higher C)r equal 
classification-- one (l) year; or a promotional appointment-· six (6) months), an 
employee may be rcmovr:'d fro111 her/his current position by the Executive l)irector or 
bis/her designee provided that 

(a) Upon removal by the Executive Director or his/her designee, such probationer's 
name shall be removed from the e.ligible list from which he/she was certified, and 
he/she shall be considered penrnmcntly separated from that position without right 
of appeal to the Civil Service Board exce11t as set fm1h in section 6.06. 

(b) If the employee has served at the Port or the City in fmother position jn_ the 
competitive civil service, the employee shall be notified in writing by the 
Department of Hmrnm R.esourees within five (5) working days of removal that 
he/she may be reinstated to his/her prior classification from which promotion was 
.made. The employee has five (5) working days from date of notification to 
respond jn writing, stating her/his wish to· be so reinstated. 

(c) Reinstatement to his/her fonner classification will be based on the circumstances 
of the removal from the most recent appointment dming the probationary period 
and the emp.loyee's work record as detennincd by the Executive Director or 
his/her designee. 

( d) If reinstatement is effccled by the Executive Director or his/her designee, the 
employee shall be appointed to a vacant position in his/her former classification. 
lf none is immediately available, it shall be the responsibiJiLy of the Executive 
D:i.reetor or his/b.er dcsignee to provide such a vacancy as expeditiously as 
possible without violating the rule.~ o:f any applicable Porl!Union MOU, or these 
Port Personnel Rules and Procedures, concerninr, layoffo and without the 
necessity of creating an additional position. 

Section 6. 06 - Limited Rights of an Employee During Probationary Period The 
right of an employee to appeal to the Civil Service Hoanl because of her/his permanent 
separation from her/his position during his/her probationary period shall be limited to the 
following: · 

(a) Failure of the Executive Director or his/her dcsignec to comply with section 6.04 
of these Rules; 

(b) Failure of the Executive Director or h:is/her dcsignec to comply with section 6.05 
offacse Rules; 

(c) Discrimination agaimt an employee duri11g such probationary period on the basis 
of race, color, religion/religious creed, marital status, national origill/ancestry, 
sex., gender, gender identity, gender cxpres::iion, pregnancy, sexual orientation, 

28 



4. .. 

Port Personnel Rules and Procedures 

physical or mental disability, medical condition, genetic infonnation, AlDS/HIV 
status, military or veteran status, age, citizenship or on any other status protected 
by federal;state or local law. · 

Section 6.07-Procedure to Be Used In Appeals and Hearings Under Section 
6. 06.,__ Whenever an employee who has been pe1manently removed from her/his position 
during the probationary period desires to appeal under the provisions of section 6.06, the 
foll.owing order of procedure shall govern:. 

,, 
(a) Order of Procedure in Appeals: 

i. 

11. 

lll. 

iv. 

V. 

VI. 

vii. 

The appeal must be filed .in the office of the Executive Director or his/her 
designee within five (5) working days from the date that notice of removal 
was filed upon the affected employee. A letter sent to the affected 
employee's adckess of record via r~gular and certified mail, or hand 
delivered to the affected employee, shall constitute notification. 

'111e appeal must be submitted in writing, and if the appellant desires to 
waive a public hearing, such a waiver must be in writing. 

! 
t 

I 
The appeal shall state the sub-section of section 6.06 of these rules upon i 
which it is based and a statement of the facts upon which such appeal is I 
based. i 

Within seven (7) working days from the filing of this appeal, the I 
Executive Director or his/her designee shall submit to the Civil Service I 
Board in writing its response. I 

ti 

At the first meeting of the Civil Service Doru:d after the filing of the appeal j 
and the Port's response, the appeal shall be received and a date for the t 

hearing shall be set. The appeal hearing shall be held at the next meeting [i 

of the Civil Service Board, unless continued by the Civil Service Board. il 

Not less than five (5) w011dng days before the date the appeal is scheduled \ 

fur hearing, the Civil Service Board shall send:-· _ ···---··-- l_f!: .• _· 

l. A written notice giving the date, time, and place of such hearing to_ _ __ _ _ 1 
the Executive Director or his/her designee, to the appellant or 
her/his attorney and/or representative, ru1d to the Port Attorney; l 

2. A copy of the appeal to the Executive Director or his/her designee I 
and the Port Attorney; a copy of the answer of the Executive i 

I Director or his/h~r designee to the appellant or her/his attorney or 1 
representative. I 

Hearings on appeals may be open to the public. However, upon motion of I 
a directly interested paity, the Chmiperson of the Civil Service Bo.ard may I 
exclude from the hearing room any witnesses not at the time m1der l 

f( 

examination; except that a pmiy to the proceeding and/or her/his counsel, ! 
or other persons conducting her/his case cann.ot be excluded. I 

29 



Port Personnel Kules and Procedures 

viii. The teclmical rules of evidence shall not apply. However, all testimony 
and exhibits offr:red must be relevant and bear upon the act ofremoval. 
Any testimony or exl1ibits that do not meet these criteria may be excluded. 
The Civil Service Boar<;) shall consider the objection of either side to the 
introduction of evidence. 

ix. Tiearings may be continued beyond tl1c period originally scheduled or 
recessed until a future date agreeable to the Civil Service Board and the 
parties for good reason. Provided, however, that if such request is made by 
the appellfl.nt or her/his attorney of record and the Civil.Re.rvice Board 
sustains the appeal, the Civil Service Board n:1ay rule that the appellant 
shall receive no pay for the period of time during which such continuance 
was granted. 

x. Based on the evidence presented at the hoaxing, the Civil Service Board 
shall. render its decision which may be: 

a. to sustain the action of the appointing authority concerned; 

b. to sustain the appeal and reinstate the appellant in accordance 
with subsection xi below. 

xi. The words "probationary period" as defined in·scet~on 6.01 of these 
rnles shall be construed to mean a period of probfltion consistent with 
the letter and spirit of tl1csc rules; i:f an appeal is sustained hereunder, 
the Civil Service Board may clctennine that there has been an 
interruption in the probationary period from .the date of tb.e cmlsc 
giving rise to the appeal hereunder, to the date ofthe decision by the 
Civil Service Boaxd, and the probationmy period of the appellant may 
be extended by the length of such interruption. 

(b) Burden Of Proof: In any appeal under this section, the burden of proof shall be 
upon the a.ppc1la11t, and the evidence in support of the allegations made in such 
appeal nrnst he dear and convincing. 

30 



EXHIBIT C 



PERSONNEL RULES AND PROCEDURES 
OF THE 

PORT OF OAKLAND 

Adopted: January 26, 201 7 (P. 0. #4404) 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................. l 
RULE 1 - DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................... 3 

Section 1.01 -·· Cilossary ofTern1s ................................................................................... 3 
RULE 2 - ORGANIZATION, RULES AND PROCEDURES .......................................... 9 

Section 2.01 -- Duties of the Port's Executive Director .................................................. 9 
Section 2.02 - Duties of the Civil Service Board ........................................................... 9 
Section 2.03 - Civil Service Board Procedures ............................................................ 10 
Section 2.04 - General Appeal Procedure .................................................................... 10 
Section 2.05 Staffing for Civil Service Board ........................................................... 10 
Section 2.06 - Port Departn1ent .................................................................................... 10 

RULE 3 - CLASSIFICATION OF POSITIONS .............................................................. 11 
Section 3.01 - Competitive Civil Service ..................................................................... 11 
Section 3.02 - Definition of Classification Plan ........................................................... 11 
Section 3.03 - Title of Positions .................................................................................... 12 
Section 3 .04 - Administration and Maintenance of the Classification Plan ................. 12 
Section 3 .05 - Treatment of Incumbents as a Result of Reclassification of Positions. 13 
Section 3.06 - Conditions for Accepting an Exempt Classification into the Competitive 
Civil Service .................................................................................................................. 14 

RU! ,E 4 - APPi ,!CATIONS, RECRUITMENT, EXAMINATIONS, SELECTION, AND 
ELIGIBLE LISTS ............................................................................................................. 16 

Section 4.0 I - Recruittnent ........................................................................................... 16 
Section 4.02 - Applicants for Selection Process .......................................................... 16 
Section 4.03 - Names of Applicants Withheld ............................................................. 16 
Section 4.04 - Background Checks .............................................................................. 16 
Section 4.05 - Eligibility to Compete In Competitive Examination Process ............... 16 
Section 4.06 - Basis for Rejection of Applications ...................................................... 16 
Section 4.07 - Announcement of Selection Process to Fill Vacancy ........................... 17 
Section 4.08 - Type and Scope of Competitive Examination ...................................... 17 
Section 4.09 - Administration of Examinations ........................................................... 18 
Section 4.10 - Ratings of Results of Examinations ...................................................... 18 
Section 4.11 - Oakland Residents Preference in Examinations ................................... 18 
Section 4.12- Veterans' Preference in Examinations .................................................. 18 
Section 4.13 - Disabled Veterans' Preference in Examinations ................................... 19 
Section 4.14 - Veterans' Preference Entitlement Exhausted Upon Acquiring 
Pcrn1anent Appointn1ent ............................................................................................... 19 
Section 4.15 - Seniority Credit for Permanent Employees .......................................... 19 
Section 4.16 - Eligibility for Promotional Examination .............................................. 19 
Section 4.17 - Eligibility for Restricted Examination .................................................. 20 
Section 4.18 Notice and Review of Results of Examinations ................................... 20 
Section 4.19 - Appeal of Examination Results ............................................................ 20 
Section 4.20 - The Establishment of Eligible Lists ...................................................... 20 
Section 4.21 - Declined Offer of Appointment ............................................................ 21 
Section 4.22 - Removal of Names from Eligible Lists ................................................ 21 
Section 4.23 Restoration of Names to Eligible Lists ................................................. 22 

RULE 5 - CERTIFICATION AND APPOINTMENT ..................................................... 22 

ii 
Revised 2/7 /20 l 7 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section 5.0 I - Power of Appointment and Types of Appointments ............................ 22 
Section 5.02 - Procedure for Certification to Fill Vacancies in the Competitive Civil 
Service ........................................................................................................................... 22 
Section 5.03 - Selective Certification ........................................................................... 23 
Section 5.04 -- Limit on Certifications .......................................................................... 23 
Section 5.05 - Certification to Position in Lower Class ............................................... 23 
Section 5.06 -Temporary Appointments ..................................................................... 23 
Section 5.07 - Reassignment of Employees ................................................................. 25 
Section 5.08-Transfor of Employees .......................................................................... 25 
Section 5.09 -Transfer List .......................................................................................... 25 
Section 5.10 - Reassignment to Accommodate a Disability ........................................ 25 
Section 5.11 - Re-employment After Resignation ....................................................... 25 

RULE 6 - PROBATJONARY PERIOD ........................................................................... 27 
Section 6.01 - Probationary Period .............................................................................. 27 
Section 6.02 - Duration of Probationary Period ........................................................... 27 
Section 6.03 - Interruption of Probationary Period ...................................................... 27 
Section 6.04 Performance Rating During Probationary Period ................................. 27 
Section 6.05 - Removal or Demotion of Employee During The Probationary Period. 28 
Section 6.06- Limited Rights of an Employee During Probationary Period ............... 28 
Section 6.07 - Procedure to Be Used In Appeals and Hearings Under Section 6.06 ... 29 

RULE 7 - PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS ............................................................... 31 
Section 7.01 - Establishment of Performance Evaluation System ................................ 31 
Section 7 .02 - Official Copy of Employee Performance Evaluations .......................... 31 
Section 7.03 -- Participants in the Performance Evaluation Proeedure ......................... 31 
Section 7.04 - Assistance by the Port's Director of Human Resources ........................ 32 
Section 7 .05 - Open Records of Performance Evaluations ........................................... 32 

RULE 8 - VACATIONS AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE ............................................... 33 
Section 8.01 - Vacation Leave, Authority For .............................................................. 33 
Section 8.02 - Sick Leave - General ............................................................................. 36 
Section 8.03 ···- Parental Leave ....................................................................................... 38 
Section 8.04 - Injury on Duty ....................................................................................... 38 
Section 8.05 - Fan1ily Death Leave ............................................................................... 39 
Section 8.06 - Miscellaneous Leaves of Absence ......................................................... 40 
Section 8.07 - Return to Duty Following Leave ........................................................... 42 
Section 8.08 - Authorization to Approve Leaves ......................................................... 42 
Section 8.09 - Military Leave of Absence .................................................................... 42 

RULE 9 - SENIORJTY, LAYOFF, CHANGE IN STATUS, RESIGNATIONS ............ 43 
Section 9.01 - Layoffs ................................................................................................... 43 
Section 9.02 - Layoff Procedure ................................................................................... 43 
Section 9.03 - Reinstatement List ................................................................................ 45 
Section 9 .04 - Return of Laid-off Probationary Employees to Eligible Lists .............. 45 
Section 9.05 - Resignation ........................................................................................... 45 
Section 9.06 - Retire1nent ............................................................................................. 45 
Section 9.07 - Medical Separation ............................................................................... 46 
Section 9.08 -- Separation Due to Absence Without Leave .......................................... 46 
Section 9.09 -Termination of Seniority ....................................................................... 47 

111 
Revised 2/7/2017 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

RULE IO - DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS, APPEALS AND HEARINGS ....................... 47 
Section 10.01- Disciplinary Action ............................................................................... 47 
Section 10.02 - Procedure in Disciplinary Actions ....................................................... 48 
Section 10.03 - Appeal of Disciplinary Action ............................................................. 48 
Section I 0.04 - Procedures for Hearings by the Civil Service Board ........................... 48 
Section I 0.05 - Procedures for Hearing by a Hearing Officer ...................................... 50 
Section 10.06- Judicial Review of Final Administrative Decisions ............................ 51 

RULE 11 - PROHIBITIONS AND PENAL TIES ............................................................ 52 
Section 11.01 - Frauds Prohibited ................................................................................. 52 
Section 11.02 - Penalty ................................................................................................. 52 

RULE 12 - INCOMPATIBLE ACTIVITY OF PORT EMPLOYEES ............................ 53 
Section 12.0 l -Incompatible Activities; Incompatible Employment.. ......................... 53 
Section 12.02 Community Activities ......................................................................... 53 

RULE 13 --- PUBLIC RECORDS ..................................................................................... 54 
Section 13.01 - Records Open to the Public ................................................................. 54 
Section 13.02 - Disposition of Records ........................................................................ 54 

SAVJNC:,S CLAUSE ......................................................................................................... 54 
APPENDIX A - GUIDELINES FOR FILLING VACANCIES ....................................... 55 
APPENDIX B - COMMON CLASSES ........................................................................... 58 

iv 
Revised 2/7/2017 



Port Personnel Rules and Procedures 

RULE 6 - PROBATIONARY PERIOD 

Section 6.01-Probationary Period Every person appointed or promoted to a 
permanent position in the competitive civil service after certification from an eligible list, 
shall serve a period of probation while occupying such position, which shall be 
considered a part of the test of fitness. Former employees who are re-employed under the 
provisions of these rules shall be required to serve a period of probation of six (6) months 
from the date of re-employment. 

The probationary period shall be an essential part of the selection process, and shall be 
utilized for the most effective adjustment of a new employee and for the removal or 
demotion of any probationary employee whose performance does not meet the required 
standard of performance. 

Section 6.02-Duration of Probationary Period For entrance appointments, the 
duration of such probationary period shall be for a period of twelve (12) consecutive 
months of active service. The probationary period for persons appointed on a promotional 
basis shall be six (6) months. 

An employee accepting a regular entrance appointment who has served on a limited 
duration appointment in the same class immediately prior to her/his regular appointment 
shall have that period of time counted as part of her/his probationary period: Rights and 
privileges shall accrue from the beginning date of limited duration appointment and shall 
be considered the original appointment date. 

Section 6.03-lnterruption of Probationary Period If an employee is laid off 
during the probationary period and subsequently reappointed to the same class, he/she 
shall be given credit for the portion of the probationary period previously completed. 

If an employee is transferred during her/his probationary period from a position under the 
jurisdiction of the Executive Director or his/her designee to a position under the 
jurisdiction of another appointing authority, the second appointing authority shall grant 
credit for the portion of the probationary period previously completed. 

Section 6.04-Petformance Rating During Probationary Period The Executive 
Director or his/her designee shall file an approved report of performance at the end of the 
third and fifth months of employment for each employee serving a six-month 
probationary period. For probationary employees who have been required to serve a 
twelve-month probationary period, the Executive Director or his/her designee shall file 
with the Director of Human Resources a report of performance for each employee at the 
end of the third, fifth, eighth, and eleventh months of employment. This section does not 
preclude the filing of additional reports at any other time during the employment of any 
individual. 

Upon a favorable report, the appointment of the employee shall be deemed to be 
permanent at the expiration of the probationary period. In the event of an unfavorable 
report, the Executive Director or his/her designee shall notify the Port's Director of 

27 



Port Personnel Rules and Procedures 

Human Resources and the employee, at least five (5) working days in advance, that 
he/she will be removed from the position no later than the final date of the probationary 
period. 

Section 6.05 -Removal or Demotion of Employee During The Probationary 
Period At any time during the probationary period (entrance appointment to a classified 
position - one (I) year; entrance and restricted entrance appointment to a higher or equal 
classification -- one (1) year; or a promotional appointment- six (6) months), an 
employee may be removed from her/his current position by the Executive Director or 
his/her designee provided that: 

(a) Upon removal by the Executive Director or his/her designee, such probationer's 
name shall be removed from the eligible list from which he/she was certified, and 
he/she shall be considered permanently separated from that position without right 
of appeal to the Civil Service Board except as set forth in section 6.06. 

(b) If the employee has served at the Port or the City in another position in the 
competitive civil service, the employee shall be notified in writing by the 
Department of Human Resources within five (5) working days of removal that 
he/she may be reinstated to his/her prior classification from which promotion was 
made. The employee has five (5) working days from date of notification to 
respond in writing, stating her/his wish to be so reinstated. 

(c) Reinstatement to his/her former classification will be based on the circumstances 
of the removal from the most recent appointment during the probationary period 
and the employee's work record as determined by the Executive Director or 
his/her designcc. 

(d) If reinstatement is effected by the Executive Director or his/her designee, the 
employee shall be appointed to a vacant position in his/her former classification. 
If none is immediately available, it shall be the responsibility of the Executive 
Director or his/her dcsignce to provide such a vacancy as expeditiously as 
possible without violating the rules of any applicable Port/Union MOU, or these 
Port Personnel Rules and Procedures, concerning layoffs and without the 
necessity of creating an additional position. 

Section 6.06 - Limited Rights of an Employee During Probationary Period The 
right of an employee to appeal to the Civil Service Board because of her/his permanent 
separation from her/his position during his/her probationary period shall be limited to the 
following: 

(a) Failure of the Executive Director or his/her designee to comply with section 6.04 
of these Rules; 

(b) Failure of the Executive Director or his/her designee to comply with section 6.05 
of these Rules; 

(c) Discrimination against an employee during such probationary period on the basis 
of race, color, religion/religious creed, marital status, national origin/ancestry, 
sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, pregnancy, sexual orientation, 

28 



Port Personnel Rules and Procedures 

physical or mental disability, medical condition, genetic information, AIDS/HIV 
status, military or veteran status, age, citizenship or on any other status protected 
by federal, state or local law. 

Section 6. 07 - Procedure to Be Used In Appeals and Hearings Under Section 
6.06,__ Whenever an employee who has been permanently removed from her/his position 
during the probationary period desires to appeal under the provisions of section 6.06, the 
following order of procedure shall govern: 

(a) Order of Procedure in Appeals: 

1. The appeal must be filed in the office of the Executive Director or his/her 
designee within five (5) working days from the date that notice of removal 
was filed upon the affected employee. A letter sent to the affected 
employee's address of record via regular and certified mail, or hand 
delivered to the affected employee, shall constitute notification. 

ii. The appeal must be submitted in writing, and if the appellant desires to 
waive a public hearing, such a waiver must be in writing. 

111. The appeal shall state the sub-section of section 6.06 of these rules upon 
which it is based and a statement of the facts upon which such appeal is 
based. 

1v. Within seven (7) working days from the filing of this appeal, the 
Executive Director or his/her designee shall submit to the Civil Service 
Board in writing its response. 

v. At the first meeting of the Civil Service Board after the filing of the appeal 
and the Port's response, the appeal shall be received and a date for the 
hearing shall be set. The appeal hearing shall be held at the next meeting 
of the Civil Service Board, unless continued by the Civil Service Board. 

vi. Not Jess than five (5) working days before the date the appeal is scheduled 
for hearing, the Civil Service Board shall send: 

I. A written notice giving the date, time, and place of such hearing to 
the Executive Director or his/her designee, to the appellant or 
her/his attorney and/or representative, and to the Port Attorney; 

2. A copy of the appeal to the Executive Director or his/her dcsignee 
and the Port Attorney; a copy of the answer of the Executive 
Director or his/her designee to the appellant or her/his attorney or 
representative. 

vii. Hearings on appeals may be open to the public. However, upon motion of 
a directly interested party, the Chairperson of the Civil Service Board may 
exclude from the hearing room any witnesses not at the time under 
examination; except that a party to the proceeding and/or her/his counsel, 
or other persons conducting her/his case cannot be excluded. 

29 



Port Personnel Rules and Procedures 

v111. The technical rules of evidence shall not apply. However, all testimony 
and exhibits offered must be relevant and bear upon the act of removal. 
Any testimony or exhibits that do not meet these criteria may be excluded. 
The Civil Service Board shall consider the objection of either side to the 
introduction of evidence. 

1x. Hearings may be continued beyond the period originally scheduled or 
recessed until a future date agreeable to the Civil Service Board and the 
parties for good reason. Provided, however, that if such request is made by 
the appellant or her/his attorney of record and the Civil Service Board 
sustains the appeal, the Civil Service Board may rule that the appellant 
shall receive no pay for the period of time during which such continuance 
was granted. 

x. Based on the evidence presented at the hearing, the Civil Service Board 
shall render its decision which may be: 

a. to sustain the action of the appointing authority concerned; 

b. to sustain the appeal and reinstate the appellant in accordance 
with subsection xi below. 

x1. The words "probationary period" as defined in section 6.01 of these 
rules shall be construed to mean a period of probation consistent with 
the letter and spirit of these rules; if an appeal is sustained hereunder, 
the Civil Service Board may determine that there has been an 
interruption in the probationary period from the date of the cause 
giving rise to the appeal hereunder, to the date of the decision by the 
Civil Service Board, and the probationary period of the appellant may 
be extended by the length of such interruption. 

(b) Burden Of Proof: In any appeal under this section, the burden of proof shall be 
upon the appellant, and the evidence in support of the allegations made in such 
appeal must be clear and convincing. 

30 



EXHIBITD 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN 

SEIU LOCAL 1021 
AND 

THE PORT OF OAKLAND 

January 1, 2018 - June 30, 2022 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION - PARTIES TO M.O.U ..................................................................................................... 1 

l.A INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................................................................... ! 

1.B RECOGNITION ............................................................................................................................................ 1 

1.C NOTIFICATION OF NEW CLASSIFICATIONS .................................................................................................. 1 

1.C.1 NEW CLASSIFICATIONS ............................................................................................................................... 1 

1.C.2 DISPUTES OVER ASSIGNMENTS .................................................................................................................. 2 

ARTICLE 2 - MANAGEMENT AND UNION RIGHTS ................................................................................................... 2 

2.A STEWARDS ................................................................................................................................................. 2 

2.A.1 NUMBER OF STEWARDS .............................................................................................................................. 2 

2.A.2 LIST OF SUPERVISORS ................................................................................................................................ 2 

2.A.3 SCOPE OF STEWARDS ................................................................................................................................. 2 

2.A.4 RELEASE TIME ............................................................................................................................................ 3 

2.A.5 STEWARD MEETINGS ................................................................................................................................... 3 

2.B UNION ELECTIONS ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

2.C ACCESS TO WORK LOCATIONS ................................................................................................................... 3 

2.D USE OF MEETING SPACE ............................................................................................................................. 4 

2.E NOTIFICATION OF RULES ............................................................................................................................ 4 

2.F INFORMATION PROVIDED TO UNION; NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION ..................................................... 4 

2.G BULLETIN BOARDS ..................................................................................................................................... 4 

2.H INFORMATION PROVIDED TO THE UNION ................................................................................................. 5 

2.1 CONTRACTING OUT ................................................................................................................................... 5 

2.J WORK EFFORT ........................................................................................................................................... 9 

2.K PUBLIC RELATIONS .................................................................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE 3 - UNION SECURITY ............................................................................................................................... 10 



ARTICLE 4 - DISCHARGE, DISCIPLINE, RESIGNATION, COACHING AND COUNSELING ............................................. 11 

4.A GOOD AND SUFFICIENT CAUSE ................................................................................................................. 11 

4.B GROSS VIOLATIONS .................................................................................................................................. 11 

4.C PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE .......................................................................................................................... 11 

4.D COACHING AND COUNSELING ................................................................................................................... 11 

4.E NOTICE OF RESIGNATION .......................................................................................................................... 12 

4.F EXIT INTERVIEW ........................................................................................................................................ 12 

ARTICLE 5 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE .................................................................................................................... 12 

S.A DEFINITION ............................................................................................................................................... 12 

5.B RESOLUTION OF GRIEVANCES ................................................................................................................... 12 

S.B.1 OBJECTIVE OF GRIEVANCE SECTION .......................................................................................................... 12 

5.B.2 ORAL PRESENTATION TO IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR .................................................................................. 12 

S.B.3 FIRST STEP WRITTEN SUBMISSION TO IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR .............................................................. 12 

S.B.4 SECOND STEP SUBMISSION TO DEPARTMENT MANAGER ......................................................................... 13 

5.B.5 THIRD STEP SUBMISSION TO PORT ........................................................................................................... 13 

S.B.6 FOURTH STEP SUBMISSION TO ARBITRATION ........................................................................................... 13 

5.B.7 ARBITRATOR SELECTION ........................................................................................................................... 13 

5.B.8 ARBITRATION PROCEDURES ...................................................................................................................... 14 

5.8.9 CLARIFICATION OF GRIEVANCES ............................................................................................................... 14 

5.C FOURTH STEP OPTION CIVIL SERVICE OPTION IN DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE ......................................... 14 

S.D EXTENSION OF TIME LIMITS ...................................................................................................................... 14 

5.E PRESENCE AT HEARINGS ........................................................................................................................... 14 

5.F WITNESSES ................................................................................................................................................ 15 

5.G APPLICABLE LAW PROCEDURES ................................................................................................................ 15 

5.H WAIVER OF TIME LIMITS ........................................................................................................................... 15 

5.1 AWARD PAYMENT SCHEDULE ................................................................................................................... 15 

ARTICLE 6 - SENIORITY .......................................................................................................................................... 15 



6.A DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................................................. 15 

6.A.1 CLASSIFICATION SENIORITY ...................................................................................................................... 15 

6.A.2 PORT DATE OF SENIORITY ......................................................................................................................... 15 

6.B SENIORITY AND BIDDING .......................................................................................................................... 16 

6.8.1 VACATION LEAVE BIDDING ....................................................................................................................... 16 

6.B.2 SHIFT BIDDING AND JOB BIDDING ............................................................................................................ 16 

6.C SENIORITY AND OVERTIME ....................................................................................................................... 16 

6.D SENIORITY AND LEAVE .............................................................................................................................. 16 

6.D.1 SENIORITY AND MILITARY LEAVE .............................................................................................................. 16 

6.D.2 SUSPENSION/TERMINATION OF SENIORITY FOR EMPLOYEES WHO FAIL TO RETURN TO WORK AFTER 

MILITARY LEAVE ................................................................................................................................................... 16 

6.D.3 SENIORITY AND OTHER LEAVES OF ABSENCE ............................................................................................ 16 

6.D.4 SUSPENSION/TERMINATION OF SENIORITY FOR EMPLOYEES WHO VOLUNTARILY RESIGN ...................... 17 

6.D.5 SUSPENSION/TERMINATION FOR EMPLOYEES WHO RETIRE ..................................................................... 17 

6.E SENIORITY IN CASES OF IDENTICAL HIRING DATES .................................................................................... 17 

6.F SENIORITY LISTS ........................................................................................................................................ 17 

ARTICLE 7 - HIRING, LAYOFF AND REHIRING ......................................................................................................... 17 

7.A PROBATIONARY PERIOD ........................................................................................................................... 17 

7.A.1 LENGTH OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD ......................................................................................................... 17 

7.A.2 SERVICE RATINGS DURING PROBATIONARY PERIOD ................................................................................. 18 

7.B ENTRY LEVEL RESIDENCY PREFERENCE ...................................................................................................... 18 

7.C ELIGIBLE LISTS ........................................................................................................................................... 18 

7 .C.1 ELIGIBLE LIST FOR ENTRY LEVEL APPOINTMENTS ...................................................................................... 18 

7.C.2 ELIGIBLE LIST DURATION ........................................................................................................................... 18 

7.D VETERAN'S RIGHTS ................................................................................................................................... 18 

7.E REDUCTION IN FORCE ............................................................................................................................... 18 

7.F FILLING VACANCIES ................................................................................................................................... 19 



ARTICLE 8 - PROMOTION, DEMOTION AND TRANSFER ......................................................................................... 20 

8.A PROBATION PERIOD UPON PROMOTION .................................................................................................. 20 

8.B SERVICE RATINGS DURING PROBATION .................................................................................................... 20 

8.C RETURN RIGHTS ........................................................................................................................................ 20 

8.D PROMOTIONAL EXAMINATIONS ............................................................................................................... 20 

8.D.1 JOB VACANCY POSTING ............................................................................................................................ 20 

8.D.2 JOB TRAINING AND ADVANCEMENT COMMITTEE .................................................................................... 21 

8.D.3 NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE ................................................................................................................ 21 

8.D.4 NO RESIDENCY REQUIREMENT .................................................................................................................. 21 

8.D.S ORAL BOARD ............................................................................................................................................ 21 

8.D.6 PROMOTIONAL PREFERENCE POINTS - YEARS OF SERVICE ........................................................................ 21 

8.D.7. PROMOTIONAL PREFERENCE POINTS- RESIDENT ...................................................................................... 21 

8.D.8 PROMOTIONAL EXAMINATION INFORMATION ........................................................................................ 22 

8.D.9 NOTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDATION FOR APPOINTMENT .................................................................... 22 

8.E ELIGIBLE LIST FOR PROMOTIONAL POSITION ............................................................................................ 22 

8.F DURATION OF PROMOTIONAL LIST ........................................................................................................... 22 

8.G NON-SELECTION STATEMENT .................................................................................................................... 23 

8.H SUPPLEMENTAL TRAINING PROGRAMS .................................................................................................... 23 

8.1 TRANSFER LIST .......................................................................................................................................... 23 

ARTICLE 9 -TRAINING AND EDUCATION ............................................................................................................... 23 

9.A AVAILABLE EDUCATION COURSES ............................................................................................................. 23 

9.B REIMBURSEMENT ..................................................................................................................................... 24 

9.C APPROVAL PROCEDURE ............................................................................................................................ 24 

9.D HEAVY EQUIPMENT TRAINING COURSE AND DRIVING COURSE ................................................................ 24 

9.E PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT ................................................................................................................. 26 

ARTICLE 10 - SAFETY ............................................................................................................................................. 26 

10.A PROMOTION OF SAFETY ........................................................................................................................... 26 



10.A.1 SAFETY CHECKS ......................................................................................................................................... 27 

10.A.2 TRAINING .................................................................................................................................................. 27 

10.A.3 FRESH AIR SUPPLY ..................................................................................................................................... 27 

10.A.4 RESPIRATORS ............................................................................................................................................ 27 

10.A.5 HARD HAT/BUMP CAP USAGE . ................................................................................................................. 27 

10.A.6 VDT AND WORD PROCESSING SAFETY ..................................................................................................... 27 

10.A.7 JACl(ETS . ..................................................................................................... , ............................................. 28 

10.A.8 SAFETY SHOES ................................... ~ .. : .................................................................................................... 28 

10.A.9 HANDLING OF RAW SEWAGE . ................................................................................................................... 28 

10.B SAFETY COMMIITEES ................................................................................................................................ 28 

10.B.1 PORT SAFETY COMMITTEE ....................................................................................................................... 28 

10.B.2 PORT-UNION SAFETY COMMIITEE .......................................................................................................... 29 

10.B.3 PROPOSITION 65 ..................................................................................................................................... 29 

10.C SAFETY LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS ................................................................................................. 29 

10.D. DOT REGULATIONS COMPLIANCE ............................................................................................................... 30 

10.E AOC STAFFING ............................................................................................................................................. 30 

ARTICLE 11 - EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION ................................................................................ 31 

11.A PERSONNEL FILE ................................................................ : ....................................................................... 31 

11.A.1 COPIES OF DEROGATORY ENTRIES .................................................. ~ ......................................................... 31 

11.A.2 DEROGATORY ENTRIES ............................................................................................................................. 31 

11.A.3 ENTRIES TO BE USED IN DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS ............................................................................... 31 

11.A.4 REVIEW OF PERSONNEL FILE ..................................................................................................................... 31 

11.A.5 UNION REVIEW OF PERSONNEL FILE ......................................................................................................... 31 

11.A.6 CONFIDENTIALITY OF PERSONNEL FILE ...................................................... : .............................................. 31 

11.A.7 POSITIVE ENTRIES •••• , ................................................................................................................................ 32 

11.B CIVIL RIGHTS AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION .................................................................................................. 32 

11.B.1 NO DISCRIMINATION ................................................................................................................................ 32 



11.B.2 SUPPORT OF EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES ............................. , .................................................. 32 

11.B.3 EEO REPORT ....................................... , ...................................................................................................... 32 

11.B.4 PUBLICATION LIST ..................................................................................................................................... 32 

11.C EMPLOYEE SERVICE RATINGS AND REPORTS ....................... .' ............................... : ..................................... 32 

11.C.1 REPORTS OF PERFORMANCE ..................................................................................................................... 32 

11.C.2 NINE MONTH PROBATIONARY PERIOD ..................................................................................................... 32 

11.C.3 SIX MONTH PROBATIONARY PERIOD ........................................................................................................ 32 

11.C.4 RETURN RIGHTS • ....................................................................................................................................... 33 

11.C.5 REVIEWS BETWEEN ANNUAL PERFORMANCE APPRAISALS ....................................................................... 33 

11.C.6 EMPLOYEE SERVICE RATINGS .................................................................................................................... 33 

11.D EQUAL PAY FOR WOMEN .......................................................................................................................... 33 

ARTICLE 12 - WAGES ..................................... , ....................................................................................................... 33 

12.A SALARIES ................................................................................................................................................... 33 

12.B SALARY RATE INCREASE ............................................................................................................................ 34 

12.B.1 STEP INCREASES ........................................................................................................................................ 34 

12.B.2 EFFECTIVE DATES OF STEP INCREASES ....................................................................................................... 34 

12.B.3 SATISFACTORY SERVICE ............................................................................................................................ 34 

12.B.4 AIRPORT SERVICEMEN .............................................................................................................................. 34 

12.B.5 RELIEF AIRPORT SERVICEMEN . .......................................... , ........................................................................ 34 

12.B.6 AIRPORT ON-THE-JOB INJURY ................................................................................................................... 34 

12.B,7 STEP INCREASE DUE DATE ......................................................................................................................... 34 

12.B.8 GARDENER Ill ............................................................................................................................................ 35 

12.C CUSTODIAL ISSUES .................................................................................................................................... 35 

12.D RELIEF CUSTODIAN AND RELIEF TELEPHONE OPERATOR SENIORITY ......................................................... 35 

ARTICLE 13 - HOURS, WORKING CONDITIONS AND OVERTIME ............................................................................ 35 

13,A SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL ...................................... , ........................................................................................... 35 

13.A.1 SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL CALCULATION ........................................................................................................... 35 



13.A.2 EXTENSION OF SWING SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL .............................................................................................. 35 

13.A.3 CLASS A & B LICENSES ............................................................................................................ · ................ 35 

13.B SPLIT SHIFTS .............................................................................................................................................. 36 

13.C LUNCHES ................................................................................................................................................... 36 

13.D CUSTODIAL FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT .................................................................................................. 36 

13.0.1 CUSTODIAL TRAINING ............................................................................................................................... 36 

13.E UNIFORMS AND PROTECTIVE CLOTHING .................................................................................................. 36 

13.F TOOLS ....................................................................................................................................................... 37 

13.G GARDENER'S SPRAY CERTIFICATE .............................................................................................................. 37 

13.H MEAL PAY ................................................................................................................................................. 37 

13.1 REST PERIODS ........................................................................................................................................... 37 

13.J ACTING PAY .................................................................................................. : ........................................... 38 

13.J.1 JOB AUDITS ............................................................................................................................................... 38 

13.J.2 LEAD WORKER ASSIGNMENTS .................................................................................................................. 38 

13.K REASSIGNMENT NOTIFICATION ................................................................................................................ 38 

13.L OVERTIME ................................................................................................................................................. 39 

13.L.1 OVERTIME AND COMPENSATORY TIME OFF ............................................................................................. 39 

13.L.2 DISTRIBUTION OF OVERTIME .................................................................................................................. 39 

13.L.3 OVERTIME CANCELLATION ........................................................................................................................ 39 

13.L.4 SICK LEAVE/OVERTIME ............................................................................................................................... 40 

13.M COMPENSATORY BUY BACK ...................................................................................................................... 40 

13.N WORKER'S COMPENSATION ..................................................................................................................... 40 

13.0 HOURS OF WORK ..................................................................................................................................... .40 

13.P CALL BACK PAY ......................................................................................................................................... 40 

13.Q CHILD CARE FACILITY ................................................................................................................................ .41 

13.R SHIFTS EXCEEDING TWENTY-FOUR (24) HOURS ....................................................................................... .41 

13.S WORK-RELATED COMMUNICATIONS ........................................................................................................ 41 



13.T PARKING AT 530 WATER STREET .. .' ........................................................................................................... .41 

ARTICLE 14 - HOLIDAYS ........................................................................................................................................ 42 

14.A DESIGNATED HOLIDAYS ........................................................................................................................... .42 

14.B HOLIDAY PAY ............................................................................................................................................ 42 

14.C HOLIDAYS ON REGULAR DAY OFF ............................................................................................................. 42 

14.C.1 HOLIDAY ON NORMAL DAY OFF ................................................................................................................ 42 

14.C.2 HOLIDAY ON SUNDAY ............................................................................................................................... 43 

14.D CHRISTMAS EVE AND NEW YEAR'S EVE HALF SHIFT HOLIDAYS ................................................................. 43 

ARTICLE 15 -VACATION ........................................................................................................................................ 43 

15.A VACATION ACCRUAL ................................................................................................................................. 43 

15.B SENIORITY FOR VACATIONS ..................................................................................................................... .44 

15.C VACATION DEFERRAL ................................................................................................................................ 44 

15.D VACATION INCREMENTS .......................................................................................................................... .44 

15.E ILLNESS DURING VACATION ...................................................................................................................... 45 

15.F PAYDAY DURING VACATION .................................................................................................................... .45 

15.G HOLIDAY DURING VACATION .................................................................................................................... 45 

ARTICLE 16 - LEAVES OF ABSENCE ........................................................................................................................ 45 

16.A SICK LEAVE ............................................................................................................................................... .45 

16.A.1 DEFINITION OF IMMEDIATE FAMILY ......................................................................................................... 45 

16.A.2 DOMESTIC PARTNERSHJP .......................................................................................................................... 45 

16.A.3 ENTITLEMENT ........................................................................................................................................... 46 

16.A.4 UNUSED SICK LEAVE ................................................................................................................................. .46 

16.A.5 PORT ATIENDANCE PROGRAM ............................................................................................................... 46 

16.A.6 FAMILY ILLNESS ......................................................................................................................................... 49 

16.A.7 SICK LEAVE BUY-BACK ............................................................................................................................... 49 

16.A.8 MEDICAL AND DENTAL APPOINTMENTS ................................................................................................... 49 

16.B PERSONAL LEAVE ..................................................................................................................................... .49 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 



16.C MATERNITY LEAVE .................................................................................................................................... 49 

16.D PARENTAL LEAVE ...................................................................................................................................... 50 

16.E JURY DUTY LEAVE ..................................................................................................................................... 50 

16.F MILITARY LEAVE ........................................................................................................................................ 50 

16.G FAMILY DEATH LEAVE ............................................................................................................................... 50 

16.G.1 SPECIAL CASES .......................................................................................................................................... 50 

16.G.2 ELIGIBILITY APPROVAL .............................................................................................................................. 51 

16.G.3 EXCEPTIONAL HARDSHIP ........................................................................................................................... 51 

16.H PREMIUM PAY DURING PAID LEAVE ......................................................................................................... 51 

16.J ON-THE-JOB INJURY LEAVE ....................................................................................................................... 51 

16.1.1 ON-THE-JOB INJURY LEAVE ....................................................................................................................... 51 

16.1.2 ON-THE-JOB INJURY BENEFITS .................................................................................................................. 52 

16.J.3 RETURN TO WORK .................................................................................................................................... 52 

16.1.4 REHABILITATION AND RETRAINING .......................................................................................................... 52 

16.J LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY ............................................................................................................ 52 

16.K LEAVE BENEFITS UNDER FMLA AND CFRA ................................................................................................. 53 

16.L EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (EAP) ................................................................................................. 53 

ARTICLE 17 - INSURANCE BENEFITS ...................................................................................................................... 53 

17.A HEALTH PLANS .......................................................................................................................................... 53 

17. A,1 MEDICAL PLANS ....................................................................................................................................... 53 

17.A.2 RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS .................................................................................................................... 54 

17.A.3 MEDICAL BENEFITS FOR O.M.E.R.S. EMPLOYEES AND RETIREES .............................................................. 56 

17.A.4 HEALTH CARE REFORM ............................................................................................................................ 57 

17 .A.5 FLEXIBLE BENEFITS .................................................................................................................................... 57 

17.B VISION CARE ............................................................................................................................................. 57 

17.C DENTAL PLAN ............................................................................................................................................ 57 

17.C.1 PORT CONTRIBUTION TO DENTAL PLAN ................................................................................................... 57 



17.C.2 DENTAL PLAN REVIEW .............................................................................................................................. 57 

17.D LIFE INSURANCE ........................................................................................................................................ 57 

17.E DISABILITY INSURANCE ............................................................................................................................. 58 

17.E.1 STATE DISABILITY INSURANCE .................................................................................................................. 58 

17.E.2 LONG TERM DISABILITY ............................................................................................................................ 58 

17.F HEALTH BENEFITS LIMITATIONS DURING LEAVE WITHOUT PAY ................................................................ 58 

17.G ALTERNATE MEDICAL COVERAGE, CASH IN LIEU ...................................................................................... 58 

ARTICLE 18 - RETIREMENT .................................................................................................................................... 58 

18.A EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION ....................................................................................................................... 58 

18.B EMPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS ..................................................................................................................... 59 

18.C CURRENT P.E.R.S. BENEFITS ...................................................................................................................... 59 

18.C.1 MILITARY SERVICES CREDITED AS PUBLIC SERVICE .................................................................................... 59 

18.C.2 FINAL COMPENSATION ............................................................................................................................. 59 

18.C.3 SURVIVOR CONTINUANCE ...................................................................................................................... 59 

18.C.4 BENEFIT FACTOR .................................................................................................................................... 59 

18.C.5 NOT ELIGIBLE TO RETIRE AT THE TIME OF DEATH ..................................................................................... 60 

ARTICLE 19 - JOINT LABOR/MANAGEMENT RELATIONS COMMITTEE ................................................................... 60 

ARTICLE 20 - MISCELLANEOUS AND DURATION .................................................................................................... 61 

20.A SEPARABILITY AND REVISIONS OF SEVERED POSITIONS ............................................................................ 61 

20.B REVIVING VACANT CLASSIFICATIONS ........................................................................................................ 61 

20.C MEMORANDUM IS ENTIRE AGREEMENT ................................................................................................... 61 

20.D TERM OF AGREEMENT .............................................................................................................................. 61 

ARTICLE 21- PAYROLL. ......................................................................................................................................... 62 

21.A EMPLOYEE PAY STUBS ............................................................................... ; .............................................. 62 

EXHIBIT A ............................................................................................................................................................. 64 

EXHIBIT B 

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT REGARDING PERCENTAGE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION FOR NEW RETIREES AND 

FUTURE LEGISLATION ........................................................................................................................................... 65 



EXHIBIT C 
SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT REGARDING CONTRACTING OUT ............................................................................ 67 

EXHIBIT D ............................................................................................................................................................. 69 

EXHIBIT E .............................................................................................................................................................. 70 

EXHIBIT F 
SALARY TABLE ...................................................................................................................................................... 71 

EXHIBIT G 
SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT REGARDING SUSPENDED DRIVER'S LICENSE (PETA) ................................................ 83 

ATTACHMENT 1 
DECLARATION OF DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP ......................................................................................................... 88 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NOTICE OF TERMINATION OF DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP ...................................................................................... 89 

ATTACHMENT 3 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL LIABILITY FOR DOMESTIC PARTNERSHIP .................... ; .............................................. 90 

ATTACHMENT 4 \ 
FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (AN OVERVIEW} ...................................................................................................... 91 



• A vacancy exists when either the Port determines to fill a permanent position 
where the employee in a permanent position has resigned, retired, died, 
terminated, reassigned, transferred; or the Port creates a new position within the 
classified system. 

ARTICLE 8 - PROMOTION, DEMOTION AND TRANSFER 

8.A Probation Period Upon Promotion 

The probationary period of an employee filling a position from a promotional 
examination shall not exceed six (6) months in duration. 

8.B Service Ratings During Probation 

An employee in a six (6) month probationary period shall receive a Report of 
Performance for Probationary Employee at the end of the third and fifth months of 
service and annually thereafter. 

8.C Return Rights 

An employee proving unsatisfactory or electing to decline a promotional position 
during the probationary period shall have full return rights to her/his former classification 
without loss of seniority or other benefits. 

8.D Promotional Examinations 

8.D.1 Job Vacancy Posting. The Port agrees to post examination 
announcements for represented positions on the official Port bulletin board outside of 
the Port Personnel (Personnel and Employee Services) Department and the designated 
SEIU Union bulletin boards. Announcements for examinations conducted by the Port 
Personnel (Personnel and Employee Services) Department will be posted no later than 
ten (10) working days before the application filing date. Announcements for 
examinations conducted by the City of Oakland Personnel (Examination and 
Classification) Department will be posted one (1) day after receipt from the City of 
Oakland. In the event an examination announcement is received late from the City of 
Oakland, the Port will support the Union's efforts to extend the application filing date. 

Examination announcements and application forms for represented 
positions will be available through the Port Personnel (Personnel and Employee 
Services) Department. The Port will also transmit and post, as soon as possible, copies 

20 



of examination announcements for represented positions on the designated SEJU Union 
bulletin boards. In addition, the Port will transmit copies of examination announcements 
for represented positions to the Union Chapter President and Union stewards identified 
by the Union as soon as possible. The posting sites may be changed by mutual 
agreement. 

The Port shall print the phone number that employees may call to find out 
about job vacancies and promotional opportunities in the Port and the City on paycheck 
stubs. The Port will transmit copies of examination announcements to the Union 
Business Agent at the Union Office. 

8.D.2 Job Training and Advancement Committee. The Port and the 
Union agree to establish a Job Training and Advancement Committee comprised of 
three Union representatives, three Port staff members, and appropriate Administrative 
staff in ex officio status, who shall be responsible for making recommendations to 
Administration on the development and implementation of training programs for Port 
employees. All represented employees shall be encouraged to participate in any 
training programs developed from recommendations of this committee. 

8.D.3 Non~Discrimination Clause. The parties agree to protect and 
safeguard the right and opportunity of all persons to seek, obtain, and hold employment 
without discrimination on account of "race", color, religious creed, national origin, age, 
sex, physical handicap, sexual orientation, veteran status, or protected union activity. 

8.D.4 No Residency Requirement. There shall be no residency 
requirement for an employee to qualify for a promotional examination. 

8.D.5 Oral Board. Except for filling unique and complex positions, no 
Port employee will sit as a voting member of an oral board for promotional 
examinations. A Port member may sit as a non-voting member for the purposes of 
serving as a resource person and maintaining the orientation of the oral board. No 
department representative shall be present during an oral promotional examination 
except as specified above. 

8.0.6 Promotional Preference Points - Years of Service. An employee 
who has completed ten (10) or more years of City/Port service and who successfully 
completes in a promotional examination shall receive five (5) points added to her/his 
final examination score. An employee who has completed fewer than ten (10) full years 
of City/Port service and who successfully competes in a promotional examination shall 
receive an additional number of points not to exceed a maximum of five (5) added to 
her/his final examination score prorated in accordance with her/his number of years of 
City/Port service. 

8.D.7. Promotional Preference Points - Resident. A City of Oakland 
resident competing in such examination shall be given an additional five (5) percent on 
her/his score provided (s)he initially scores a passing grade on the examination and has 

21 



been a resident for a minimum of one (1) year as of the date of the job announcement 
for that examination. 

8.D.8 Promotional Examination Information. The Port shall make 
information regarding promotional examinations available to Port employees at the 
earliest possible date. The Port will provide promotional examination information at 
least one month in advance of the examination deadline unless extenuating 
circumstances prohibit. 

Such information shall be posted, among other areas, on all Union bulletin 
boards and at other mutually agreed upon locations. The Port will make its best effort to 
establish a better liaison with the City of Oakland Personnel (Examination and 
Classification) Department in order to obtain more timely information regarding job 
opportunities available to Port employees. 

When information regarding such Port job opportunities cannot be 
provided by the application deadline, the Port will attempt to obtain an extension of the 
deadline for those employees who, because the Port did not provide the information, did 
not get notice. 

8.D.9 Notification of Recommendation for Appointment. Candidates 
for represented positions shall be advised of their status by the Personnel and 
Employees Services Department. Those candidates who participate in departmental 
interviews who are recommended for appointment shall be given written notification 
from the Personnel and Employee Services Department, notifying them that another 
candidate(s) has been recommended for appointment. The Union shall be notified 
when represented positions have been filled, and will be given the names of selected 
applicants in represented positions. 

8.E Eligible List for Promotional Position 

Whenever a promotional position in the classified Civil Service is to be filled for 
which no reinstatement list exists, the appointing authority shall receive a list of four (4) 
names. In the case of multiple vacancies, the appointing authority shall receive a list of 
four (4) names plus two (2) names for each additional vacancy to be filled provided, 
however, that a lesser number may be certified when there is not the required number 
on the eligible list. Individuals on the promotional eligible list shall be certified and 
considered for appointment before individuals on the original entrance and/or restricted 
eligible list(s). 

8.F Duration of Promotional List 

Promotional level eligibility lists are of two (2) years' duration, unless changed by 
the City of Oakland. Regarding duration of promotional lists, the Port and the Union 

22 



agree to meet and confer with respect to any contemplated changes. The Port shall 
make recommendations of two (2) years' duration to the city on Port-unique represented 
classifications; exceptions of two (2) years' duration recommendations will be mutual 
agreement between the Port and the Union. 

8.G NonHSelection Statement 

An employee otherwise qualified for selection for a promotional position who is 
not recommended for appointment to said position shall upon her/his request be given a 
written statement from the appropriate supervisor indicating the reason or reasons for 
her/his non-selection. 

8.H Supplemental Training Programs 

In the event open/promotional examinations fail to provide successful candidates 
from among Port employees represented by the Union, the Port and the Union may 
meet to discuss whether specific on-the-job training or other training programs should 
be initiated to upgrade the skills of interested employees. Out of class pay for 
employees participating in promotional supplemental training agreed to by the Port and 
the Union shall be determined on a case by case basis, by mutual agreement between 
the Port and the Union. 

8.1 Transfer List 

The Port shall post notices of all Port vacancies in each location listed in Section 
8.0.1 for a period of not less than ten (10) working days in order to afford employees 
interested in reassignment within the same classification an opportunity to apply for 
vacant positions. Each such notice shall describe the classification of the position to be 
filled, the physical location of the position, its starting and quitting time, and a general 
description of the work to be performed. If five or fewer employees request an 
interview, each employee shall be interviewed. If more than five employees request an 
interview, at least the most senior five shall be interviewed. In selecting the person to fill 
the vacancy, seniority shall be a factor in consideration. 

ARTICLE 9 H TRAINING AND EDUCATION 

9.A Available Education Courses 

The Port wishes to encourage bargaining unit employees to take advantage of 
educational courses. Such educational courses must further the knowledge of the 
bargaining employees in the performance of their present duties or facilitate their 

23 



EXHIBITE 



 
 

On Tue, Jan 1, 2019 1 9:38 PM Joshua Wilson  wrote: 

i ---------- Forwarded message---------
; 

From: <njeu@portoakland.com> 

Date: Tue, Dec 18, 2018, 4:33 PM 

i Subject: PORT MAINTENANCE LEADER (PROMOTIONAL) 

; To:  

December 18, 2018 

Joshua Wilson 

 

 

Dear .Joshua: 

Candidate IDff: 34143930 

I am pleased to inform you that you are among the candidates invited to participate in the written 

examination process for the position of PORT MAINTENANCE LEADER (PROMOTIONAL). 

The date, time, location and estimated length of the test are shown below: 

Date: 01/10/2019 

Time: 9:00 AM 

Estimated Length: 1 hour, 30 minutes 

Location: 3rd Fl. Training Room 

Arrive 15 minutes before your scheduled time and bring this notification along with photo 

identification to check-in for the written exam. Once the instructions for the examination have 

begun, no one will be admitted into the test site. Feel free to dress in casual clothes. Please bring 

a battery operated or solar powered calculator with you. No books or smart phones will be 

allowed. 

Our office is located in Jack London Square at 530 Water Street. Paid parking is available at the 

parking structure on the corner of Embarcadero West and Washington Streets (across from .lack 

London Cinema). We will not validate parking. 

If you wish to claim Oakland residency credit, you must also bring proof of your Oakland address. 

Acceptable proof includes items such as gas and electric, water, or trash utility bills (i.e., PG&E, 

mailto:nieu@pnrtoakland.com


EBMUD, Waste Management). This bill will require your name and address clearly indicated on it. 

The Port is committed to making reasonable accommodations In the selection process and in the 

work environment in compliance the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), State, and Federal laws. 

Individuals requesting reasonable accommodations in the selection process should notify us at 

least five working days before the test date. Otherwise, it may not be possible to arrange 

accommodations for the selection process. To request a reasonable accommodation, please call 

(510) 627-1487 or email at jlagman@portoakland.com. 

Please RSVP your attendance to this test by emailing jlagman@portoakland.com. If you are unable 

to attend, please notify our testing staff at (510) 627-1487. 

Sincerely 

Nancy.leu 

Port of Oakland 

Human Resources Department 

rlJl L.._ .... 

If you do not want to receive emails please click on the following : Unsubscribe frorn Emails 

~~ The sender of this message is external to the Port of Oaldand. Please think before you 
click on any links or open any attachments. 

(Disclaimer posted by Po1iIT71394.) 

mailto:lagrnan@portoakland.com


EXHIBITF 



From: Joshua Wilson [mailto:j  

Sent: Wednesday, January 02, 2019 3:24 PM 

To: Justin Lagman <jlagman@portoakland.com> 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RSVP PORT MAINTENANCE LEADER (PROMOTIONAL) reasonable 

accomrnodations request. 

,January 2, 2019 

Port of Oakland 
Human Resources Team 
51 ·f water Street Oakland CA 94607 

To whom It May Concern, 

I am pleased to have passed the supplemental question portibn, for the Port Maintenance Leadman 
position promotion. I would like to request reasonable accommodation for the written exam on Janua1y 
10, 2019 

Reasonable accommodation: 
-Extended time 2x. 
-Distraction free room environment. 

I had the opportunity to test for the Port of Oal<land Plumber postilion in 2017. I was able to utilize my 
reasonable accommodation to give myself the best opportunity for success. However I would like to notify 
the human resources team about my personal experience with this accommodation. I personally felt 
singled out and uncomfotiable about having to report to the same assigned testing location and then 
having too be escorted to a different location to test. With the Port Maintenance Leadman position being a 
promotion and having coworkers, I work with on a daily basis potentially being in the exam. I would like to 
l<eep my ability to have accommodations private. This will give me a chance to keep a professional 
relationship with my management team and peers. If my request for reasonable accommodation Is 
approved for January 10, 2019 written exam. If possible I would like to report directly to the approp1fate 
testing location for my accommodations. 

Sincerely, 

Joshua.D.Wilson 
Semiskilled Labor EF-81 Harbor 
Candidate 10#34143930 



EXHIBITG 



' 

Mr. Joshua WIison 
 

 

Dear Mr. Wilson: 

July 19, 2019 

Congratulations! You were recommended by the Engineering Division and 
approved by the Executive Director to be appointed to the position of Port 
Maintenance Leader. The sa!ary for the position is $9,036 pet month, rate 
cl and the effective date of this appointrnont is July 27, 2019. 

Tht) Port Maintenance Leader classification is governed by the Civil 
Service Rules and is non-exempt from the Fair Labor Standards Act. You 
wlll begin a 6 month probationary period endlng January 27, 2020. 

If you have any questions regarding this appointment, please call me at 
627~1519. 

Sincerely, 

QJ!ztujJ ;<t!k,fwJ-
Staoie Chestnut 
Human Resources Manager 

The proposed terms and conditions are hereby acknowledged. 

~cpl&-· 
~huaWilsoh 

cc: Kevin Pittman 
M111le Cleveland 
Personnel FilB 

I 
I 

.. ······--·--- .. -· .. ···' ····· ... ' -·· -·--~----.. --···-~-~ ··--·-"·~~---~-~-·------~--------~--~-··~---·-------,-~->,--·------··-~-~·-·---- -~-··· 

530 Water Street ~ .Jack London Square 111 P.O. Box 2064 m Oakland, California 94604-2064 
Telephone: (510).627 .. 1100 Ill Facsimile: (51 O} 627··1826 kil Web Page; www.portofoakland.corn 



EXHIBITH 



CITY OF OAKLAND 3 ,e,\ 0-w \+

vruvJo.~l\. REPORT OF PERFORMANCE FOR PERMANENT EMPLOYEE 

Name Joshua Wilson Date of report October 25, 2019 

fa\~ss Port Maintenance Leader ~i~1eber_E_F_8_2 _____ ~- Agency Port of Oakland 

To the best ofmy judgment, the performance ratings as checked on this RATINGS ARE INDICATED DY "X" MARKS 

report, indicate how well you have been pe1forming your duties since your UNACCEPTABLE SKORTOF STANDARD ABOVE OUTSTANDING 

last report. The ratings and comments on the copy you receive are the lrt1P-1'ovement STANDARO STANDARD 
is U1·g,mtty Need to Thoroughly Exceptional Dhtinctly 

same as shown on the copies I am forwarding. Needed Improve Competent Peiformance Supcrio1· 

PERFORMANCE FACTORS-RATE AT LEAST 5 OR MORE FACTORS BUT ONLY THOSE 
RELATED TO TllE JOB, I ,./ 

I. QUALITY OF WO!U(- The acccrtability of work pcrfonncd, accuracy, precision, completeness and J neatness of work. 2 
2. QUANTITY OF WORK -The amounfo;ifwork performed by employee in relatirrn to tl,e amount \lt1 

" 
established as standard for position. 3 

J. DEPENDABILITY - Ability ta do the job without undue supervision, to complete work wii11in 

" 
a reasonable tim.e, to meet deadline. 

4 
4. \VOllK HAIHTS. ,. Extent employee 11scs care in pcrformin%.his duties, organization of work, 
. safety, care of equipment, pu11ctuahty, 111dustry. allen<lauce, tar mess. j 
5. COOPERATION AND RELATIONSHIPS WITII PEOPLli', - Ability to get along with others, 5 

cifoctivcucss in dealing with public, other employees. 

" 6. INITIATIVE AND L',GENUI'l'Y, Self-reliance, resaurcefolncss. willingness, and ability lo accepl 6 
and cany out responsibilities. 

7. ANALYTICAL ABILITY - Thoroughness nnd accuracy of analysis of date, facts, laws and rules. 7 

8, ABILITY AS SUPERVISOR- Proficiency in training employees and in planning, orgnni- 8 
zing, laying out and getting out work; leadership. 

9, ADMINISTRATIVE AilILrrY-Promptness of action; soUildncss of decision; arplication 
of good ruanagem.ent principles. . 

9 

10, FACTORS NOT LISTED ABOVE- (use additional sheets if needed). 
10 

OVER-ALL RATING - The over-all rating must be consistent with the factor rating 
and comments (check one). " SUl'ERVISOR'S COMMENTS TO EMPLOYEE· (Supervisors must make written comments on all factors rated above even though the ratings are Standard. 

Written suggestions on to how work performance can be improved must also be made when needed. Use additional sheets if more space is needed.) 

I/. . 
Signal11re ~ 

of RATER 
!11 signing this report, I do not necessarily agree with the conclusion of the rntcr. 

Tit! Port Maintenance Foreman Datr,_()ctober 25, 2019 

D I wish to discuss this rer,ort witl1 
the Reviewing Officer of my Department. Signature of 

EMPLOYEE Date October 25, 2019 
I agree in (he 

S ignalurc of 
REVIEW!NG OFFICER 

400-121 
CIVIL SERVICE 

Date 

A~ requested, Reviewing Officer discussed rep01t With 
employee. 

Signature Date 

I 
I 
I 
i 
I 
! 
I 
! 
•I 
I 

I 
I 
ti 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
ii 
n 

I! 

I 
I 
' I 
I ,I 
!! 



EXHIBIT I 



CITY OF OAKLAND 

REPORT OF PERFORMANCE FOR PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEE 

0 FIRST 
Name .. ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------····---------------------------------------------- Odle ofrcporL---------------------------------------------····-··--------------···- D SECOND 
Class Code D THIRD 
title ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------nurnber ______________________________________________ Agency_____________________________________________________________________________ D FINAL 

To the best of my judgment the ratings checked on this report indicate RATINGS ARE INDICATED BY "X" MARKS . , , 
how well you have been learning and doing your work during the Proba- UNACCEPTABLE SHORT OF STANDARD ABOVE OUTSTANDING 

tionary period. The ratings and comments on the copy you receive are the Im rrovement STANDARD STANDARD 

is Urgently Need to Thoroughly Exceptional Distinctly 
same as shown on the copies l am forwarding. Needed Improve Competent Performance Superior 

PERFORMANCE FACTORS-RATE AT LEAST 7 OR MORE FACTORS BUT ONLY THOSE 
RELATED TO nm JOB. I 

I. Sl(ILL - £?-,-pertness in doing specific tasks; accuracy; precision; con1pleteness; neat-
ness; quantrty. 2 

2. KNOWLEDGE-Extent of knowledge of methods, materials, tools, equipment, technical 
expressions and other fundaincntal subjects matter. 3 

3. WOH.l( HABITS - Organization of·work; care ofequipn1ent; safety considerations; 
pro111ptness; industry; attendance: tardiness. 

4 
4. RELATIONSHIPS WITH PEOPLE-Ability to get along with others; effectiveness in 

dealing with the public, other e111ployees, patients or inmates. 

5. LEARNING ABILITY-Speed and thoroughness in learning procedures, laws, rules and 5 
other details; alertness; perseverance. 

6. ATTITUDE-Enthusias111 for the work~ willingness to conform to job require111ents and 6 
to accept suggestions for work improvement~ adaptability. 

7. PERSONAL FITNESS - Integrity; 
appearance and habits. 

sobriety; emotional stability~ physical condition~ 7 

8. ABILITY AS SUPERVISOR - Proficiency in training employees and in planning, organ- 8 
izing, laying out and getting out work: leadership. 

9. Al)MINISTRATIVE A!HI,ITY-Promptness of action; soundness of decision; application 
of good management pnnc1ples. 9 

IO. FACTORS NOT LISTED ABOVE -
10 

OVER-ALL RATING - The over-all rating must be consistent with the factor rating 
and comments ( check one). 

SUPERVISOR'S COMMENTS TO EMPLOYEE - Supervisors must make written comments on all factors rated above even though the ratings are Standard. Written 
suggestions on lo how work performance can be improved must also be made when needed. Use additional sheets if more space is needed.) 

0 I RECOMMEND THAT YOU BE GRANTED PERMANENT STATUS. (To be checked on final report; employee must be notified if rejected.) 

Signature 
of RATER---------------------------·--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------·--·-· Titlc _________________ ·----------------------------------------------------------------Date-------------------------------------·-----

ln signing this report, I do not necessarily agree with the conclusion of the rater. 

Signature of 
EMPLOYEE Date 

I agree in the ratings given by the ralor. I have made no change in the report. 

Signature of 
AGENCY REVIEWING OFFICER Date 

400-120 
CIVIL SERVICE 

D I wish to discuss this report with 
the Reviewmg Officer of my Department. 

As requested, Reviewing Officer discussed report With 
employee. 

Signature Date 



EXHIBIT J 



· .. Pame~a lrnwod< 
l·E 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

::::: ··-·EE?~ •z-:-- . ··-,&?-

Millie Cleveland <mi11ie.clevelancl@seiu1021.org> 
Wednesday, December 11, 2019 4:17 PM 
Pamela Trawick 
[EXTERNAL] Joshua Wilson 

The sender of this message is external to the Port of Oakland. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

(Disclaimer posted by PortlT71394.) --------------

Pam 
The Union is willing to extend the probation period for Joshua Wilson for the requested 90 days. Please correct me if you 
had asked for a different length of time. 

Please excuse typos sent from my iPhone 

Millie Cleveland 
SEIU Local 1021 

Union Field Representative 
Office (510) 350-4539 
Cell (510) 710-0201 

1 

mailto:millie.cleveland@seiu1021.org


EXHIBITK 



· : IPamsiai 'frrawkk 
l!...:'.±S:2-.LE 5 · · -fr -,-

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

-Eh ·- 5?-- ···-------f5 #..::..Z.JU. -- ±S& I Wo - ··=-ti• -i} :;;:r 

Millie Cleveland <millie.cleve1and@seiu1021.org> 
Friday, December 13, 2019 3:07 PM 
Pamela Trawick; Bill Morrison 
Joshua Wilson 
[EXTERNAL] Joshua Wilson 

e FF ..;e--e I 

The sender of this message is external to the Port of Oakland. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

(Disclaimer posted by PortlT71394.) -------------

Pam 
Joshua has requested that the Union not approve the extension of his probationary period. The Union is respecting his 
request and rescinding the approval for the probationary period extension. His probationary period should end on his 
original date of January 27, 2020. 

Please excuse typos sent from my iPhone 

Millie Cleveland 
SEIU Local 1021 
Union Field Representative 
Office (510) 350-4539 
Cell (510) 710-0201 

1 

mailto:millie.cleveland@seiu1021.org


EXHIBITL 



PORT OF OAKLAND 
HAND D.~.klYERD AND .SENT VIA REGULAR U.S. MAI~ 

January 6, 2020 ~, .. 

Joshua Wilson 
 
 

Re: December 23, 2019 Request for Appeal to Civil Service Board - Demotion 

Dear Mr. Wilson: 

This is in response to your December 23, 2019 letter (attached) regarding your removal from 
your position as Port Maintenance Leader effective December 20, 2019. In it, you allege that 
Port Personnel Rule 6.06(c} "protects you under the ADA for [your] learning disability" and that 
the Port discriminated against you because of your learning disability. In your letter, you 
requested a public hearing. 

Article 8, Section 8.A of your Port of Oakland (11Port11
) and SEIU Local 1021 Memorandum of 

Understanding specifically provides that "the probationcJry period of an employee filling a 
position from a promotional examination shall not exceed six (6) months." 

On December 11, 2019 the Human Resources Department contacted SEIU Local 1021 via 
telephone to request a 90-day extension (until April 27, 2020) of your probationary period ·as a 

Port Maintenance Leader to further assess yciur performance. 

On December 11, 2019, SEIU Local 1021 approved the Port's request to extend your 
probationary period and informed the Port's Human Resources Department via email 
(attciched) that "the Union is willing to extend Joshua Wilson's probation.u 

On December 13, 2019, SEIU Local 1021 rescinded its approval of the extension of your 
probationary period and inf9rmed Human ·Resources via email (attached) that: 

Joshua has requested that the Union not approve the 
extension of his probationary period. The Union is resp·ecting 

his request and rescinding the approval for the probationary 
period extension. His probationary period should end on his 
original date of January 27, 2020. 

" 
530 Water Street m Jack London Square III P.O. Box 2064 11 Oakland, California 94604-2064 

Telephone: (51 O) 627-1100 m Facsimile: (51 O) 627-1826 a Web Page: www.portofoakland.com 

http://www.portofoakland.com


i/, 

Joshua Wilson 
January 6, 2019 
Pag(·: 2 

Section 6.05 of the Port's Personnel Rules ,:ind Procedures, "Removal or Demotion of Employee 

During the Probation my Period," provides in pertinent part as follows: 

At any time during the probationary period (entrance to a 
classified posjtion - one (1) ye·ar; entrance and restricted 

entrance appointment.to a hieher or equal classification-· 

one (1) year; or a promotion;:il appointment- six (6) months, 

an employee may be removed from his/her current position 

by the E)<ecutivc Director or his/her designee. 

In accordance with Section 6.05, and absent the further assessment, the Port removed you 

from your position as Port Maintenance Leader effective December 20, 2019. 

At no time during your probationary period did you advise the Port that you had a disability and 

that you required an accon1modation. 

Enclosed for your reference is Section 6.06 "Limited Right by l:mployees during Probatiomiry 

Period/) and Section 6.07 "Procedure to be Used in Appeals and Hearing Under Section 6.06." 

Sincerely, 

11u1~ ffcitc)LLo/PT 
Michael Mitchell 

Director of Human Resources 

/\ttachrnents 

cc: City of Oakland Civil Service Board 

!an Appleyard, Secretary to the Civil Service Board/City of Oakland Human Resources 

Director 

Danny Wan, Port of Oakland Executive Director 

Millie Cleveland, Representative, SEIU Local 1021 
Gill Morrison, Harbdr Facilities Manager 

Parncla Trawick, Labor Relations Manager 

Stacie Chestnut, Human Resources Manager 





  
   

  
 

             
          

          
       
      

         
         
       

              
           

                  
     

             
               

    
  
    

 

       
             

 
       

     
     

     
     









 

     

    

          
             

             
               
                 

     

               
               

            
   

         
              

             
      

             
            

               
             

       

            
            

             

              
             
           

          

        
                

             
            
           

               
               

               
 

              
              

             

 



 

     

              
                
 

          
             

             
           

             
    

            
              
           

              

                 
            
            

            
             

          

            
            
            

  

             
            

             
            
            

          
      

          
               

             
  

              
   

              
   

            
         

         

 

 
 



  

     

         
             

       

           
             

              
      

     

               
             

            
           

        

              
           

              
               
 

             
           

     

                
              

              
            

               
        

              
          

         

             
            

           
 

              
            

            
           

         

 



     

            
             
             
             

   

           
             

             
            

            
             

  

             
       

          

           
    

            
            

             
           

           
              

           
        

                 
              

      

 















                   

             

             

                 

           

            

                

                

        

                

               

            

              

        

                

            

               

               

            

              

   

   

   

  

  

            

              

               

              

             

    









                 

             

            

               

              

                   

                  

               

              

    

               

                

                   

                 

             

                

               

            

             

              

       

                 

          

                 

                   

              

             

             

               

           

               

          

             

                

                

              

            

               

               

    





                 

               

               

              

              

               

             

     

                

                

                

               

             

                 

            

               

              

              

              

          

   

    

       





         

     

                 

                 

                 

                 

              

               

           

                 

                 

              

              
   

     

                

             

                 

                

              

               

               

                

    

   

                

                 

                 

               

                     

             

    





              

               

             

              

            

                

             

               

               

               

             

               

            

           

              

  

             

             

        

         

            

             

              

            

             

               

                

             

                    

             

     
      

    






	00 CSB Agenda February 20, 2020
	04a Provisionals
	Provisional Appt Finance Dept - Kwong
	HR Director Memo I
	Provisonal_Appointment Request Form - E. Kwong

	Provisional Appt Human Services Dept - Drummond
	HR Director Memo - H. Drummond
	Provisonal_Appointment Request Form (H. Drummond)


	04b LOAs Combined
	DOC011720 Mana Tominaga ANP
	DOC013120 Gina Cheng

	04c Consent class spec HS EHS Asst Instructor
	CSB Memo HS EHS Asst Instructor 2020-02-20
	Head Start - Early Head Start Assistant Instructor DRAFT 2020-01-02 to L...

	05a CSB Minutes January 16, 2020 DRAFT
	05b CSB MINUTES December 19, 2019 DRAFT 01.10.2020
	05c CSB Minutes July 18 2019 DRAFT
	05d CSB Action Tracker February 20, 2020
	05e TCSE ELDE Report
	0 Staff report - February 20, 2020
	Attachment A - February 20, 2020
	Attachment B - February 20, 2020

	05f Common Class Study - Info Tech Grouping Combined
	Port IT Group DRAFT 1 24 20 edited last page
	Port Appendix I IT Group 1 24 20
	Port Appendix II IT Occ Group - Wrap Alignment edited doc

	06a Joshua Wilson appeal
	2020-02-06 Port of Oakland Position Statement
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	Exhibit D
	Exhibit E
	Exhibit F
	Exhibit G
	Exhibit H
	Exhibit I
	Exhibit J
	Exhibit K
	Exhibit L

	From Appellant Joshua Wilson December 23, 2019  Appeal to Civil Service ...
	From Appellant




